. B :
o L

=

- '-._,_:__.. 3 '-""."'ﬁ". . i;f'__
.-.;".'l'lj.-_-_._ .

| T -

= . i i
R, g ,.l}._--.'l"_"r_ -
- - ca N
: = -rl'ﬁ_* :1'.' I:-l l-l:h) l-":';ll_"l.l::"__,‘_
X e o

ol VI, o




Time and Space, Album of Four Leaves - Leaf 4 (dated 1993)

Irene Chou
[BFZe 2/ ] 5455 (19935F1F)

The painting for the cover of this year's annual report is “Time
and Space” Leaf 4 from an album of four leaves by Ms Irene Chou.
We can see in the painting how she moves from layers of utter
blackness to a profusion of colours, using her palette to explore the
inter-relationship between time and space in the cosmos.

In a year of global economic downturn, this painting echoes how
the Group rides out the storm on the strength of its core businesses
and refined business strategy and operation management. The
Group is prepared for rebound when the global economy recovers.
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GROUP PROFILE &E &4t

Gold Peak Group is an Asian multinational group which owns high-
quality industrial investments via GP Industries Limited, its major
industrial investment vehicle. Its Technology and Strategic Division
is engaged in the development of new product technologies
and strategic investments. The Group has built renowned brand
names for its major product categories, such as GP Batteries, KEF

loudspeakers and Lighthouse LED superscreens.

The parent company, Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited, was
established in 1964 and has been listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong since 1984. Currently, Gold Peak holds a 69.3%* interest
in GP Industries while GP Industries holds a 49.2%* interest in GP
Batteries International Limited. GP Industries and GP Batteries are
publicly listed in Singapore.

Including all divisions, the Group's turnover for financial year 2008-2009
amounted to HK$6.5 billion and its total assets exceeded HK$7.9
billion. Including the major operations of its various divisions, the

Group currently employs 12,000 people worldwide.

* As at 31 July 2009

The Group's international manufacturing
and distribution network

KECEERDHAREMER

32 Denmark

#5788 Netherlands

l Marketing & Sales SH&HR=BE

GP Batteries

LIGHTHOUSE
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GROUP STRUCTURE &£E%%

GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
SUTH (KE) LT

Hong Kong-listed &%k

TECHNOLOGY &
STRATEGIC DIVISION

B R R

GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
GP TXRARAH

Singapore-listed I £ 69.3%*

ELECTRONICS GP BATTERIES LIGHTHOUSE
DIVISION INTERNATIONAL LIMITED TECHNOLOGIES LIMITED
BT £WEH JANBEERAD T
& BB R A A 29.8%

Electronics & components e o 0 e
EFREDMH o¢ rimary specialty superscreens
- o —RMEEH LEDARRH

Acoustics i
BER i Rechargeable
Cables & wire harness : L
BRRARRS o8 Primary cylindrical & others
LED superscreens —RMERERE R HA S .
LEDAR R Distribution business
(Lighthouse XA 19.3%) [ DEEK
Light fittings & other investments g
BPARGRAMBIRE
Singapore-listed #03 £ 49.2%*

* Percentage stated denotes respective shareholding held by Gold Peak or GP Industries as at 31 July 2009
BRERASWTIXRAGPIEN -"BBNFLA=+— B2 RE



FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS BB E&HE

2008
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT ReEax
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) BZ=A=t—HLEEEEBEEBET)
Turnover RS
— Consolidated turnover — Ak ARCIEXN 14775
— All divisions * — SEMAEEKIBA (JCENE  7,109.4
Total (loss) profit for the year 2 FHB (R )=F (65.3) 704
(Loss) earnings per share (Hong Kong cents) TR (BB BR o (11.89) 12.82
Dividends per share (Hong Kong cents) BREE (&) 25 5.0
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET RaRERRE
At 31 March (HK$ million) R=B=+—HE&#T)
Shareholders’ funds BRHRES 1,391.8
Total assets HWEE 5,094.8
Capital expenditure BARMEXZH 36.0
RATIOS b
At 31 March R=A=+—8
Current assets : Current liabilities (ratio) RBEE  ABEE(R) 1.1
Inventory turnover period (months) FEERBHA) 43
Net bank borrowings : Total equity (ratio) RITEEFE  BME(LLR)
— The Group - &8 1.05
— The Company — AF 0.73
OTHER INFORMATION HfthEH#
At 31 March R=A=t+—8H
The Company & its subsidiaries DNARMERE
Number of employees EBEAE
= China (including Hong Kong) — FE(BHEER) PN 3,400
— Other countries — HfE=R 150 200
2,650 3,600
Total area (sq m) BEBE(FIXK)
— China (including Hong Kong) — FE(BEEB) [l 111,000
— Other countries — HMER 21,500 21,500

P 132,500

* Including the Group's major associates — GP Batteries and Lighthouse
BREEEZIEREAT — SWBBRIKERE



Turnover by Business* Turnover by Location*

Year ended 31 March 2009 Year ended 31 March 2009
FTEERIEERE« BB ZEHETE D+
BZE-_ZThF=A=1+—HLEFE BZE_ZEThF=A=1+—HLEFE
I Electronics BF B Asia Z5M

[ Batteries Esth [ Europe BXM

Il Technology & Strategic Rk R s Bl Americas EM

Il Others =4

......

Profit before Taxation by Business Total Assets by Location*
Attributable to Gold Peak * # As at 31 March 2009

Year ended 31 March 2009

FEXEKRZBRBIADRR *# BHWBEZREED
BZ_ZThE=A=1+—HLEE R-ZBZAEFE=A=1+—H

I Electronics EF B Hong Kong & China &&RHE
[ Batteries Eth I Rest of Asia EH A E5 MBI

Il Technology & Strategic RH% R 5ERS I Australia M

[ Europe BUM
I Americas EM

......

# Excluding impairment loss on available-for-sale investments
Rt A ERE 2 RERSE

* Including the Group’s major associates — GP Batteries and Lighthouse
BREEEZEIEREAT — SIWEBRIEERE



TURNOVER* 9000

Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)

s 2 m 8000
BESA=t—ALEE (BEBT)

7000
6000
5000
4000
@—e Consolidated Turnover
GEX S S
2000
* Including the Group’s major associates — GP Batteries and Lighthouse
BESEZEEBHERR — @INEBRIKETH 1000
0
TOTAL ASSETS* 10000
At 31 March (HK$ million)
. 9000
mEE
R=A=+-HB (BE#ET) 8000
7000
6000
5000

@—e Consolidated Total Assets 4000
IREHEE 3000

* Including the Group’s major associates — GP Batteries and Lighthouse 2000
BEEEZ TEHERE — SILEBRIKSFHR 1000

0

PROFITS BY BUSINESS *
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million) 200 402.0

gEEgsoRRF
BE=A=1t—HLEE (B&8#BRT)
300

[ Electronics [ Electrical T ol T e
EF s
| Batteries I Technology & Strategic 200 167.7
Bt Bigmsrs e A e m
# Total net profits by respective business (on a 100% basis) 126.3*%
ERIRGZFATIBE (R100% A1) 100
The privatisation of CIH Limited by GP Industries Limited

was completed in September 2006
GPT %7200649 A e ALAIECIH Limited

* Excluding impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments

Ret AT HEIRE 2 RERSIE

05 06 07 08 09



MARKET CAPITALISATION

At 31 March (HK$ million) 2400
miE
R=A=+—8 (§&#%x) 2000
| Goldreak [ GP Batteries 1600
£IITE £IEH
© GPindustries Ml CH Limited 1200
GPT %

800

The privatisation of CIH Limited by GP Industries Limited 400
was completed in September 2006

GPI#/#%200649 A 5epk AL A 1ECIH Limited

(LOSS) PROFITS ATTRIBUTABLE

TO SHAREHOLDERS 175
Year ended 31 March (HK$ million)

150
% 3R PB4 (8548 ) &= A

BE=A=t—-HLEE (BB#ERT) 125

100

75

50

25

(65.3)
(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE AND
DIVIDENDS PER SHARE 30
Year ended 31 March (Hong Kong cents)
BR(ER)BARKE 2 .

BE=A=1t—-ALEE GB)

[ (Loss) Earnings Per Share
FR(EIR) B H

B Dividends Per Share
FREE




Note: The financial information for 2005 had been restated to reflect changes in accounting policies in 2006 resulting from the adoption of the new Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards effective in that year. The financial information for years 2000 to 2004 were not restated for practical reasons.
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TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY  +&#BHE

FEIERER sz=A=t—RALEE

B

& (518 ) wf

Frih B N B 4

Frih £ RERE A B A&

MBI AT AT TS (B B) RF
g

2F (B1R) = f

BR :

KA BERRER

DRI R

GEEERMAR n=A=1+-8
REMZE

M2 - BERZRBE
FENBAERE

PGB & D Rl
Pt SRR A B s
AHEHERE

2L

"ERE
REZBHZE
RAEWIRE
ERRE

e

FEAERIREE
REEE

R

KRR
EERIAEE
BEEHEEE
REIEE
HmEE

RERESE
LR A R EREREE
DR RERS

Consolidated Results Year ended 31 March

Turnover

Operating (loss) profit
Share of results of associates

Share of results of jointly controlled entities

(Loss) profit from ordinary activities before taxation

Taxation
(Loss)profit for the year
Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company

Minority interests

Consolidated Balance Sheet At 31 March

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments
Interests in associates

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Available-for-sale investments
Trademarks

Investments in securities
Advances to trade associates
Long-term receivables
Technical know-how
Goodwill

Deferred taxation assets
Current assets

Total assets

Borrowings

Convertible note

Deferred taxation liabilities
Obligation under finance lease
Current liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ fund

Share option reserve of a listed subsidiary

Minority interests

2009
BEET
HK$ Million

46.8
3.5
59.1

1,428.7
4,034.0
836.6

173

22
1,369.0

2,225.1
1,808.9

1,165.7
10.0
633.2

1,808.9

2008
HEBIT
HK$ Million

1,477.5

289
104.1

133.0
(30.8)

102.2

704
31.8

102.2



2007

2006

2005

2004

2003

2002

2001

2000

BEET BHEET BEBT HEBT BEBT "HEBT BEBT BEBT
HKS$ Million HKS$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million HK$ Million
(B3R5
(restated)

1,902.6 2,002.3 2,179.2 1,684.5 1,809.1 1,601.6 1,752.8 1,161.7
(99.0) 14.2 73.9 (155.3) (52.5) (57.2) (46.2) 164.6
324.7 110.0 86.9 460.3 203.3 147.6 176.3 180.6

= (26.2) (56.6) - = = — _
225.7 98.0 104.2 305.0 150.8 90.4 130.1 345.2
(24.3) (25.4) (15.6) (80.1) (52.7) (35.1) (41.3) (41.7)
201.4 72.6 88.6 224.9 98.1 55.3 88.8 303.5
115.1 61.7 65.9 173.8 68.8 37.3 61.8 138.4
86.3 10.9 22.7 51.1 29.3 18.0 27.0 165.1
201.4 72.6 88.6 224.9 98.1 55.3 88.8 303.5
132.0 105.7 104.1 139.0 112.3 89.7 90.1 88.8
272.8 305.6 381.3 318.4 259.9 300.7 308.2 291.3
37.1 37.8 36.4 - - - - -
1,726.4 1,408.1 1,218.4 2,194.2 1,729.4 1,557.9 1,493.7 1,549.8
- - 322.5 - - - - -
598.0 564.9 275.3 - - - - -
43.9 48.1 52.3 56.5 60.6 64.8 69.0 73.2
- - 149.5 143.8 177.4 191.8 200.9 235.2

- - 114.0 97.0 109.0 117.0 117.0 20.0
330.2 614.7 647.9 - - - - -
35.0 38.8 30.9 - - 24.5 18.4 4.9
53.7 35.1 77.0 7.4 9.1 10.1 - -
12.4 15.2 15.9 - - - - -

2,082.8 2,072.1 2,096.4 1,276.0 1,180.2 1,501.0 1,261.1 972.0

5,324.3 5,246.1 5,521.9 4,232.3 3,637.9 3,857.5 3,558.4 3,235.2

1,173.3 1,577.4 1,209.6 1,147.2 1,008.7 1,618.9 978.9 784.2

- - - 88.5 85.9 83.4 80.9 -
16.2 11.0 16.9 9.4 7.2 9.3 7.9 1.7

1,922.2 1,698.8 2,181.0 1,436.0 1,314.1 979.2 1,301.3 1,065.7

3,111.7 3,287.2 3,407.5 2,681.1 2,415.9 2,690.8 2,369.0 1,851.6

2,212.6 1,958.9 2,114.4 1,551.2 1,222.0 1,166.7 1,189.4 1,383.6

1,426.8 1,180.4 1,265.8 1,278.4 998.9 941.5 960.2 1,072.1

4.7 4.7 3.6 - - - - -
781.1 773.8 845.0 272.8 223.1 2252 229.2 311.5
2,212.6 1,958.9 2,114.4 1,551.2 1,222.0 1,166.7 1,189.4 1,383.6

Mz - —EEAFPHENCRENRES  URRERAR-S2AFERZHEBUBRELNEE 2 S BEREE -
REBERERR  —ZTRTFE_TTNFHBENAUBRENRT



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FE#HEE

Andrew Ng R £ &

Vice Chairman

BlEMRE

The Group faced a challenging operating environment during the
financial year 2008-2009, as the contraction in global economic
activity affected sales, while volatility in materials prices impacted
profitability. In the face of these challenges, the Group took
immediate measures to slow down capital expenditure, reduce
costs and tighten working capital management. It also continued
to rationalise operations and to improve productivity. Economies
around the world now appear to be stabilising, and we are

favourably placed to benefit from the recovery, although we expect

the recovery to be gradual.

Victor Lo Z& fh &%

Chairman & Chief Executive
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RESULTS

Turnover for all divisions decreased by 9% over the previous
financial year to HK$6,494 million, while consolidated turnover
declined by 11% to HK$1,314 million.

The Company reported a consolidated net loss attributable
to shareholders amounting to HK$65.3 million. The loss was
attributable to impairments on some of the Group’s investments,
which amounted to HK$101.5 million, compared to an investment
gain of HK$88.6 million for the previous year. On the operating
side, most of the Group’s subsidiaries and major associates have
weathered the econonic crisis relatively well under such a tough

business environment.

Basic loss per share amounted to 11.89 Hong Kong cents. The
Board has recommended a final dividend of 1.5 Hong Kong cents,
compared with the final dividend of 2.0 Hong Kong cents for the

previous year.

GP INDUSTRIES

Sales at GP Industries decreased over the previous year as the
deteriorating global economy reduced demand for some of its

products. Profit from operations also decreased during the year.

Sales at the electronics and components businesses declined
as demand for professional electronics products softened. The
performance of our associates in the components business also
weakened. Higher costs were partially offset by effective cost-

control measures, but operating profit decreased during the year.

Total revenue of acoustic products decreased despite higher sales
of KEF products to Asia, Germany, Canada and Latin America where
it gained market shares. Profitability at the branded acoustics
business increased owing to improved distribution efficiency
and stringent cost-saving measures. Meiloon Industrial Co., Ltd,
reported a small loss caused by a weak market for consumer

electronics products.

Contributions from cable associate Linkz Industries Limited
decreased, mainly because of higher material and manufacturing
costs. Contributions from the wire harness associates serving the
automobile makers in China increased due to robust domestic
demand. However, contributions from export-oriented subsidiaries

and associates decreased during the year.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (continuey EFEHRE

GP BATTERIES

GP Batteries returned to profit during the financial year. Turnover
declined as most battery types were affected by the weak market.
Gross margin improved, however, reflecting higher productivity
and reduced inventory and product cycle time. The improvement
in productivity was achieved in part through the implementation
of a new management information system. The reduction in total
product cycle time and inventory was the result of a renewed
focus on supply chain management. More focus on the branded
business enabled the GP brand to gain market share amid industry

consolidation.

TECHNOLOGY AND STRATEGIC DIVISION

During the year, the LED super bright screens business reported a
slight increase in sales. However, due to higher operating expenses,
its profit contribution was lower. In May 2009, the Company and
GP Industries together announced that they would dispose of
an aggregate of their 49.1% interest in Lighthouse Technologies

Limited to Linkz for HK$180 million.

In May 2009, the Company announced it would sell an industrial
building in Hong Kong for HK$155 million, representing a good

opportunity for the Company to realise its non-core assets.

The above divestments are in line with the Group’s current strategy

to enhance its balance sheet and cash flow position.

OUTLOOK

For GP Industries, sales at the electronics and components
businesses are starting to stabilise. The subsidiaries in components
business are expected to continue to show rapid growth and
to begin contributing to the Group. The acoustics business will
continue to build on its positive performance. It will focus on
growth markets such as those in Asia-Pacific where it will continue
to expand and strengthen its distribution network. The cables and
wire harness businesses are also strengthening their capabilities
and contribution, as both business areas are expected to benefit

from lower costs.

T

TIIES

TUBHEAFREERA  EXHFHELEM
XRBOTATESTEXREER  TBREMEX
R BB IIESERSEED D
BEEEREREH - IWELRBHNEAR
ERRS  MEPHEALEEN  MEHZL
HERERARSEFREEEREREY -
RSP ERMERY  EMSBAKSGP
mIEREAMEEREEER

BHE R 3

FRN LEDERmEARAREEBHNHEEHRS
iR - Tl LERXIGMS &N ER
T - 2009658 + "ARIEGPIH#H
REMBEHERSXFBRAERRARRAA
249.1% BRIETFELIEERAR  RIEA
1.81847T °

200958 ' AAREMEHEERBFEN—
BEITH¥KNE  RE1S5EBT - BEXH AN
NEBRIERDEBEZ R -

=l

LHERBEFRREBB MR NBIEEE
BERMERR SRR o

i

\

2

SEBEMGCGPTXRENE T REHMHFEHAH
ERHBRE  THHMNBARNERSSHE
MERER - WA REETRER - HERE
BRRFRFRR - YREPERNDAME
FIAEERNMS  #EEEHMERIZES
HAEA - EBRTEEREBEXBREART
bR EEBREMBAGENTEHSNRE -

el



In June 2009, GP Industries entered into agreements to increase
its shareholdings to 50% in Shanghai Jinting Automobile Harness
Limited, one of the leading automotive wire harness manufacturers
in China. Upon completion, this investment will allow us to
develop a stronger presence in the wire harness business in China
and to capture the rapid growth of the country’s car manufacturing

industry.

GP Batteries will maintain its emphasis on GP branded products
and will continue to devote resources to key OEM customers. It
will also seek further alliances that offer synergies in technology
or distribution. It aims to achieve further improvements in
productivity, including more consolidation of its manufacturing

facilities.

The Group will maintain a prudent financial strategy in the near
term and continue to improve its balance sheet and liquidity
position, which have already benefited from a significant reduction
in bank debts and improved cash flow. There are encouraging
indications that recovery could already be underway, and our
strong brands and sound business strategies will put us in a positive

position as the global economy gradually recovers.

VOTE OF THANKS

| would like to thank our shareholders, business partners and
customers for their continued support during a year full of
challenges. | also wish to commend my fellow directors, our

management and employees for their commitment and hard work.

Ll

Victor LO Chung Wing
Chairman & Chief Executive

31 July 2009
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 2=l

OVERVIEW

The market environment for the Group’s businesses was difficult
during the year under review. In the first half of the financial
year, soft markets and high costs depressed margins for the
manufacturing industry. The subsequent global economic turmoil
further deteriorated consumer confidence, resulting in weak
demand for most of the Group’s products. In response, the Group
took immediate measures to reduce costs, increase efficiency and

rationalise its structure.

GP INDUSTRIES

Sales decreased by 13% as the global economic downturn
Profit

GP Batteries, its major associate,

weakened demand for many of GP Industries’ products.
from operations declined by 43%.
improved its contribution, but overall contributions from associates

decreased.

GP Industries’ profitability was further affected by
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impairments made against its investments. As a result, it reported a

loss attributable to shareholders for the year, versus a profit for the

previous year.

ELECTRONICS DIVISION

Electronics and components

Sales of professional audio products were affected by the economic

downturn and customers’ efforts to reduce inventory. Despite

a good market response to new products, sales of professional

electronic products decreased by 28%.

For the components business, the Group rationalised its subsidiaries

and introduced new products. Although from a relatively low base,

sales from these subsidiaries were double those of the previous

year. The associates, however, were affected by the global market

downturn and reported lower sales and contributions.

(1) GP ReCykot USB Mobile Power
(2) NiMH rechargeable batteries for
electric vehicles

(1) GP ReCyko" USB B 5 EH
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GP Batteries continues to develop new
battery technology and launches eco-friendly
products to meet the ever-changing market
needs.
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The new KEF Reference series embraces
numerous technological breakthroughs
including the new patented Uni-Q driver array.
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Acoustics g

During the year, the acoustics business instituted rigorous cost SEEEKIEHIZEREFHNKRA - FEE—
controls, further streamlined its distribution and invested in S EEHIEMTEREDNEA TS - KEF
developing markets in Asia. Sales of KEF-branded products to the FEZZERETREEERMN S EER
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items registered a significant decline due mainly to higher
material and manufacturing costs. Contributions from wire
harness associates serving the domestic car manufacturers in China
performed strongly, while those from export-oriented subsidiaries

and associates decreased.

GP BATTERIES (currently 49.2% owned by GP Industries)

During the year, GP Batteries’ turnover decreased by 12% while
profitability improved from a loss in the previous year to a profit of
$$0.7 million. The Americas and Europe recorded a dip in turnover
while sales increased in mainland China and Hong Kong, where the

GP brand remains a market leader.
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KEF continues to focus on growth markets and

expand its distribution network.
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GP Batteries has maintained its market share by
leveraging on its strong distribution network.
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GP ReCyko", the new generation rechargeable

batteries, has gained recognition in the

consumer market.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continves) 5= #5B1 R 0

Turnover for primary alkaline cylindrical and 9-volt batteries
increased while sales of Carbon Zinc batteries were affected mainly
by a decline in demand in the toy market. Cost improvement
initiatives have however enhanced cost competitiveness and

enabled GP Batteries to increase its market share further.

Sales of rechargeable batteries accounted for about 45% of GP
Batteries’ turnover. Despite strong competition, GP Batteries
has maintained its market share and there has been encouraging
improvement in some product mixes. The introduction of GP solar
charger for Nickel Metal Hydride batteries has gained recognition
among consumers. The continuous efforts in promoting GP
ReCykot batteries have raised the profile of these new generation
rechargeable batteries among consumers. In addition, GP Batteries
has strengthened its product management and improved its quality

system which has enabled it to make tremendous inroads into the

industrial market.
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During the year, GP Batteries continued to develop Lithium
technology such as Lithium Ferro Phosphate batteries to meet
the ever-increasing demand for high power and long life-cycle
rechargeable batteries. Its subsidiary in Taiwan signed a 5-year
subcontracting agreement to produce Lithium-ion batteries for

notebook computers.

For electric vehicle ("EV") batteries, GP Batteries has been working
on several new projects which have the potential to translate into
greater opportunities in the coming year. It has also entered into
a new strategic partnership with a US company to develop and
market a kit to convert standard Toyota Prius hybrids to operate
as plug-in hybrid EVs with increased performance and reduced
emissions. Sales of batteries for high-end electric bicycles remained
strong, making GP Batteries a significant world supplier in this

market.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continves) 5= #5B1 R 0

TECHNOLOGY AND STRATEGIC DIVISION

Lighthouse Technologies Limited, which is 29.8%-owned by the
Company and 19.3%-owned by GP Industries, performed strongly
for the first three quarters ended 30 September 2008, especially
for sales to customers in the screen rental business. Thereafter, it
was affected by the global financial turmoil and recorded a modest
increase of 7% in sales for the year, with profit contribution lower

mainly because of higher operating expenses.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year, the Group’s net bank borrowings decreased by
HK$555 million to HK$1,669 million. As at 31 March 2009, the
aggregate of the Group’s shareholders’ funds and minority interests
was HK$1,809 million and the Group's gearing ratio (the ratio
of consolidated net bank borrowings to shareholders’ funds and
minority interests) was 0.92 (31 March 2008: 1.05). The gearing
ratios of the Company, GP Industries and GP Batteries were 0.84
(31 March 2008: 0.73), 0.40 (31 March 2008: 0.60) and 0.60 (31 March

2008: 0.75) respectively.

At 31 March 2009, 57% (31 March 2008: 52%) of the Group’s bank
borrowings were revolving or repayable within one year whereas
43% (31 March 2008: 48%) were mostly repayable between one to
five years. Most of these bank borrowings are at floating interest
rates and are denominated in US dollars, Singapore dollars and

Hong Kong dollars.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises mainly from the net
cash flow and the translation of net monetary assets or liabilities
of its overseas subsidiaries. The Group and its major associates
continue to manage foreign exchange risks prudently. Forward
contracts, borrowings in local currencies and local sourcing have

been arranged to minimise the impact of currency fluctuation.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group and its major business divisions continue to be
supported by a motivated workforce of approximately 12,000
people worldwide. The Group offers fair compensation packages
and retirement schemes to its employees. Remuneration policies
are reviewed regularly to ensure that compensation and benefit
packages are in line with the market in the countries where the

Group has operations.
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The Group continues to invest in its people through a broad range
of development programmes designed to help them enhance
their skills and contribute to operational excellence. During the
year, various training sessions and workshops on management
development, professional competence and team building were

provided.

As a responsible employer, the Group continued its efforts on
environment, health and safety (“EHS"”) to ensure a safe and
conducive work environment for its employees. It also conducted
seminars and workshops on EHS management for its employees
to strengthen their awareness of occupational well-being and

environmental protection.

COMMUNITY RELATIONS

As a good corporate citizen, the Group continued its support of
various charitable activities and industry programmes in Hong
Kong. It also actively participated in many community projects
such as tree planting, cleaning up beaches and blood donation
drives. In recognition of its commitment to community involvement
and corporate citizenship, the Company was awarded the “Caring
Company” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the

seventh consecutive year.

The Group has nurtured a spirit of caring among its employees.
In the wake of the earthquake in Sichuan, China, the Group
together with its employees made donations to various charities
for emergency relief work. GP Batteries organised a charity sale in

Hong Kong with proceeds donated to humanitarian causes.

The Group has adopted an eco-friendly approach in its
The
GP solar charger launched during the year has gained increasing
The GP ReCyko" batteries

received the “Class of Good” Productwi$e Label under the Hong

manufacturing processes as well as product development.

recognition amongst consumers.

Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence Scheme organised
by the Environmental Campaign Committee, in recognition of
its contribution towards reducing environmental impacts arising
during products’ life-cycle stages. GP Batteries also launched a new
plug-in conversion technology for hybrid EVs to help promote this

sustainable mode of transportation.
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CORPORATE CALENDAR OF EVENTS &£EH

2008

2009

July
¢ Sylva Industries Limited received the “2008 HKMA Quality Award -

Bronze Award” from The Hong Kong Management Association in
recognition of its high level of quality and management standards
as well as enduring commitment to total quality management.

September

e Linkz Industries Limited won the Emerald Award of the HSBC
Living Business Award 2008 in recognition of its commitment to
long-term sustainability and corporate responsibility.

March

* The Company received the “5 Years Plus Caring Company” special
logo from the Hong Kong Council of Social Service for the second
time. It has received the Caring Company Award for seven
consecutive years.

® Nielsen's MarketTrack Report ranked GP Ultra Alkaline battery
as No.1 in sales volume in the alkaline batteries segment. GP
rechargeable battery and charger was also ranked first in sales
volume and value in Hong Kong for five consecutive years
(2004-2008).

May

e The Company and GP Industries Limited entered into an
agreement with Linkz Industries Limited to dispose of a 29.8%
interest and a 19.3% interest in Lighthouse Technologies Limited
respectively.

June

* GP Industries Limited received a call option exercise notice
pursuant to which it would dispose of its remaining 20% interest
in Furukawa GP Auto Parts (HK) Limited.

Furukawa GP would cease to be an associate of the Company.

Upon completion,

GP Industries Limited entered into an agreement to acquire a
50% equity interest in Shanghai Jinting Automobile Harness
Limited, China.

the approvals of shareholders of the Company and the relevant

This acquisition is conditional upon, inter alia,

authorities in China.

Jul

o G){’ Industries Limited entered into an agreement to cancel
55,681,443 shares of GP Industries held by an Australian company,
which represent 9.7% of the entire issued share capital of GP
Industries. Upon completion, which is conditional upon, inter

alia, the approval of GP Industries’ shareholders, the Company’s

shareholding in GP Industries will be increased from 69.3% to

76.7%.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Victor LO Chung Wing GBS, OBE, JP, aged 59, joined Gold Peak Group in 1972 and
has been appointed Chairman and Chief Executive since 1990. He is also Chairman
of GP Industries Limited and the former Chairman of GP Batteries International
Limited from 1990 to 1993. Mr Lo is Council Chairman of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Chairman of Board of Directors of Hong Kong Design Centre
and a member of the Board of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. Mr Lo
graduated from the Institute of Design of Illinois Institute of Technology, US with
a Bachelor of Science degree in Product Design. He is the brother of Mr Kevin LO
Chung Ping and Mr Paul LO Chung Wai.

Andrew NG Sung On aged 59, joined Gold Peak Group in 1975 and has been
appointed Vice Chairman since 1990. He is the founder of the micro battery
and rechargeable battery divisions of Gold Peak Group and has been appointed
Chairman and Chief Executive of GP Batteries International Limited since 1993. Mr
Ng holds a Master of Science degree in Chemical Engineering from Massachusetts

Institute of Technology, US.

Kevin LO Chung Ping aged 73, was Chairman of the Company from 1983 to 1990.
He is currently involved in the advanced electronic technology development of the
Group. A veteran in the television broadcasting industry, Mr Lo is also a member
of the board and the executive committee of the Hong Kong-listed Television
Broadcasts Limited. He is the brother of Mr Victor LO Chung Wing and Mr Paul LO
Chung Wai.

Paul LO Chung Wai aged 61, is one of the co-founders of Gold Peak Group. He has
been instrumental in the corporate development of the Group, particularly in the
diversification of the Group’s business and investment into China and Taiwan. He
is Chairman of both Linkz Industries Limited and United Luminous International
(Holdings) Limited. Mr Lo is currently General Councilor of Guangdong Association
of Enterprises with Foreign Investment of China and Vice President of Huizhou
Association of Enterprises with Foreign Investment of China. He is the brother of Mr
Victor LO Chung Wing and Mr Kevin LO Chung Ping.

LEUNG Pak Chuen aged 59, joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and has been appointed
an Executive Director since 1990. He is also Deputy Chief Executive of the Company
and Executive Vice Chairman of GP Industries Limited. Mr Leung has been in the
electronics manufacturing industry for over 30 years, and has played an important
role in setting up the Group’s major joint ventures in China in mid 1980s. He is
currently a member of the Domain Advisory Committee for Material and Packaging
Technologies of Hong Kong Applied Science and Research Institute Company
Limited. He is also a member of The Chartered Institute of Marketing, UK and The
International Institute of Management. He graduated from Chu Hai College, Hong

Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration.

Richard KU Yuk Hing aged 61, joined Gold Peak Group in 1978 and has been
appointed an Executive Director since 1990. He is also Vice Chairman of GP Batteries
International Limited. He has over 30 years’ experience in international marketing in
the battery industry. Mr Ku graduated from Sophia University, Japan with a Bachelor

of Science degree in Economics.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continvea

EEREAEEEBE T @

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung SBS, JP, PhD, FHKIE, aged 61, has been appointed an
Executive Director since 1992 and is currently an executive director of GP Industries
Limited. Dr Chuang is a member of Legal Aid Services Council. He graduated from
Queen Mary College of the University of London and holds a first class honour in
bachelor’s degree in Electrical (Electronics) Engineering and a Doctorate degree in

Microwave Engineering.

CHAU Kwok Wai aged 56, has been re-designated a Non-executive Director since 31
May 2009. He first joined Gold Peak Group in 1979 and served as General Manager
of the Company from 1990 to 1991 and from 2006 to May 2009. He was appointed
an executive director from 1993 to May 2009 and was an executive director of GP
Batteries International Limited from 2006 to May 2009. Mr Chau is a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the UK. He graduated from
the University of Lancaster, UK and holds a Master of Arts degree in Accounting and

Finance.

Raymond WONG Wai Kan aged 57, has been re-designated a Non-executive Director
since 2006. He joined Gold Peak Group in 1986 and served as General Manager of
the Company from 1993 to 2006. He was appointed an executive director of the
Company from 1997 to 2006. Mr Wong is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales. He is also a fellow member of both The Institute of Chartered Secretaries

and Administrators and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau aged 67, has been appointed a Non-executive Director
since 1984. He is also a non-executive director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic
Industries Company Limited. A graduate in law from University College London of
the University of London, Mr Cheung has been a practicing solicitor since 1970 and is
currently the Consultant of Vincent T.K.Cheung, Yap & Co., Solicitors. He is qualified
to practise in Hong Kong and the UK.

LUl Ming Wah SBS, JP, PhD, aged 71, has been appointed an Independent Non-
executive Director since 1995. Dr Lui is currently an Honorary Chairman of The
Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association, an advisor of Hong Kong International
Arbitration Centre, and a member of National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. He obtained his Master and Doctorate degrees
from the University of New South Wales in Australia and the University of
Saskatchewan in Canada respectively. He is currently Managing Director of Keystone

Electronics Co. Ltd.

Frank CHAN Chi Chung ACA, FCCA, FCPA, CPA, aged 55, has been appointed an
Independent Non-executive Director since 2004. He is currently a group executive
director of Hong Kong-listed Techtronic Industries Company Limited, and an
independent director of Singapore-listed Tsit Wing International Holdings Limited.
Mr Chan is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and an associate of the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is qualified to practise as a Certified Public

Accountant in Hong Kong.

HARBL SBS © A4t - FHKIE @ 615% © B1992
FREZERNTES BRI A GPIEARA M
TEE - HKAZEEDRBEBKE - EREENEK
Bl 2R EQueen Mary College » #5 EH# (B F)
TiR8+—REBEN RHUE TG 2407 -

A& 565% © B2009F5A31 BT AIFMITES -
AERM97T9OF IMASIL TEER » B1990FF F 1991
F 20064 2200945 A HAR H AN A AR © [
KR 1993ZF 200955 AR T AHITES © WiK2006
FE2009F5 AER T A LB BBEEERARHNIT
EX ARARBERBTARGTAMAGEREE B
FEUniversity of Lancaster®2% - A &5 REEX
EE - B(] -

THE 5758 M2006FF/ERIFHNTES - TXE
1986 F MNA® L TEEE - 719934F £20064F £
HAERARABLIR - WR1997TF E2006F B EER
HITEE - TRRBEGAG RAEBHREE LT
FRTIEFMAEEE  TRARFITWERITRAS
RENEERAWELENERGE -

REMR 675% © B1984FREFERIIERITES - RIK
MABE EMAREIBERERAA ZIFNITES -
3R AR B R BUKEUniversity College LondonEl{5
EREN - PM9T0FR AR - AR ARER]
TEPREAN B FT 2 BERE - A BB KRB E R -

2HEME SBS - ATML - 715 - B1995FHE
AABIHNTES - SHLREEEFLHERE
g5  EEERERFOENREERHEER - B
BAERNFERBTASEL B RNEADEAS
BB R AXAETERAT 2 EEREE -

BREHE ACA - FCCA - FCPA » CPA - 555% * B2004
FRZERBUIFNTES - RRRABE LT AT
AIREZERARZEENTES  LARMIE LT
REERERERAERARZBLIES - REARER
FRIARSMASNEESAMAGEREE &
RERBBELHFETMAEREEVNBEERE
WHEBBESHESRIER



CHAN Kei Biu PhD, aged 62, has been appointed an Independent Non-executive
Director since 2005. Prof Chan is Chairman of both The Hong Kong Electronic
Industries Association and Group 27 (Automobile Components) under the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries, the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Green
Manufacturing Alliance, the Honorary President of both the Hong Kong Association
for the Advancement of Science and Technology Ltd and Surface Mount Technology
Association Hong Kong Chapter, and a director of the Hong Kong Automotive
Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre Ltd of the Innovation and Technology
Commission. Prof Chan is also a member of the Panel of Assessors for the Innovation
and Technology Support Program under the Innovation and Technology Fund, a
representative of Industry Work Group on Electronics of Hong Kong Productivity
Council and the Convener of the Hong Kong Automobile, Optical, Mechanical
and Electronics Industries Alliance. He is currently Chairman and Senior Managing

Director of Singapore-listed Surface Mount Technology (Holdings) Limited.

WONG Man Kit aged 49, joined Gold Peak Group in 1991 and is currently General
Manager as well as Company Secretary of the Company. He is also an executive
director of GP Industries Limited. Mr Wong is a fellow member of both the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries. He holds a Master degree in Business Administration from

The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Brian LI Yiu Cheung aged 56, joined Gold Peak Group in 1981 and is currently
Managing Director and an executive director of GP Industries Limited. He is an
executive committee member of The Hong Kong Electronic Industries Association,
the Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council of Federation of Hong Kong Industries
and the Industrial Advisory Committee in the Department of Industrial Engineering
and Logistics Management at Hong Kong University of Science and Technology. He
is also a director of Automotive Parts and Accessory Systems R&D Centre Limited. Mr
Li holds a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of British
Columbia in Canada and a Master degree in Global Business with Deans Honour

from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Parklin HO Pak Nin aged 56, joined Gold Peak Group in 1979 and is currently Senior
Director - Global Distribution Strategies of the Company. He has been seconded to
GPI International Limited, the sales and marketing arm of the GP Batteries Group,
since 2007 and is currently Regional Director, Consumer Sales Division. Mr Ho has
been in the electrical industry in Hong Kong for over 25 years. He graduated from

The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Social Sciences.

Henry LEUNG Kwong Hang CEng, MIET, FHKIE, aged 57, joined Gold Peak Group
since 2006. He is currently Chief Operating Officer of GP Batteries International
Limited and has been appointed an executive director of GP Batteries since August
2008. He has over 30 years' global business experience in the US, Singapore
and Hong Kong, and has held senior positions in many multinational electronic
corporations. Mr Leung is a member of Board of Directors of Hong Kong Applied
Science and Technology Research Institute Company Limited. He graduated from the

University of Essex, UK with a bachelor’s degree in Telecommunication Engineering.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance and has applied the principles of the code provisions set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) in Appendix 14 to
The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2009, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code, except for the
deviation from A.2.1 and A.4.1 of the Code, details of which are set out
below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic development
of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial performance and the
internal controls of the Group’s business operations.

As at 31 March 2009, the Board comprised eight executive directors (one of
whom is the Chairman), two non-executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. The biographical details of all directors of the
Company are set out on pages 25 to 27 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the board of directors (the “Board”)
comprised:

Executive Directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing (Chairman & Chief Executive)

Andrew NG Sung On

Kevin LO Chung Ping

Paul LO Chung Wai

LEUNG Pak Chuen

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung

CHAU Kwok Wai (re-designated from executive director to non-executive
director on 31 May 2009)

Non-Executive Directors:
Raymond WONG Wai Kan
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
LUI Ming Wah

Frank CHAN Chi Chung

CHAN Kei Biu

The Chairman is primarily responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each board meeting in consultation with all directors. Notice
of at least 14 days has been given to all directors for all regular board
meetings and the directors can include matters for discussion in the agenda
if necessary. Agenda and accompanying board papers in respect of regular
board meetings are sent in full to all directors within reasonable time prior
to the meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees are kept by
the company secretary and are sent to the directors for records. Each Board
member is entitled to have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary and, upon reasonable request and in appropriate circumstances,
seek independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, four board meetings were held and
the attendance of each director was set out as follows:

i BOTEEREIAH
Name of director Number of board meetings attended/held
Victor LO Chung Wing 4/4
Andrew NG Sung On 4/4
Kevin LO Chung Ping 3/4
Paul LO Chung Wai 2/4
LEUNG Pak Chuen 4/4
Richard KU Yuk Hing 4/4
Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 3/4
CHAU Kwok Wai 4/4
Raymond WONG Wai Kan 3/4
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 2/4
LUI Ming Wah 4/4
Frank CHAN Chi Chung 4/4
CHAN Kei Biu 4/4

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Victor LO Chung Wing is the Chairman and the Chief Executive of the
Company. Although A.2.1 of the Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual, the Board considers that the present structure will
not impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Group as the Group’s principal businesses are separately
listed and each business is run by a different board of directors.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all the independent non-
executive directors to be independent.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

The Board reviews its own structure, size and composition regularly to
ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to
the needs of the business of the Company.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

A.4.1 of the Code stipulates that non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Currently, all non-
executive directors are not appointed for a specific term and are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company in accordance with the provisions of the articles of association
of the Company. Since their appointments will be reviewed when they are
due for re-election, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no
less exacting than those set out in the Code.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has not established a nomination committee as the duties
and functions of the Nomination Committee recommended in the Code are
performed by the Board collectively with no director being involved in fixing
his own terms of appointment and no independent non-executive director
being involved in assessing his own independence.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to review the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and to review the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Audit Committee comprised:

LUI Ming Wah (Chairman)
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau
Frank CHAN Chi Chung
CHAN Kei Biu

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has broad
commercial experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in legal,
business and accounting in the Audit Committee. The composition and
members of the Audit Committee comply with the requirements under Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
follow the guidelines set out in the Code and have been posted on the
Company'’s website.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, two Audit Committee meetings were
held and the attendance of each committee member was set out as follows:

HEBOTEERE
Name of member Number of meetings attended/held
LUI Ming Wah 2/2
Frank CHAN Chi Chung 2/2
CHAN Kei Biu 2/2
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 1/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

The work performed by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31
March 2009 included reviewing the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2008 and the unaudited interim financial statements for the
six months ended 30 September 2008, with recommendations to the Board
for approval.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Audit Committee met with the
external auditor twice.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to review and
endorse the remuneration policy of the directors and senior management
and to make recommendations to the Board for the remuneration of the
directors and senior management. The Remuneration Committee has taken
sufficient measures to ensure that no director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Remuneration Committee
comprised:

Frank CHAN Chi Chung (Chairman)
LUl Ming Wah

CHAN Kei Biu

Victor LO Chung Wing

CHAU Kwok Wai

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee were adopted
in September 2005, details of which have been posted on the Company’s
website.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, there was one Remuneration
Committee meeting and the attendance of each committee member was set
out as follows:

HE A BOTEERRH
Name of member Number of meetings attended/held
Frank CHAN Chi Chung 171
LUI Ming Wah 1”71
CHAN Kei Biu 11
Victor LO Chung Wing 11
CHAU Kwok Wai 171

The work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year
ended 31 March 2009 included reviewing the remuneration policy of the
directors and senior management and the remuneration of the directors and
senior management.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers” set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"”) as its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, the Company
confirmed that all directors have complied with the required standard set
out in the Model Code throughout the year.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare financial statements for
each financial year which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group. The Board is not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon the Company'’s
ability to continue in business. Accordingly, the Board has prepared the
financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in the Company’s annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as well as information
required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has conducted annual review on the system of internal control
of the Group and its effectiveness covering the financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal control system to safeguard
the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, external
auditor of the Group, for services provided during the year ended 31 March
2009 were as follows:

Bt ENER

BRAS TR it Services rendered Fees paid/payable
FT

HK$’000

FEHRTS Audit services 4,828
BT RS Non-audit services 752
A&t Total 5,580
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT BERigE=

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 47 and 48 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2009 are set out in the consolidated income statement
on page 43 and the accompanying notes to the consolidated financial
statements. An interim dividend of 1.0 HK cent per share was paid to the
shareholders during the year. A final dividend of 1.5 HK cents per share is
proposed by the directors. On the basis of 2.5 HK cents per share for the
entire year, total dividends amount to HK$13,732,000.

TEN-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the past ten financial years is set out on pages 10 and 11.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in investment properties of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment of
approximately HK$35,457,000 to expand its business. Details of movements
in property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31
March 2009 are represented by the retained profits and the dividend reserve
totalling HK$215,397,000 (2008: HK$358,885,000).

DONATIONS
During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations totalling
HK$1,845,000.
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Victor LO Chung Wing, Chairman & Chief Executive

Andrew NG Sung On, Vice Chairman

Kevin LO Chung Ping

Paul LO Chung Wai

LEUNG Pak Chuen

Richard KU Yuk Hing

Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung

CHAU Kwok Wai (re-designated from executive director to
non-executive director on 31 May 2009)

Non-executive directors:
Raymond WONG Wai Kan
Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau
LUI Ming Wah*

Frank CHAN Chi Chung*
CHAN Kei Biu*

*  Independent non-executive director

In accordance with Articles 95 and 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Paul LO Chung Wai, LEUNG Pak Chuen, Richard KU Yuk
Hing and Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung are due to retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

No directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a term subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the directors and
the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which were required to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which
were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to Appendix
10 “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange were as follows:

(a) Interest in shares of the Company (long positions)
As at 31 March 2009, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive in the ordinary shares of the Company were as follows:

HERERANE N

Number of ordinary shares held RfzaR

Percentage of

EARER EYi Y AT HEXME  issued share

Personal Family Corporate Total capital of

= Name of director interests interests interests interests the Company
%

FERlES Victor LO Chung Wing 74,951,811 - 88,065,432* 163,017,243 29.68
REL Andrew NG Sung On 69,771,957 417,000 88,065,432* 158,254,389 28.81
ZE IR Kevin LO Chung Ping 625,000 3,239,066 - 3,864,066 0.70
BITIE Paul LO Chung Wai 22,611,518 - - 22,611,518 4.12
2{Aaz LEUNG Pak Chuen 3,202,581 - - 3,202,581 0.58
AR B Richard KU Yuk Hing 2,231,780 - - 2,231,780 0.41
AR Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 474,500 - - 474,500 0.09
EE&E CHAU Kwok Wai 275,000 - - 275,000 0.05
o) Raymond WONG Wai Kan 1,790,081 - - 1,790,081 0.33
REEK Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 1,947,549 - - 1,947,549 0.35
=L LUI Ming Wah - - - - -
BRAGHIR Frank CHAN Chi Chung = = = = =
FREL S CHAN Kei Biu = = = = =

* HEMKREERRFREEEZESR Z Well Glory
International Limited %5 88,065,432/% Z &M%

* 88,065,432 ordinary shares were beneficially owned by Well Glory International
Limited, a company in which Messrs. Victor LO Chung Wing and Andrew NG Sung
On have beneficial interests.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES OF THE

COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (continued)

(b) Interests in shares of the Company’s associated corporations (long
positions)
As at 31 March 2009, the direct beneficial interests of the directors and
the chief executive in the shares of GP Batteries International Limited
("GPBI"), a 49.2% owned associate of GP Industries Limited (“GP Ind"),
and Gold Peak Industries (Taiwan) Limited (“GPIT"), a 79.6% owned
subsidiary of GPBI, and GP Ind, a 69.3% owned subsidiary of the
Company, were as follows:

FEEEROBERAEBITROZBDL
Number of ordinary shares and
percentage of their issued share capital held

2T Al GPIT ¥
BE Name of director GPBI GPIT GP Ind
A A #H
Number %  Number %  Number %
FE{PER Victor LO Chung Wing 200,000 0.18 - - - -
RER Andrew NG Sung On 833,332 0.76 500,000 0.25 378,412 0.07
ZE IR Kevin LO Chung Ping - - - - - -
IR Paul LO Chung Wai 80,000 0.07 - - - -
2Bz LEUNG Pak Chuen - - - - 1,608,000 0.28
FEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 141,000 0.13 200,000 0.10 70,000 0.01
AR Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung - - = = 45,000 0.01
ERE CHAU Kwok Wai - - - - 481,232 0.08
T#4%) Raymond WONG Wai Kan 374,000 0.34 100,000 0.05 1,598,827 0.28
SREBK Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 20,000 0.02 - - - -
= B EE LUI Ming Wah - = = = = =
PRASHR Frank CHAN Chi Chung - - = = = =
PREC SR CHAN Kei Biu = - - - _ _
BRIAEFTIEEEIN  RETETNF=A=+—H EF Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the directors, the

NS RE AT A RISR IR E S R R R DIE
B ERR 2B RB MR -

chief executive or their associates had any interest in the securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in SFO.
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(a) 22w RE Rt &

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR

DEBENTURES

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company and GP Ind are set

out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

The following tables disclose the movements in the number of share options

of the Company, GP Ind and GPBI which have been granted to the directors

of the Company, during the year:

(a) The Company’s share option scheme:

RRERE

Number of option shares

R-BBNE REE RZBENF
A—H % =A=t—A
ek i RATRE Lapsed 1o RATAE
RT¥EH A{TEZBH Exercise Outstanding during Outstanding
o Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period price  at 1.4.2008 the year at31.3.2009
BT
HK$
BRI Victor LO Chung Wing 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 1,600,000  (1,600,000) -
REZ Andrew NG Sung On 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 1,600,000  (1,600,000) -
ol Kevin LO Chung Ping 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 1,000,000  (1,000,000) -
R Paul LO Chung Wai 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 1,000,000  (1,000,000) -
BEE Richard KU Yuk Hing 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 500,000 (500,000) -
HaER Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 500,000 (500,000) -
[ERIE CHAU Kwok Wai 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 600,000 (600,000) =
T#E Raymond WONG Wai Kan 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 1,000,000  (1,000,000) -
REEK Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 400,000 (400,000) =
AEAEE LUl Ming Wah 2.10.2003 2.10.2003-1.10.2008 1.84 300,000 (300,000) =
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(b) GPTRIBRFERTAI :

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)
(b) GP Ind’s share option scheme:

R-ZFZBN\F
mA—HR
—EBhE

=A=t+—H

i RATEE
BRERE
Number of
option shares

TEEHK outstanding
BT HH A{TE 2 B HA Exercise at 1.4.2008
S Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period price and 31.3.2009
N3 T
S$
B Victor LO Chung Wing 14.4.2000 14.4.2002-13.4.2010 0.456 300,000
4.4.2001 4.4.2003-3.4.2011 0.620 600,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003-13.8.2012 0.550 384,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 384,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 400,000
2@\E LEUNG Pak Chuen 15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 350,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 380,000
TRER Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung  14.4.2000 14.4.2002-13.4.2010 0.456 110,000
4.4.2001 4.4.2003-3.4.2011 0.620 200,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003-13.8.2012 0.550 130,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 130,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 150,000
IEIE S CHAU Kwok Wai 5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 180,000
T#E Raymond WONG Wai Kan 15.9.2003 15.9.2004-14.9.2013 0.880 140,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 180,000
() £ILEBMERFESE (c) GPBI's share option scheme:
R=ZZBZNEF
mA—HBR
ZEEBNF
=A=+-—H
i RATE
BREHE
Number of
option shares
TEEMER outstanding
£FBEH G A= Exercise at 1.4.2008
BE Name of director Date of grant Exercisable period price and 31.3.2009
N3 T
S$
RER Andrew NG Sung On 17.3.2000 17.3.2002-16.3.2010 1.410 200,000
11.10.2000 11.10.2002-10.10.2010 1.600 200,000
5.8.2002 5.8.2004-4.8.2012 1.250 190,000
25.6.2003 25.6.2005-24.6.2013 2.500 190,000
R Richard KU Yuk Hing 25.6.2003 25.6.2005-24.6.2013 2.500 170,000
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES (continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of directors and chief executive or their
spouses and children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during the year.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the directors or chief
executive of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors or
the chief executive of the Company or their respective associates to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company
or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2009, the following persons (not being a director or chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, or who was, directly or indirectly,
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital
carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of the
Company:

ATRERITROZADLE

BEEBERER Percentage of

e 5% Number of issued share capital

Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares held of the Company

Schneider Electric Industries SAS A 34,557,961 6.29%
Beneficial owner

Well Glory International Limited A 88,065,432 16.03%

BRUA EPTHEERSN  R-ZRENF=A=+—H ' A7
EERBELARBEAALT(ERR R ZEERE
BN R RIEE S LRI + R RE A
RAZ AR B SARBD 2 R TOAR -~ M
ATEEXERMEA TR AR BBIRAE _ LEMIE
ST EITIRERER 2 E R B AT EES % 3
LA e

THARE S - BIRE - RRER SR

i & B IS R MR35 Pl Z FE AR S - AR AR
“ETNF=ZA=1+—H - BEERTEZ RS
% BERGE - RBAEE S EMBLUER - REFE -
WIS 2 BERCHE - SR RE SR U R T
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Beneficial owner

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, the directors and the chief
executive of the Company are not aware of any person (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Part XV of the SFO,
or who was, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than share options as set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Company had no outstanding convertible securities, options,
warrants or other similar rights as at 31 March 2009 and there had been no
exercise of convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES
Details of the retirement benefit schemes of the Group are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers accounted for 12% and 27%, respectively, of the Group’s
total turnover for the year.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier and
five largest suppliers accounted for 8% and 20%, respectively, of the Group’s
total purchases for the year.

None of the directors, their associates, or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) has any interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, throughout the year ended 31 March
2009, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company'’s
issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Details of the Company’s audit committee and remuneration committee are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 28 to 32.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS
Details of post balance sheet events are set out in note 46 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Victor LO Chung Wing
Chairman & Chief Executive
31 July 2009
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF GOLD PEAK INDUSTRIES (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Gold Peak
Industries (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 43 to 126, which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet and the Company’s balance sheet as at 31 March
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates
that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2009 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements wherein the directors of the Company
have set out the uncertainties relating to the recoverability of the
outstanding principal and related interest of the Tarway Loan (as defined
in note 27(b)) that amounts to HK$321,943,000 in aggregate as at 31
March 2009. In this regard, the directors of the Company have commenced
discussions with the debtors and, at the date of this report, an in principle
agreement has been reached with the debtors on a Repayment Plan (as
defined in note 27(b)). The full settlement of the balance of the Tarway
Loan under the Repayment Plan is subject to the uncertainties set out in
note 4 under “Key sources of estimation uncertainty” under the caption
“Recoverability of the Tarway Loan”.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

31 July 2009
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Year ended 31 March 2009 HE—-ZEZHAFE=A= HIEFE
2009 2008
FffaE FEx FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$’000
I=E 2] Turnover 7 1,313,641 1,477,464
SHE KA Cost of sales (964,143) (1,072,114)
EF Gross profit 349,498 405,350
EH bl A Other income 165,359 207,441
$HE Ry tH Selling and distribution expenses (182,372) (212,406)
THXE Administrative expenses (262,617) (293,870)
Hihs H Other expenses (23,564) (39,052)
I E R BB E 2 Wk Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments 8 - 88,638
REMFNFEZHE Change in fair value of investment properties (10,508) 4,020
AL ERE ZREBE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
investments (101,471)
BATS AR 2N Finance costs 9 (70,009) (126,371)
P B & A R 4R Share of results of associates 56,530 104,106
HE—MHBAR, EEHE—RH Gain (loss) on disposal/deemed partial

B 7*51 W (EE) disposal of a subsidiary 10,632 (135)
EELE D, HEHEAT Gain (loss) on deemed partial disposal/

W 2 Wz (E518) disposal of associates 4,237 (4,765)
Br# AT (518 ) B F (Loss) profit before taxation 10 (64,285) 132,956
FiE Taxation 12 (11,829) (30,804)
2F (58 ER (Loss) profit for the year (76,114) 102,152
R Attributable to:

RAREARRE Equity shareholders of the Company (65,329) 70,415

2 (LT Minority interests (10,785) 31,737

(76,114) 102,152
BRE Dividends 13

R HB Interim 5,493 16,479

REA Final 8,239 10,986
SR (E5E) 2R (Loss) earnings per share 14

EARGENL) Basic (11.89) HK cents 12.82 HK cents

E (B1L) Diluted N/A  12.81 HK cents
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As at 31 March 2009 R=-ZZHE=A=+-—H

\/
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#*

2009 2008
P THET FAT
NOTES HK$°000 HK$'000
EREEE Non-current assets
REME Investment properties 15 103,240 117,210
ME -« BE N&E Property, plant and equipment 16 236,531 270,196
J"EHTEEMIE Prepaid lease payments 17 24,641 36,156
P B & A Al i Interests in associates 19 1,814,803 1,882,167
AJ 4 ﬁ%&ﬁ Available-for-sale investments 20 281,133 416,164
R HAfE W BRIE Long term receivables 21 46,843 371,658
HERK Technical know-how 22 3,502 7,737
EZ Trademarks 23 35,553 39,736
kS Goodwill 24 59,143 58,166
2,605,389 3,199,190
REEE Current assets
FE Inventories 26 254,644 382,572
FEURBRIE « FEUEE R FENFRTE Debtors, bills receivable and prepayments 27 904,413 1,197,599
Tt RERE Prepaid lease payments 17 666 951
FEUTRZ B Dividend receivable 295 2,087
BB Taxation recoverable 244 213
RITHETF T EBEE Bank balances, deposits and cash 28 268,445 312,191
1,428,707 1,895,613
REAE Current liabilities
ERERIENER Creditors and accrued charges 29 232,346 380,774
JEFiIE Taxation payable 37,839 43,405
MBHERE(—FAEER) Obligations under finance leases
— amount due within one year 30 1,479 1
RITERNEEEE Bank loans and import loans 31 1,085,861 1,311,109
RITES Bank overdrafts 31 11,474 6,894
1,368,999 1,742,193
RBEEZE Net current assets 59,708 153,420
BEERERBER Total assets less current liabilities 2,665,097 3,352,610
EREBAE Non-current liabilities
MBHAEEE(—FEER) Obligations under finance leases
—amount due after one year 30 2,220 14
Féﬁﬂ Borrowings 32 836,625 1,217,940
EEFIEAE Deferred taxation liabilities 33 17,324 16,808
856,169 1,234,762
EERE Net assets 1,808,928 2,117,848
ERRFE Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 34 274,643 274,643
] Reserves 890,968 1,108,585
R R R L 2 i Equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company 1,165,611 1,383,228
B A AR AR Share option reserve of a listed subsidiary 10,076 8,618
DR R RERS Minority interests 633,241 726,002
RERE Total equity 1,808,928 2,117,848

FAZHEF126BFTRZERAFHBREK  ERN_TF
NELA=+—HAHEERBEB  THATEEKRRK

== are signed on its behalf by:
‘g RER Victor LO Chung Wing  Andrew NG Sung On
EZE = Director Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 43 to 126 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 31 July 2009 and



BALANCE SHEET BES L%

As at 31 March 2009 W= F=ZA=+—
2009 2008
FffaE FHET FAT
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
EREBEE Non-current assets
KEME Investment properties 15 125,513 139,274
ME - BB N&E Property, plant and equipment 16 40,987 37,230
B ERIE Prepaid lease payments 17 25,632 26,344
FriG ft B A RlfE e Interests in subsidiaries 18 1,267,314 1,306,492
NGV Amounts due from subsidiaries 18 80,032 146,754
1,539,478 1,656,094
REBEE Current assets
FEURBRTA N B 0 Debtors and prepayments 33,767 56,633
TBHEERIE Prepaid lease payments 17 712 712
RIZINGIVES Amounts due from subsidiaries 18 288,090 413,720
RITHETF - FREBES Bank balances, deposits and cash 28 42,323 162,173
364,892 633,238
REIEE Current liabilities
J,‘EHEEIE&E?FH Creditors and accrued charges 22,637 11,892
R A] Amounts due to subsidiaries 18 5,522 130,660
5 E EEEE(—il?qu;&) Obligations under finance leases
— amount due within one year 30 707 -
RITER Bank loans 31 544,018 409,667
572,884 552,219
REN(BE)EEFE Net current (liabilities) assets (207,992) 81,019
BEERERBER Total assets less current liabilities 1,331,486 1,737,113
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
I NGIE O Amounts due to subsidiaries 18 11,721 20,292
ﬁﬁ“?ﬁfffﬂ*i& EE) Obligations under finance leases
—amount due after one year 30 1,033
&=k Borrowings 32 329,399 584,000
342,153 604,292
EEZEE Net assets 989,333 1,132,821
EXR#E Capital and reserves
¥ Share capital 34 274,643 274,643
&l Reserves 36 714,690 858,178
BRES Shareholders’ funds 989,333 1,132,821
B RER Victor LO Chung Wing Andrew NG Sung On
EBEF EZE Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #r&

Year ended 31 March 2009 #HZE-ZZFAE=A=+—HILFE

A%

ETTE

L
58 WELA
RARF iR
e BARR 1
NEER RARE  RERE Attributable Share
B BE  Available- to equity option  ABRE
B BARE  EEES  Poperty REHE  RARE Gt forsdle  REZE  REMF sharcholders  reserve %
Share Share Legal revaluation Translation Capital redemption investments  Dividend  Retained ofthe ofalisted  Minority L%
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve profits ~ Company ~ subsidiary interests Total
T ThT Tin Thn ThT THL Tin T Thr Tin T ThT Tin Thn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(Hiz¥36) (Biz¥36)
(note 36) (note 36)
THE GROUP
R=FTtEmA-A At 1 April 2007 274643 463935 14,865 98,189 (140,491) 1,093 35358 8590 16479 654199 1,426,860 4654 781128 2,212,642
5 Currency realignment - - - -0 - - - - - - 1036 3203
FEBE DI R Share of reserves of associates - - - - 32,546 - - - - - 32,546 - 15,740 48,286
AL EREATE Change in fair value of
28 available-for-sale investments - - - - - - - 32,998 - - 32,99 - - 32,9%
NRABERRZ A Net income recognised directly
in equity - - - - 54333 - - 32,998 - - 87,331 - 25,976 113,307
A EREEARE Adjustment arising from transfer of
BENTER available-for-sale investments to
188 interest in associates - - - - (11,010) 1,113 - 80,348 - (113059)  (42,608) 1,568 (18,15)  (59,196)
HEREAA Disposal of associates - - (35 - - (1,074) - - - (1,109) - (135)  (1.244)
HEAHHER Disposal of available-for-sale
investments - - - - - - - (88,638) - - (88,638) - (32679)  (121317)
REEARILELE Reversal of reserve of associate on
FEEEEEANGREE  disposal of available-for-sale
investments by associates - - - - - - - (36,231) - - (36,231) - (16,026)  (52,257)
2ERT Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - 70415 70415 - 3737 102,152
SEEBIERARTE Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - (35) - 1333 39 - (11,523) - (42,684)  (10,840) 1,568 (9,283) (18555
ENEE Transfer of reserves - - - - - 3,561 - - - (3,561) - - - -
RHENE RERD Reserves released upon disposal of
properties - - - (11242) - - - - - 11,242 -
FEBENARE Share of reserve of associates - - - - - 166 - - - - 166 23% 113 3,695
BANBAAE ER Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (3583) (3,583)
EEHE-HHBAR Deemed disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - - 135 135
DERRARERE Capital contribution by
minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - 494 494
HFOERRRE Dividend paid to minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (022 (@0)
BIRERE Dividend paid
“TRLERERE - 2007 final dividend - - - - - - - - (16479) - (16479) - - (16479)
-ZZZ)\EhEkRE - 2008 interim dividend = = = = = = = = (16479)  (16479) = = (16,479)
=) Dividend proposed
-ZEE)\EXRERE - 2008 final dividend - - - - - - - - 10,986 (10,986) - - - -
- - - (11,242) - 3721 - - (5493) (19784 (32792 2,3% (@5843) (76,239
RZENFZAZT-H  At31March 2008 4643 463935 14,830 86,947 (97,168) 4,859 35358 (2933) 10,986 591,771 1383228 8618 726002 2,117,848




i

58 WEAE
REAT HRE
e BABR R
NEER RARE  RERR Attributable Share
BE & Available- 10 equity option  VEKR
BE  BARE  EEEE  Poperty REHE  RARE Gt forsdle  REBE  REMH sharcholders  reserve %
Share Share Legal revaluation Translation Capital redemption investments  Dividend  Retained ofthe ofalisted  Minority At
capital ~ premium surplus reserve  reserve  reserve reserve  reserve  reserve profits ~ Company ~ subsidiary interests Total
T ThT Tin T ThT Tin Thn ThT ThT Thn T Thr Tin Thn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(Hi36) (H3t36)
(note 36) (note 36)
R=FZ)\§mA-R At 1 April 2008 04643 463935 14,830 86,947 (97,168) 4,859 35358 2933) 10986 591771 1383228 8618 726002 2,117,848
fLE: Currency realignment - - - - (130115) - - - - - (130,115 - (62075  (192,190)
FEBENARE Share of reserves of associates - - - - (8123) 33 - 2,106 - - (5,694) 1,458 (26100 (6,846)
WREEZEAZZ(FER)  Net (expense) income recognised
WA directly in equity - - - - (138239 33 - 2,106 - - (135809) 1,458 (64,685) (199,036
2EEE Loss for the year - - - - - - - - - (65329) (65329 - (10785)  (76,114)
SEEBTERARTE Total recognised income and
expense for the year - - - - (13823%9) kYE} - 2,106 - (65329)  (201,138) 1,458 (75,470)  (275,150)
EIN- Transfer of reserves - - - - - 499 = = = (499) - - - -
R &N iR Reserves released upon disposal of
properties - - - (3.27) - - - - - 3207 - - - -
B \WBATEER Acquisition of additional interests
in subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - (5,427) (5,427)
fFOERRERE Dividend paid to minority interests - - - - - - - - - - - - (11864)  (11,864)
ERERE Dividend paid
VERERE - 2008 final dividend - - - - - - - - (10,986) - (10,986) - - (10,986)
-ZEENFRERE - 2009 interim dividend - - - - - - - - - (54%)  (549) - - (549)
BERE Dividend proposed
-“ETNERERS - 2009 final dividend - - - - - - - - 8239 (8239 - - - -
- - - (3.21) - 499 - - 2747) (10954 (16,479) - (17.291)  (33,770)
REFEAF=A=T-H  At31March 2009 274,643 463,935 14,830 83670  (235,406) 5,681 35,358 (827) 8,239 515,488 1,165,611 10,076 633241 1,808,928
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT #ZRelRERER

Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-—ZEZhFE=A=+—HLLEE

2009 2008
FTET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
RexBsRERA Cash inflows from operating activities
AT (EE ) A (Loss) profit before taxation (64,285) 132,956
HEE Adjustments for:
[N E Share of results of associates (56,530) (104,106)
et 3 Amortisation of trademarks 4,183 4,183
BRI Amortisation of technical know-how 3,880 3,880
BEREAERE Impairment loss recognised on technical know-how 266 23,482
B\ — &N FREIMERS 7 3 Discount on acquisition of additional interest in an associate - (1,033)
M - BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 41,764 44,743
TSR Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 793 951
HEBNHEERE 2 W= Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments (6,053) -
HEME  FE&&Ez (W) R (Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment (7,134) 2,058
fEE HEMENRINER (Gain) loss on deemed partial disposal/disposal of associates (4,237) 4,765
HERE ATz () B8
HE—FHMEA ﬁ/ﬁ*ﬁj%—ﬁﬁ (Gain) loss on disposal/deemed partial disposal
MBAROERe (M) BiE of a subsidiary (10,632) 135
TEEWJ%AWEZE&M Change in fair value of investment properties 10,508 (4,020)
TEMBTAEATE 2 SE Change in fair value of derivative financial instruments = (5,471)
FEWA Interest income (59,082) (94,215)
RITREMETFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 69,920 126,339
MBHEERERNS Interest on obligations under finance leases 89 32
B EMWA Dividend income (10,811) (18,000)
HERHHERE 2 W Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments - (88,638)
A ERE 2R ERE Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale investments 101,471 -
EERERE Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 1,250 1,935
BN\ AR 2 R ERE Impairment loss recognised on interests in associates 22,048 2,021
SNVEE KRR BN B 2 R Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on inter-company
BRI E balances (43,124) 1,814
HEKEESBBR A ERERE Operating cash flows before movements in working capital (5,716) 33,811
FEE 2R GEM) Decrease (increase) in inventories 96,801 (102,060)
FEWERTE « SR RIENFIEZ Decrease in debtors, bills receivable and prepayments 64,940 67,242
>
ERNEREBEREBR RS Decrease in creditors and accrued charges (117,561) (99,450)
e M%ﬂ&}xi(ﬁﬁﬁ)zfﬁi Cash generated from (used in) operations 38,464 (100,457)
EAEEFE Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (2,814) (3,608)
BREBTE XRLW\ Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 105 317
B EBAINE A R FIE Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (7,900) (5,938)
B U EE AINEL A 3[R R TBIR 0 Taxation in other jurisdictions refunded 189 395
AR EN (FH) 2R e E58 Net cash generated from (used in) operating activities 28,044 (109,291)




2009 2008
BT FTERT FHET
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
REXBHRERE Cash flows from investing activities
HESBERNEME RS 2 EKRE Proceeds from consideration receivable for
the disposal of the Group’s electrical
business in Australia 403,070 -
Bl E N EZRE Dividends received from associates 94,437 172,167
B A S Interest received 32,528 30,431
HE = A Bl IR Proceeds from disposal of associates 24,203 9,588
HEWE - HE RRE 2T Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment 18,358 1,916
HEBRNEEFIB LA Proceeds from disposal of prepaid lease payments 17,060 -
BHARE Dividends received 10,388 18,000
HE—REA R (EMRR Disposal of a subsidiary (net of cash and
REERE) cash equivalent disposed of) 38 6,323 -
HEREYE 2 A Proceeds from disposal of investment properties 3,462 18,800
BAME - BE K& Purchase of property, plant and equipment (30,461) (35,993)
BB SN R 2 BIMERS Acquisition of additional interests in associates (30,000) (15,458)
BAKB R REIMERFTRE Consideration paid on acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries (8,624) (7,063)
BANMBAR(EHKRESRS Acquisition of subsidiaries (net of cash
REERE) and cash equivalents acquired) 39 (3,580) (9,741)
BARMEHERE Purchase of available-for-sale investments (1,414) (22,057)
BABS N RIESFTNRE Consideration paid on acquisition of interests
in associates - (1,245)
REAEUERZ 230N Increase in long term receivables = (8,444)
HERHHERE 2 IR Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 174,443
BB EREL 74 B8 Net cash from investing activities 535,750 325,344
BMERERE Cash flows from financing activities
EBERITER Repayment of borrowings (974,848) (1,289,816)
EAIRIT R EAME TR Z TS Interest on bank and other borrowings paid (64,836) (139,688)
BERKRE Dividends paid (16,479) (32,958)
ENHBARVEREZEE Dividends paid to minority shareholders of
subsidiaries (11,864) (44,022)
EEWBHEREZAS Principal payments for obligations under
finance leases (1,200) (1,574)
ENURKEEEEZFIE Interest on obligations under finance leases paid (89) (32)
FIBITER New borrowings raised 463,649 1,121,287
B2 B DB R AR AR AR Capital contributed by minority shareholders
of subsidiaries = 494
REER RS %5 Net cash used in financing activities (605,667) (386,309)
ReREEReFDFE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (41,873) (170,256)
ﬁ%ﬂzfﬁﬁ)&%ﬁfﬁ% Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 305,297 475,568
HNES SRR BB 7 & Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (6,453) (15)
FRZBESREBERS Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 41 256,971 305,297
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZZAF=A=+—-HLFE
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GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars which is the functional currency of the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 47 and 48,
respectively.

APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has applied the following amendments
and interpretations (“new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"), which are or have
become effective.

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7
(Amendments)

Reclassification of financial assets

HK(IFRIC)* — INT 12
HK(IFRIC) - INT 14

Service concession arrangements
HKAS 19 - The limit on a defined benefit asset,
minimum funding requirements and their interaction

*  |FRIC represents the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how the
results and financial position for the current and prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior period
adjustment has been recognised.



2. APPLICATION OF NEW OR REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised

2. FERHARBITEBMBRELERE)

ZIS;‘%jﬁﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁ‘é‘ﬁﬁT’i‘JEﬁﬂﬁ@ﬁii@lZ%ﬁ&

Y ETHERI| « (SET AR o standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued but are
not yet effective.
REMBREEL(EITE) BANBREEANYE HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs'
%Eﬁ%?&i 28 (717 BRI SRR UE20092 HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 20092
BEERS15% (LE1]) BERE 225 HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of financial statements?
e HER| 538 (5T ﬁ‘é;ﬁma HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing costs?
e HER| )75 (5T A RB B RR HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and separate financial statements*
BRI SER ﬂﬁélﬁ%lﬁ&/ﬁ%ﬁqzﬁﬁa HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable financial instruments and obligations
%15?( 5E1K) arising on liquidation?
EEOIER| B398 (53] K) BBIREMIER HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible hedged items?
%/ﬁ@ﬁ%%&i ERZ1RR RIBAR « AREHERS, HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an investment in a subsidiary, jointly
BeER B (ETR) BENRIMRERD (Amendments) controlled entity or associate?

ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬂ‘%iﬁi ERIESR(BITA) BBIEE RS HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting conditions and cancellations?
RENBREEAEIR(BITR)  ERRFRLEEHRR HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group cash-settled share-based
IR 7 payment transactions’

RENBRELEAEIR(EBT)  EHEmH HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations*

RENBREEAETR(EITR)  LBIERE 3G HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving disclosures about financial instruments?
BANBHEEAES P Faic HKFRS 8 Operating segments?
EB(FRIC) - 2BEIHER BRAASTETES HK(IFRIC) - INT 9 & Embedded derivativess

BEQERE395 (B:TA) HKAS 39 (Amendments)
%%(IFRIC) 2EZ135 BHRPEN HK(IFRIC) - INT 13 Customer loyalty programmes’
EA(IFRIC) -2 EF 155 EHERETIRGS HK(IFRIC) - INT 15 Agreements for the construction of real estate3
BIB(IFRIC) - RS 165 NN EB MR E B R e HK(IFRIC) - INT 16 Hedges of a net investment in a foreign operation?
EA(IFRIC) - 2175 mMEEAD IR S BE HK(IFRIC) - INT 17 Distributions of non-cash assets to owners*
B (IFRIC) - 2L 185 REZPHAEER HK(IFRIC) - INT 18 Transfers of assets from customers?

RZBTAF AR ZRRRNFEBREN
BRMBHREEAFS R

EATR-_ZTNFLA-A

At Gt ES LU

2 RIZTNF-A-H

CEEAFLA-HR-E—

TE-A- R ERROERRARAR - RERER

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009 except the
amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009, 1 July
2009 and 1 January 2010, as appropriate

M
3 RITTNF— A B ERREOFEESRRBER 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
4 RIETNFEA—HI 2 EHRRNEE R AR 4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
5 RIE-EF— [ BEZBRRNFESRER 5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2010
s RIETNFAA=THAZBAEERZFEEN 6  Effective for annual periods ending on or after 30 June 2009
7 RIBTN\FL A B ERREEE SRR AR 7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008
8 RIZTT\F+A-BzBARNEEBHEER 8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008
S RIZTNFLA-ARZERBEOERER 9 Effective for transfer on or after 1 July 2009

EREBM RS EAEIR (KB RETE
EBA0EERBR AT —SFMA—H

ZB)NEENE

HE - EE

TR 2755

(RIEFD BT EEERRN—HNBARNESR

BEZRNE
SHAEIEETER -
ISR &

ﬁ?@ = TE HAE A R
EHENE
ERERERE -

2RHAREZ KRR

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the Group’s accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
April 2010. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting treatment for
changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a subsidiary. The directors
anticipate that the application of other new or revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on the
results and the financial position of the Group.
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ZAFEA RN A FEFAE S RERGERR
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at revalued amounts or fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 March
each year. Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of the subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated income statement from the effective date
of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All inter-company transactions and balances within the Group have been
eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests
in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of
the original business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are
allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent that
the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses.

Business combination

The acquisition of business is accounted for using the purchase method.
The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair
values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred
or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under
HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” are recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Acquisition achieved in stages

When an acquisition of associates/subsidiaries is achieved in stages,
goodwill arising represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group's interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the relevant associates/subsidiaries at the date
of each acquisition. Any adjustment to those fair values relating to the
acquirers’ interests held previously is a revaluation and is recognised in
equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of net assets and operations of
another entity or an associate for which the agreement date is before
1 January 2005 represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group'’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of the relevant business or associate at the date of acquisition.

The Group has discontinued amortisation from 1 April 2005 onwards,
and such goodwill is tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the cash-generating unit to which the
goodwill relates may be impaired (see the accounting policy below).

Goodwill arising on acquisitions on or after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business or an associate for which
the agreement date is on or after 1 January 2005 represents the excess
of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the relevant
business or associate at the date of acquisition. Such goodwill is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

Capitalised goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is presented
separately in the consolidated balance sheet. Capitalised goodwill arising
on an acquisition of an associate (which is accounted for using the
equity method) is included in the cost of the investment of the relevant
associate.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition of a business is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating
unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the
cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised directly in the
consolidated income statement. An impairment loss for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

For goodwill arising on acquisition of an associate, the goodwill included
in the carrying amount of interests in an associate is not separately
tested for impairment. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the
interests in an associate is tested for impairment by comparing the
Group's share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the associate with its carrying amount.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or an
associate, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in
the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

On acquisition of additional interests in subsidiaries, goodwill is
calculated as the difference between the carrying amounts of identified
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries attributable to the additional
interests acquired and the consideration paid at the date of acquisition.

53



54

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS rines

=
AR

SR E ML @

Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZZNAF=ZA=+—-HLFE

TBRHBE )

AR

WA ToA TE R R ek 38 G R SR TR S 2
REMCHIE (IR 30) + A HRE R R A B AT
B -

EMHEREMNERERDEFRRER

BRISWA R SR ARAS S FERR.

HEWAREREF AR REER -

TG EE 2 M BUATIAR & Ko H B R R L s
REERTA » AR KB AIRE 75 E ETRFHFH
NIEHKER SR EEE 2 FREEZ X -

BRE BB AT 5 B B FEE /A HE U R R O ey

2|
s ©

B DR
R R R 2 E AR E AR E IR P51 2
MEBEFARRBNEERFBR -

&
W
5
all

BERNREAREERHETREAZENZA
A - MFEMB AR HNA SRR 2R - BEX
HENEA2EFRE R 2B REEREKE
PREGI R ARG ZERRZES -

BERRzRENEERRBDRERETHAA
FBIHRERN - RigEDE - RIS R AIRETIAK
RN EAREBEENPIB RSN R 2 FEER
- BEEFAEERREERIINGAEEAR
= o BERBEMEE R RBBEER BB EMIG
ZHE N AR (BRERERRNZE 2 AR
FRECENERRAER)  KEBRIEER
HAbE— 2B - BNBEBREEHBIE R
WRAE  EEUAEEEBREEIHEE
ERAKRZEE RN ZRIBARR -

BEENREANEE 7 BENRETRS - KE
REBHGEREE  SEUAEEREAREZER
AlZEERR -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the ordinary course of business, net of discounts.

Sales of goods is recognised when goods are delivered and title has
passed.

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis over the relevant
lease.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established.

Subsidiaries
Investments in subsidiaries are included in the balance sheet of the
Company at cost less any identified impairment loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence
and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint
control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in
these financial statements using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition
changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate, less any
identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and
a liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
unrealised profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the relevant associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

Investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the
investment property is permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the asset is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost or valuation less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional relief provided by HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the requirement to make regular
revaluations of the Group’s land and buildings which had been carried
at revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995, and accordingly no
further revaluation of land and buildings is carried out. Prior to 30
September 1995, the revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of
these assets was credited to the property revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt with as an expense to the
extent that they exceed the balance, if any, on the property revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the same asset. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset, the corresponding
revaluation surplus is transferred to retained profits.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or valuation of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives and
after taking into account of their estimated residual value, using the
straight line method or the reducing balance method, at the following
rates per annum:

Straight line method:
Leasehold buildings 4% or over the remaining period of
respective leases where shorter

2% t0 3.2%

10% or over the remaining period of

Freehold buildings

Leasehold improvements
respective leases where shorter

Reducing balance method:

10% to 33':%

20% to 50%

10% to 33':%

Machinery and equipment

Moulds and tools

Others (representing mainly
furniture, fixtures, equipment
and motor vehicles)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets, or where shorter, the terms of
the leases.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item) is included in the consolidated
income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets

(a) Trademarks
Trademarks are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised
on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives.

(b) Technical know-how
The cost of acquiring rights to technical know-how for the
production of new products is amortised on a straight line method,
over a period of three to five years from the date of acquisition or
the licence period, whichever is shorter, over their estimated useful
lives.

(c) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development
expenditure is recognised only if it is anticipated that the
development costs incurred on a clearly-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activities.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated intangible
asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when
the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria. Where
no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible
asset is reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
acquired separately. The resultant asset is amortised on a straight-
line basis over its estimated useful live.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than goodwill)

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
standard, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease under that standard.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss
is recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
standard.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance
sheet when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group'’s financial assets included loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace. The accounting policies adopted in
respect of each category of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables (including long term receivables, trade and
other receivables, bills receivable, dividend receivable, amounts due
from subsidiaries, bank balances, deposits and cash) are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or not classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables or held-to-maturing investments.
At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition, available-
for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and recognised in
profit or loss. The Group designated the shareholder’s loan relating to an
unlisted investment as available-for-sale financial assets since the Group
intends to capitalise the shareholders’ loans as further investments in
these investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance
sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is considered

to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets of the Group, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

¢ significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
e default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or
financial re-organisation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as debtors, assets that are
assessed not to be impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments
in the portfolio past the credit period of 30 to 120 days, observable
changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment
loss directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade and other
receivables, and amounts due from subsidiaries where the carrying
amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When trade and other receivables are considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to consolidated income
statement.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets will not be
reversed in consolidated income statement in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly
in equity.

Financial liability and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liability and equity (continued)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in
the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The Group’s
financial liabilities generally included other financial liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including creditors, amounts due to subsidiaries and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid or payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
calculated using the first-in, first-out method.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated income
statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable and deductible. The Group'’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred taxation assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised. Deferred tax is
charged or credited to the consolidated income statement, except when
it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee.
All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at
their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated balance sheet as a finance lease
obligation. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are
charged directly to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of a lease of land and building are
considered separately for the purpose of lease classification, unless
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and
building elements, in which case, the entire lease is generally treated as
a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and equipment. To
the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably,
leasehold interests in land are accounted for as operating leases except
for those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties
under the fair value mode.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that
entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and
on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value, are included
in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated
into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their
income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised as a
separate component of equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the defined contribution retirement plan are charged as
expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 April 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period or recognised as an expense in
full at the grant date when the share options granted vest immediately,
with a corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The effect of the
change in estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7 November 2002, or
granted after 7 November 2002 and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in the
consolidated financial statements until such time as the options are
exercised, and no charge is recognised in the consolidated income
statement in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded
as additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and
the excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of
the shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies which are
described in note 3, management has made the following judgments
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements within the next financial year.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 March 2009, the carrying amount of
goodwill is HK$59,143,000 (2008: HK$58,166,000) after an impairment
loss of HK$1,250,000 (2008: HK$1,935,000) was recognised during the
year. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note
25.

Warranty claims associated with the disposal of the Group’s electrical
business in Australia

In 2003, the disposal of the Group'’s electrical business in Australia, being
electrical wiring devices and installation systems (“EWDIS") business,
to Schneider Electric S.A. (“Schneider”) included a warranty clause for
contingencies. Prior to the expiry of the warranty period, an intellectual
property claim was instituted against the disposed EWDIS business in
Australia. As at 31 March 2009, the litigation has not yet been resolved.
The result of this claim and the timing of the resolution affect the final
discharge of warranty liabilities and the release of the retention monies
and the related interest in an aggregate amount of HK$33.3 million
retained by Schneider. Management believes that the intellectual
property claim is without merits and is expected to be decided in the
Group's favour, without any material claim against the retention monies
outstanding.

Recoverability of the Tarway Loan (as defined in note 27(b))

In respect of recoverability of the Tarway Loan of HK$321,943,000 as
set out in note 27(b), the Group and the family members (hereinafter
referred to as “Gerard Family”) of the major shareholders of Gerard
Corporation Pty. Limited (“Gerard Corporation”) have reached an
agreement in principle on the repayment due to and providing a
second charge in favour of the Group. Management considered that the
following factors will have an effect on the Repayment Plan (as defined
in note 27(b)):

(i) Completion of the selective capital reduction of GP Industries
Limited (“GP Ind”), a subsidiary of the Company, as set out in note
46(d) (“SCR") is conditional, inter alia, upon (i) approval by the
shareholders of GP Ind at its shareholders’” meeting to be convened;
(ii) sanction of the SCR by the High Court of the Republic of
Singapore; and (iii) the release of the 55,681,443 shares of GP Ind
involved in the SCR which have been assigned by the Gerard Family
to Schneider Electric Australia Holdings Pty Ltd.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Recoverability of the Tarway Loan (as defined in note 27(b)) (continued)

(ii) The release by Schneider of the HK$26.8 million retention money of
which Gerard Family has agreed to be assigned to the Group and the
completion of the assignment agreement.

(iii) According to the Repayment Plan, assets of Gerard Corporation
will be realised in an orderly manner and the proceeds therefrom
will be used to repay loans due to the Gerard Family which, in turn,
will fund the repayment by the Gerard Family to the Group. While
management of Gerard Corporation advised that the forecast
proceeds from disposal is expected to exceed the Tarway Loan due,
prevailing market condition and the timing of the realisation will
affect the final amount realised and the repayment schedule.

(iv) Repayment of loan depends on the proceeds from the asset
realisation plan being paid to the Gerard Family to settle their
shareholder’s loan and for the Gerard Family to apply the funds fully
and in priority to any other debts to repay the Group. Management
has made due enquiry with Gerard Corporation and the Gerard
Family. They have committed to use the proceeds for repayment of
the Tarway Loan as a priority. In addition, the Gerard Family had
agreed to provide a first charge on these proceeds for repayment. A
formal agreement in respect of this is yet to be signed.

(v) As the shareholder’s loan of Gerard Corporation due to the Gerard
Family is less than the amount due to the Group, repayment of the
loan depends on other Gerard Family’s trusts who are shareholders
of Gerard Corporation agreeing to the proceeds being used
for repayment of their shareholder’s loan as settlement for the
remaining Gerard Family loan. However, 34.33% of shares in Gerard
Corporation held by the Gerard Family have been pledged to the
Group as security.

Estimated impairment of trade and other receivable

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the Group takes
into consideration the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
As at 31 March 2009, the carrying amount of trade and other receivable
(excluding consideration receivable for the disposal of Group’s electrical
business in Australia and disposal of partial interest of investment in
Gerard Corporation) is HK$528,985,000 (2008: HK$571,215,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$20,181,000 (2008: HK$35,918,000).)
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5. EXREKRER 5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
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The Company manages its capital to ensure that the entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
borrowings disclosed in notes 30, 31 and 32, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained profits as disclosed
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital
structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing
debt.

B THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
BT B3ER Categories of financial instruments
REE KAT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
THEx FHET THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE Financial assets
fER R R AR TR Loans and receivables
— RHAENERTE - Long term receivables 46,843 371,658 - =
— ERE TR E IR TR —Trade and other
receivables 868,491 1,133,648 29,294 48,530
— B A RRK — Amounts due from
subsidiaries - - 368,122 560,474
— RS - Dividend receivable 295 2,087 = =
—RITHEF  FREBRE - Bank balances, deposits
and cash 268,445 312,191 42,323 162,173
A ERE Available-for-sale
investments 281,133 416,164 - -
1,465,207 2,235,748 439,739 771,177
% aE Financial liabilities
LA S5 X AN B At amortised cost
— ERRIE R E M ER K — Creditors and other
payables 173,330 232,059 20,655 3,431
—RHIBARFIE - Amounts due to
subsidiaries - - 17,243 150,952
—HBEEEE - Obligations under
finance leases 3,699 25 1,740 -
—RITEFRREEREE - Bank loans and
import loans 1,085,861 1,311,109 544,018 409,667
—RITEX - Bank overdrafts 11,474 6,894 = =
— &% - Borrowings 836,625 1,217,940 329,399 584,000

2,110,989 2,768,027 913,055 1,148,050
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s and the Company’s financial instruments include long term
receivables, trade and other receivables, amounts due from subsidiaries,
dividend receivable, bank balances, deposits and cash, available-for-sale
investments, creditors and other payables, amounts due to subsidiaries,
obligations under finance leases and borrowings. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk (currency risk and
interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how
to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The Group’s and the
Company'’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

Market risk

Currency risk

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities at 31 March 2009 and 2008 are as
follows:

BE =L |

Assets Liabilities
2009 2008 2009 2008
TERT FHET TET FHT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BINTT Australian dollars 439,823 642,852 - -
H Japanese Yen 2,492 1,626 717 131
% United States dollars 262,111 280,031 203,427 261,756
ARH Renminbi 78,613 135,838 76,733 57,182
HEE Sterling pound 33,495 18,762 13,896 54,896
BT Euro 50,642 50,903 38,272 36,124
867,176 1,130,012 333,045 410,089

SNERE E 2B BAREREE 2 EERBEE
HER - EEESRISEAREINERR - IR
WERE BEIPEARINE R -

AARWEAZERANE KRR -

Exposures to foreign currency risks are managed as far as possible by
matching assets and liabilities in the same currency denomination. The
management keeps on monitoring foreign exchange exposure and
considers hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

The Company’s exposure to the currency risk is insignificant.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and
decrease in the functional currency of the respective group entities
against the relevant foreign currencies. The analysis excluded the
fluctuation between United States dollars and Hong Kong dollars
because Hong Kong dollars are pegged to United States dollars.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the year
end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The analysis illustrates
the impact for a 5% strengthening of the functional currency of the
respective group entities against the relevant currency and a negative
number below indicates as an increase in loss of the year 2009 (2008:
decrease in profit) and vice versa. For a 5% weakening of the functional
currency of the respective group entities against the relevant currency,
there would be an equal and opposite effect on the results.

F5E

THE GROUP
2009 2008
TERT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SENT Australian dollars (21,991) (32,143)
H Japanese Yen (89) (75)
S United States dollars (8,016) (914)
AREE Renminbi (94) (3,933)
e Sterling pound (980) 1,807
BT Euro (619) (739)
HANAARFEE - FIEXREINSY% - AARHEEE In addition, a 5% increase in foreign exchange for intercompany balance

%ﬁ@%ﬁﬁzgﬂﬁﬂwi‘a‘bﬂmzm68,000/%75 s

FI=mRR

REBRARBEAR LAFTREES ?JW&ZP“”
(RHE21) B2 A HENZER TS REK
fak (RHfFE21 RFRE27) - H5H TE’]fEﬁ
ROEKTE28) » IFEEMBITEFLEEEER
RITE (R M3 RER(RHEE32) BRI 23R
SRR o

$§%&$®iﬁ%ﬂ§?ﬁ§i§i@fljw}$%‘\iﬁﬁ

EROFIEMS - AT - EREEHEBEER
BE - LRUBREEE —SEPRSAR -

would result in increase in loss of approximately HK$25,168,000 in the
current year.

Interest rate risk

The Group and the Company are primarily exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loan receivables (see note 21) and cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate loan receivables (see
notes 21 and note 27), bank balances at prevailing market rates (see
note 28), variable-rate bank loans and import loans and bank overdrafts
(see note 31) and borrowings (see note 32).

The Group and the Company will enter into interest rate swaps to
mitigate part of the exposure to interest rate risk, if necessary. In
addition, the management will monitor the situation and consider
further hedging such exposure should the need arises.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to interest rates on
financial assets and financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk
management section of this note. The Group’s and the Company’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), Singapore Interbank Offered
Rate (“SIBOR"), Australian bank bill swap rate or Prime Rate arising from
the Group'’s and the Company’s bank borrowings and loan receivables.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for variable-rate loan receivables,
consideration receivables, bank balances and bank borrowings, as
disclosed in notes 21, 27, 28, 31 and 32. The analysis is prepared
assuming financial instruments outstanding at the balance sheet date
were outstanding for the whole year. A 10 or 50 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in interest rates.

Except for bank balances using 10 basis points (2008: 10 basis points),
for other financial instruments, if interest rates had been 50 basis points
(2008: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2009 would
increase/decrease by HK$9,439,000 (2008: profit decrease/increase by
HK$8,550,000) and the Company'’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2009 would increase/decrease by HK$4,570,000 (2008: profit decrease/
increase by HK$5,116,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s and
the Company’s exposure to interest rates on its interest bearing bank
balances, loan receivables and variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has increased during the
current year mainly due to the increase in interest bearing net financial
liabilities. The Company’s sensitivity to interest rates has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in variable-rate bank
borrowings.

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2009, the Group and the Company’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group and the
Company due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties
and financial guarantees provided by the Group and the Company is
arising from:

— the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as
stated in the balance sheet; and

- the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial guarantee
issued by the Group and the Company as disclosed in note 42.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credlit risk (continued)

The management considers that the Group and the Company have
adequate credit control for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group and the Company
review the recoverable amount of each individual trade and other
receivables, long term receivables and shareholder’s loan to investee
at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses
are made for irrecoverable amounts. In addition, the Group and
the Company manage the credit risk of trade receivables, long term
receivables and shareholder’s loan to investee by ongoing evaluation of
the counterparties’ financial position and requesting counterparties to
provide other form of security, if consider as necessary. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s and the Company'’s
credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agents.

The Group and the Company are also exposed to the credit risk in
respect of guarantees given to banks relating to banking facilities
utilised by associate (see note 42). The management periodically reviews
financial position of that associate and considers that the Group and the
Company have adequate monitoring procedures to reduce this credit
risk.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on long term receivables
which are due from several independent third parties. The details of long
term receivables are disclosed in note 21. However, the management
considers that the Group has adequate monitoring procedures to reduce
this credit risk. Except for the above mentioned concentration of credit
risk and for liquid funds which are deposited with several banks, the
Group and the Company do not have any significant concentration of
credit risk over trade and other receivables. Trade and other receivables
consist of a large number of customers and spread across diverse
industries.

Liquidity risk

The Group and the Company finance their operations by using a
combination of borrowings and equity. Adequate lines of credit are
maintained to ensure necessary liquidity is available when required.
The management monitors the liquidity position of the Group and the
Company on a periodical basis to ensure the availability of sufficient
liguid funds to meet all obligations. With reference to the existing
unutilised facilities and newly obtained facilities up to the date of
the consolidated financial statements are authorised for issue and
after taking into account of any disposal of certain investments and
re-financing arrangments as set out in note 46, the directors of the
Company consider the source of capital for the daily operation is
sufficient.
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MEIR#E)

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

MR REEEERBER(E) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
TEELERE(E) Liquidity risk (continued)

REFBRANTMEAEBEZSLZHA 2 #1575 The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s contractual
RIAT o RELETILRE: @ ST BB EIIRE maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
REBERARRNRERZRE A EREREZIEE the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
BZIBER T ZARTIRBSREME o LRBIE financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group and

MNERASZHREN

the Company can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows.

piS
THE GROUP
REE
afExA
BER BIEFR ZIEHE
T 9FIE —FR k2 BER Carrying
Weighted On demand ZRER Total amount at
average or within Within2  undiscounted  balance sheet
interest rate 1year to 5 years cash flows date
THT TAT THT TAT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-ZZSAE=A=1-H As at 31 March 2009

EOTERBAE Non-derivative financial liabilities
FERERIE R E M AE (TR Creditors and other payables - 173,330 - 173,330 173,330
BBHEERE Obligations under finance leases 1.37 1,565 2,241 3,806 3,699
FTERNEERSE (¥#7=) Bank loans and import loans (variable rate) 2.97 1,100,126 - 1,100,126 1,085,861
RITEL (FEFIX) Bank overdrafts (variable rate) 6.50 12,219 - 12,219 11,474
fEsk (FBFIE) Borrowings (variable rate) 1.92 - 841,964 841,964 836,625
1,287,240 844,205 2,131,445 2,110,989

R=ZZEZ\F=A=1-H As at 31 March 2008

FTEMBARE Non-derivative financial liabilities
FERTERIA R E B R Creditors and other payables - 232,059 - 232,059 232,059
BBHEERE Obligations under finance leases 10.8 27 16 43 25
RITETREEEE (¥&7X) Bank loans and import loans (variable rate) 2.78 1,360,150 - 1,360,150 1,311,109
RITES (FFFX) Bank overdrafts (variable rate) 7.25 7,661 - 7,661 6,894
fE3 (F#H=%) Borrowings (variable rate) 2.82 - 1,247,790 1,247,790 1,217,940
1,599,897 1,247,806 2,847,703 2,768,027
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6.

B ITHRE) 6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
BERAREEEERBER(E) Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
TEELEE(E) Liquidity risk (continued)
. ON|
THE COMPANY
REE
afExA
ER BIHR ZEHE
IR 9FIE —FR -F BER Carrying
Weighted On demand ZRER Total amount at
average or within Within2  undiscounted  balance sheet
interest rate 1year to 5 years cash flows date
TAL FHT THT THT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R-BEAF=A=1—-H As at 31 March 2009
FOTERBEE Non-derivative financial liabilities
FER BRI R E M RE (TR Creditors and other payables - 20,655 - 20,655 20,655
RETBARIFIE Amounts due to subsidiaries - 5,522 11,721 17,243 17,243
PEHERE Obligation under finance leases 1.46 728 1,044 1172 1,740
BTER (F)F1X) Bank loans (variable rate) 2.75 556,037 - 556,037 544,018
fEF (F3HF=) Borrowings (variable rate) 2.25 - 332,726 332,726 329,399
582,942 345,491 928,433 913,055
RZZEENE=A=1—H As at 31 March 2008
FOTAMBAS Non-derivative financial liabilities
FERTBRIE M E R Creditors and other payables - 3,431 - 3,431 3,431
KB A AIZIE Amounts due to subsidiaries 130,660 20,292 150,952 150,952
RITER (;“?@jﬂ‘ <) Bank loans (variable rate) 2.75 431,184 - 431,184 409,667
B (8= Borrowings (variable rate) 2.85 - 595,369 595,369 584,000
565,275 615,661 1,180,936 1,148,050
AFE Fair value

M EERUBEEEZ X FETIZR—RRER
ZEBITE  BREMNATEERKT SRS ZE
BN EXEERMFZ R AR IREIEEMA
S

EERRUEH BN ARREES R IHBEE
MEBaE  EREERLEAFE -

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using pricing or rates from observable
current market transactions as input.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements
approximate to their fair values.
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7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS
For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into three
principal operating divisions of which their principal activities are
disclosed as follows and these divisions form the basis on which the
Group reports its primary segment information.

Principal operating divisions and their activities are:

Electronics

Batteries

Technology and
strategic

development, manufacture and distribution of
electronics and components, cables and wire
harness, loudspeakers and light fittings

development, manufacture and distribution of
batteries and battery related products through
the investment in a listed associate

distribution of high-end technological products
consisting of LED display screens and holding of
strategic investments.
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7. ¥BRMEESEE)
REBDEER Z AT :
(a) UEBDE

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
Analysis of the Group’s segment information is as follows:

(a) Business segments

—EENF 2009
R R KR
Technology
E7 Eith and &t
Electronics  Batteries  strategic Total
FTET FTERT TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EXER TURNOVER
HIMEE External sales 1,313,641 - - 1,313,641
£ RESULTS
E Segment results 3,403 = 4,049 7,452
FEHA R EHA Interest income and
dividend income

BE DD Operating divisions 57,648 - 9,000 66,648

= Corporate 3,245
Hftn & Other expenses

DI Operating divisions (1,516) = = (1,516)

3 Corporate (22,048)
TNz XER Unallocated corporate

expenses (49,831)
HAA Other income 33,093
ASWA Rental income - - 9,261 9,261
REMERTE 2 HE Change in fair value of

investment properties - - (10,508) (10,508)
AR ERE 2 RERE Impairment loss on

available-for-sale investments (101,471)
IR I Finance costs

A ED Operating divisions (38,033) = = (38,033)

= Corporate (31,976)
P NG e Share of results of associates 45,310 4,629 6,591 56,530
HE—FHEAR Gain on disposal/

fEE HE— B AR deemed partial disposal of

BinfEs 2 e a subsidiary 10,632
fEEHES R/ ERE AR Gain on deemed partial disposal/

Pl disposal of associates 4,237
BRE AR Loss before taxation (64,285)
FiE Taxation (11,829)
2EEE Loss for the year (76,114)
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(a) UAEBDE(#E)

(a) Business segments (continued)

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

—EBNELE) 2009 (continued)
R R ER
Technology
B Eith and &t
Electronics  Batteries  strategic Total
FTERT FTHERT FTET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RHEE Segment assets 1,039,662 - 63,155 1,102,817
R IR Long term receivables 46,843
BEMH Investment properties - - 103,240 103,240
FrinE & R Al Interests in associates 848,411 797,900 168,492 1,814,803
A ERE Available-for-sale investments 281,133
&4 & Gerard Corporation#h {722 Consideration receivable for
2 FENERIA the disposal of partial
interest of investment in
Gerard Corporation 321,943 - - 321,943
THABELEEE Unallocated corporate assets 363,317
AR EE Consolidated total assets 4,034,096
=i LIABILITIES
%8 Segment liabilities 212,245 - 307 212,552
&% Borrowings
manEp Operating divisions 1,061,150 - 1,352 1,062,502
1% Corporate 875,157
TREDBELERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 74,957
maRaE Consolidated total liabilities 2,225,168
Hitt g OTHER INFORMATION
BN Capital expenditure
RS Operating divisions 20,773 - - 20,773
©% Corporate 14,684
W& Ko Depreciation and amortisation
—W¥  BERBE — Property, plant and
equipment
LEDE Operating divisions 35,133 - 352 35,485
= Corporate 6,279
—EXERE - Technical know-how 3,880 - - 3,880
—HERNFEERE - Prepaid lease payments - - 793 793
— iz — Trademarks 4,183 - - 4,183
EEANBAR,/ Addition of goodwill arising
WA RIFESMER from acquisition of
(el Pd=E subsidiaries/additional
interests in subsidiaries 4,447 - - 4,447
MEA RSB EEE Impairment loss recognised
TR on goodwill of subsidiaries 1,250 = = 1,250
SEREANERERER Impairment loss recognised
on technical know-how 266 - - 266
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7. RIS E(E) 7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

76

(a) UEBDE(#E)

(a) Business segments (continued)

—EENF 2008
BHE R SR
Technology
£ Bt and =
Electronics  Batteries  strategic Total
FAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXER TURNOVER
HINEE External sales 1,477,464 - - 1,477,464
4 RESULTS
EZiE 4 Segment results 7,218 - 5,292 12,510
FEWA R EHA Interest income and
dividend income
BE DD Operating divisions 78,480 - 18,000 96,480
=3 Corporate 15,735
HithEFA Other expenses (39,052) - = (39,052)
TNz XER Unallocated corporate
expenses (56,258)
HA A Other income 28,733
AEWA Rental income - - 9,315 9,315
REMERTE 2 HE Change in fair value of
investment properties - - 4,020 4,020
HE At SR E W Gain on disposal of
available-for-sale investments 88,638
IR ID%N Finance costs
A ED Operating divisions (65,299) - = (65,299)
=3 Corporate (61,072)
I NI Share of results of associates 107,304  (12,008) 8,810 104,106

HE—REAR,
g HE—RlEAR

Loss on disposal/deemed
partial disposal of

BinEs 2 B8 a subsidiary (135)
fEE I ER/HERE AR Loss on deemed partial disposal/

R disposal of associates (4,765)
PR Al A Profit before taxation 132,956
BitE Taxation (30,804)
2EHF Profit for the year 102,152
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(a) UAEBDE(#E)

(a) Business segments (continued)

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)

—EENEE) 2008 (continued)
R % SRS
Technology
Ena it and At
Electronics  Batteries  strategic Total
FTAT FAT FAT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE ASSETS
RHEE Segment assets 1,453,610 - 60,248 1,513,858
REAFEUGRIE Long term receivables 371,658
HEYE Investment properties - - 117,210 117,210
BTt & R Al Interests in associates 918,673 797,731 165,763 1,882,167
AEHERE Available-for-sale investments 416,164
tH#4% & Gerard Corporation Consideration receivable for
T 2 R (B the disposal of partial
interest of investment in
Gerard Corporation 398,624 - - 398,624
THABELEEE Unallocated corporate assets 395,122
AR EE Consolidated total assets 5,094,803
& LIABILITIES
%8 Segment liabilities 363,906 - 11,890 375,796
G Borrowings
BEHE Operating divisions 1,542,290 - - 1,542,290
% Corporate 993,678
TR BELEER Unallocated corporate liabilities 65,191
RAEBEE Consolidated total liabilities 2,976,955
Hitt g OTHER INFORMATION
BN Capital expenditure
420 Operating divisions 23,579 - - 23,579
1% Corporate 12,414
W& Ko Depreciation and amortisation
—W¥  BERBE — Property, plant and
equipment
"EDE Operating divisions 34,871 - 3,287 38,158
1% Corporate 6,585
—EXERE - Technical know-how 3,880 - - 3,880
— RN ERE - Prepaid lease payments - 951 951
—iE - Trademarks 4,183 - - 4,183
EEANBAR,/ Addition of goodwill arising
WIE A RIFESMER from acquisition of
(ElE:Pa=E subsidiaries/additional
interests in subsidiaries 4,612 - - 4,612
MEA RS EREEE Impairment loss recognised
TR on goodwill of subsidiaries 1,935 - = 1,935
SEREANERBERER Impairment loss recognised
on technical know-how 23,482 - - 23,482
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7. ¥BRMEESEE)
(b) ihigi A48
SEERIHERDHRPEARKNE R
Hib AR - AREBMNEZRETT - £E
RIFREMERT IS HEREEE) -

7. BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS (continued)
(b) Geographical segments
Manufacturing and distribution of the Group’s products are carried
out in The People’s Republic of China (“the PRC") and certain other
Asia-Pacific, Middle East and European countries. The Group also
maintains marketing function in Americas.

VAT 51 2R £ 48 55 B4 B R P A T 53t 3 i 9F
EmRIRZHEDHT

The following table provides an analysis of the Group'’s sales by
geographical market, based on location of customers, irrespective of
the origin of the goods.

EEE
Turnover

2009 2008
TET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000

R ARAFIE The PRC
— BB - Hong Kong 134,397 131,850
— A - Mainland China 139,432 143,958
HbZMER Other Asian countries 86,277 71,106
BOM Europe 488,755 554,288
EM Americas 389,593 488,202
BN K FT PR Australia & New Zealand 56,300 73,827
Hith Others 18,887 14,233

1,313,641 1,477,464

DREEZREE WX BERRELSE
B2 - WEEREBZ DT

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets,
and additions to property, plant and equipment and goodwill,
analysed by the geographical areas in which the assets are located:

M- BERERER
gz m
Additions to

AREEZREE
Carrying amount
of segment assets

property, plant
and equipment
and goodwill

2009 2008 2009 2008
TET THT TR THT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

I AR The PRC

—Bh - Hong Kong 284,140 273,505 21,746 17,673

— At — Mainland China 329,081 438,139 14,741 14,239
HipgmNER Other Asian countries 72,889 109,422 1,300 3,503
BUM Europe 196,236 289,320 1,985 4,621
e Americas 73,098 98,974 132 569
RN Australia & New Zealand 137,990 299,476 = =
Hith Others 9,383 5,022 = =

1,102,817 1,513,858 39,904 40,605




8. HEAHHEREZWE

8. GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2009 2008
FTET AT
HK$000 HK$'000
B The amount comprises:
HERHHERE 2 s Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
investments - 88,638
9. BAIEA 9. FINANCE COSTS
2009 2008
FTERT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RAFAZEER ZRTREMETFEER Interest on bank and other borrowings
wholly repayable within five years 69,920 126,339
HMBHEEREFNEER Interest on obligations under finance leases 89 32
FBIEFR AN Total borrowing costs 70,009 126,371
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10. BRELAT (8518 ) & Fl 10. (LOSS) PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

80

2009 2008
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BREAT(E518) B FIE MR IA TER (Loss) profit before taxation has been
arrived at after charging:
==& (MEE11) Directors’ emoluments (see note 11) 26,812 31,138
BET%4 2B REN Other staff salaries, allowances and welfare 343,045 364,525
STRFEBRA Total employee benefits expenses 369,857 395,663
BERGEE(BERNTEEHA) Amortisation of technical know-how
(included in administrative expenses) 3,880 3,880
AN E T IEEE Amortisation of prepaid lease payments 793 951
AR (R ER B EA) Amortisation of trademarks (included in
administrative expenses) 4,183 4,183
ZE A Auditors’ remuneration
AEE Current year 4,877 4,693
AFENB 2 BHE Underprovision in prior years 47 597
M - BEREETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 41,764 44,743
BB RERE Impairment loss recognised on goodwill 1,250 1,935
BN\ Al 2 R EEE Impairment loss recognised on interests in
associates 22,048 2,021
g REEE(REEEMETHR) Impairment loss recognised on technical
know-how (included in other expenses) 266 23,482
HEWE  BERBEZER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment - 2,058
EEEXMEHEES Minimum lease payments made in respect of
HEWZE Rental premises 27,216 26,573
Hith Others 4,917 5,332
MRBAZL (REEHEEKAA) Research expenditure incurred (included in
cost of sales) 64,901 84,636
S INE and after crediting:
FEMIREZREIA Dividend income from unlisted
equity investments 10,811 18,000
BABE N R BEINE A RES 2 I Discount on acquisition of additional interest
in an associate - 1,033
TEMBITAERTEZE Change in fair value of derivative financial
instruments - 5,471
HEWE - BE RREz e Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 7,134 -
HEBMNEEFIE 2 W Gain on disposal of prepaid lease payments 6,053 -
RITGERRET 2F WA Interest earned on bank deposits and balances 55,305 66,375
REEWERIE 2 FILE A Interest income from long term receivables 715 26,968
NGl Ev P BN N Interest income from associates 3,062 872
Hgle Net exchange gain 24,742 23,770
REMFEFRSWAHRRENZREERE Rental income from investment properties,
FTeE B & F1,478,0007%5 T less direct expenses from investment
(ZZZ)\F : 2,041,000 L) properties that generated rental income
during the year of HK$ 1,478,000
(2008: HK$2,041,000) 9,261 5,532




M. EZFHRBESHFHNES
E=HM R ESHH
EZ

ENSENTT=8(ZTTN\F : +=8)8F

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors’ emoluments and employees’ emoluments

Directors

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the thirteen (2008: thirteen)

ZEEZMemT : directors are as follows:
2009
H 5 B
Other emoluments
KEHE BINER
ek b3 ] ST IR
H1tht8H] Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
#%  and other incentive scheme &5t
Fees benefits  payments contribution Total
FHET FET FHET THET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
(Bt=E)
(Note)
RIS Victor LO Chung Wing 10 3,756 2,189 393 6,348
RER Andrew NG Sung On 10 3,962 1,532 365 5,869
ZEIE Kevin LO Chung Ping 10 961 110 96 1,177
ETE Paul LO Chung Wai 10 488 - 49 547
2Bz LEUNG Pak Chuen 10 2,995 2,296 187 5,488
B Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 - - - 10
4B Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 10 2,313 92 180 2,595
ER{E CHAU Kwok Wai 10 2,483 771 230 3,494
F#E) Raymond WONG Wai Kan 100 744 - - 844
REEK Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 100 = = - 100
=L LUl Ming Wah 120 - - - 120
PRASHR Frank CHAN Chi Chung 120 - - - 120
PRELGE CHAN Kei Biu 100 - - - 100
620 17,702 6,990 1,500 26,812
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M. EZFMRESHFHES(E)

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

EEVMRESETM(EZ) Directors’ emoluments and employees’ emoluments (continued)
E=16-)) Directors (continued)
2008
H o 7B
Other emoluments
RIE RRAEF
HFaek BN TR
Hbtg7| Performance Retirement
Salaries related benefits
%  and other incentive scheme T
Fees benefits payments contribution Total
FHT FHT FHT T FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(%)
(Note)
B Victor LO Chung Wing 10 3,745 4,943 408 9,106
LRz Andrew NG Sung On 10 4,056 2,600 374 7,040
ZEPm Kevin LO Chung Ping 10 986 - 98 1,094
Pz Paul LO Chung Wai 10 500 - 50 560
Z{Az LEUNG Pak Chuen 10 2,934 2,216 182 5,342
AR E Richard KU Yuk Hing 10 - - - 10
TR Andrew CHUANG Siu Leung 10 2,289 203 178 2,680
IEIE CHAU Kwok Wai 10 2,519 1,259 234 4,022
T#E Raymond WONG Wai Kan 100 744 - - 844
GREER Vincent CHEUNG Ting Kau 100 - - - 100
= BREE LUI Ming Wah 120 - - - 120
PR ETE Frank CHAN Chi Chung 120 - - - 120
BREL 5 CHAN Kei Biu 100 - - - 100
620 17,773 11,221 1,524 31,138

fiaE: KRBABEBXHEDREZFEEEXE - @

Note:

RE XA TS BT EE

RZZEZNFHWA—H=E
=+—HHH -

J\EE : 639,000/ 7T) °

=
AREE R AR (TR SR AR EFT -
Mz 5 2 R = fAE(E 73611,000/8 T (— T F
ZAIAY RN Lt
EREMEMNA - BEZMER_ZTTNF—HAK
ﬁ%fé 3 458 [ R (P ER S A AR (AL P

The performance related incentive payments were determined with reference

to the operating results, individual performance and comparable market
statistics for both years.

From 1 April 2008 to 31 December 2008, the Group provided
accommodation to Mr. Victor LO Chung Wing and the rateable value of
the property amounted to HK$611,000 (2008: HK$639,000). The amount
has not been included in salaries and other benefits above. The property
was disposed of in January 2009 and no accommodation was provided
to him since then.



M. E=FMRESHFHES(E)
B ESHME)
ES
AEERNAFERSHFMzAEREBRETS
(ZZEZ)N\F : WE)ARER(EMe 2B
LrrEY) - HSp—R(ZZ2T)N\F  —R)AEH
RegMZEAREREEZMESWMT

11. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ emoluments and employees’ emoluments (continued)

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year included four
(2008: four) directors of the Company, details of whose emoluments are

set out above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2008: one) highest

paid employee of the Group, not being a director of the Company, are as

follows:
2009 2008
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R E AT Salaries and other benefits 2,831 2,822
ELp) Performance related incentive payments 1,921 1,480
RREREEHER Retirement benefit scheme contributions 216 216
4,968 4,518

REBE_ZTNF=A=+—HILFRN ' TEH
TREFH AR ES(BREERES)HE
“ET)NF  EERESIMARE MALEE
Wz AR SR 2 - RAFER - $IEE
EREEAHE o

During the year ended 31 March 2009, no emoluments (2008: nil)
was paid to the five highest paid individuals (including directors and

employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has waived any

emoluments during the year.

12. B8 12. TAXATION
2009 2008
THERT FET
HK$°000 HK$'000
2k The charge comprises:
ARREWBAT The Company and its subsidiaries:
BBNEH Hong Kong Profits Tax (49) 3,797
BB LASNEL A3 R Y 1E Taxation in jurisdictions
other than Hong Kong 10,909 14,450
10,860 18,247
R (P 5E33) Deferred taxation (note 33)
KEE Current year 1,929 12,557
ik Change in tax rate (960) -
969 12,557
11,829 30,804
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12. BB (E) 12. TAXATION (continued)

84

RZZFZENFENAZ+RH BB LEZBEB
—EEN\FRAKHER  R=_ZTZTN\/=F
ZNTABFE - RRFERBER17.5%RAEE
16.5% ° HE T AERMRBE=_TZTNF=A
=+ —HIEZAFERER - BERIEITS
ETFAELHAZE HRBE_ZZN\F=A=1—
BIEFE @ EAFIERIREFERDEF17.5%

=& o
Al

BB AIMER AR B REEE 2 RITHE

On 26 June 2008, the Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region passed the Revenue Bill 2008 which reduced
corporate profits tax rate from 17.5% to 16.5% effective from the year
of assessment 2008/2009. The effect of such decrease has been reflected
in measuring the current tax for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the
deferred tax balance has also been adjusted to reflect the change in tax
rate. Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 17.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Taxation in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong is calculated at the rates

stE - prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.
I HERRMAT - A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
2009 2008
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BRA A (518 5 A (Loss) profit before taxation (64,285) 132,956
BEREFEH£16.5%(ZFZ/\F : 17.5%) Tax (credit) charge at the Hong Kong Profits
AEZ OR%)BiE Tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%) (10,607) 23,267

FrikEtE ARl 2 B2 Tax effect of share of results

of associates (9,327) (18,218)
TERERES B2 HETE Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purposes 44,794 32,204
ERBWA BB E Tax effect of income not taxable for

tax purposes (21,679) (24,684)
AERRIEBE 2 HETE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 10,759 12,428
AERRE RS EE 2 R E Tax effect of deductible temporary difference

not recognised 1,374 5,520
FREFERERNRBEB 2 HBTE Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses

previously not recognised (7,873) (775)
BANMIBETRARE 28 Effect of different tax rates

in jurisdictions other than Hong Kong (2,385) 2,298
Tl 2 & Change in tax rate (960) =
IR E WA TEHFTEHY Dividend income withholding tax 6,510 =
HAth Others 1,223 (1,236)
EFEHIEA Taxation charge for the year 11,829 30,804




13. RS

13. DIVIDENDS

2009 2008
FTET AT
HK$000 HK$'000

RAFEHERZREDIE : Dividends recognised as distribution

during the year:

BIRE ST \ERARE —EA%2.0/%( 2008 final dividend - 2.0 HK cents

(ZTT L5 - 3.080L) (2007: 3.0 HK cents) per share 10,986 16,479
BIRE ST AFFHRE —SR1.05( 2009 interim dividend - 1.0 HK cent

(ZZT/\EF - 3.0/8(L) (2008: 3.0 HK cents) per share 5,493 16,479
16,479 32,958

EERERBREABRESK SEIL(-FT
NV SB2.050) - RAANEE T 2R
AR CEGEE - REEKADAZRERH
R -

14. B (E518) B F
BRAARBERIR 2 BREAR(EIR) BT & #
SE(EEB) AR THRE THIZETHE

The final dividend of 1.5 HK cents (2008: 2.0 HK cents) per share has
been proposed by the directors and it is subject to approval by the

shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting. This dividend

has been recognised in the dividend reserve of the Company.

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share

attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company is based on the

following data:

2009 2008
THEx TAT
HK$'000 HK$’000
(&518) &7 (Loss) earnings
BRARRIEARE 2 2F (518 )EF & (Loss) profit for the year attributable to
STEEAREGR(EE) B2 (BE) T equity shareholders of the Company
and (loss) earnings for the purpose of
basic (loss) earnings per share (65,329) 70,415
FhAESEBE R E BB AR R E AR Effect of dilutive potential shares on share
IR (ER) B 2 PTG ZEELE 2 A% of results of subsidiaries and associates
based on the dilution of their
(loss) earnings per share - (12)
STEERGR(EE) B2 (BE)RF (Loss) earnings for the purpose of
diluted (loss) earnings per share (65,329) 70,403
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14. BRR(E5R) BRI (2

15.

14. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

2009 2008
‘000 ‘000
¥ +
RAEE Number of shares
SEEAFR(ER) B2 RO MEFEHE Weighted average number of shares for
the purpose of basic (loss) earnings
per share 549,285 549,285
Rk TS EERD 22 Effect of dilutive potential shares
on share options - 203
SEEEER(ER) B2 ROMNETESH Weighted average number of shares
for the purpose of diluted (loss)
earnings per share 549,285 549,488

REBEE-ZTZAF=A=+—BLFE ' ARA
BREZ TRESNZFERARARRRNL 2T
HAmME  AURBEZTENF=A=+—Hit
FEARNRBLRE 2HRIEFTRER -

The computation of the 2009 diluted loss per share does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options because the exercise price of
the Company’s share options was higher than the average market price
of the Company’s shares for the year ended 31 March 2009.

REYE 15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
AEE PN
THE THE
GROUP COMPANY
FHIT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

"$1§ FAIR VALUE

N EFMA—H At 1 April 2007 131,990 20,000
Hj% Disposals (18,800) (18,800)
W—REMHBATEA Transfer from a subsidiary = 139,274
NEEZ #F Change in fair values 4,020 (1,200)
RIZZNFE=A=+—BER-ZZT)\FMA—H At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008 117,210 139,274
HE Disposals (3,462) =
NEEZEE) Change in fair values (10,508) (13,761)
R-ZEZAFE=A=1+—H At 31 March 2009 103,240 125,513

AEBRARRZBEMENNERE - HHHHE

REVER " ZETNF=ZA=T—"HE-ZTZTN\
F=A=t—RzZA ?EEEEE$§%II?&EHE§
B2 B EEMERMT  XFITHEERERA
Alff{E - XATRHERE AR AR AEEHNER
KA BRI R R Y AR o AR
EigRBEYENERME AR T 2R3 E
IRIRAE

The investment properties of the Group and the Company are located in
Hong Kong under medium-term leases.

The fair value of investment properties at 31 March 2009 and 31 March
2008 were valued by RHL Appraisal Ltd, an independent qualified
professional valuer not connected with the Group. RHL Appraisal Ltd has
appropriate qualifications and experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation was arrived at by
reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar properties
in the same locations and conditions.



16. ¥13% - BMERZRE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

XABR i
IHRREE REEH BRRRE IHERIE
Freehold fERE Leasehold Machinery Moulds
and and Leasehold improve- and and =0 Gl
buildings buildings ments equipment tools Others Total
ThT ThT ThT ThL ThL FhL ThT
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS000 HKS000
(Rzt)
(note)
£E THE GROUP
BASfE COST OR VALUATION
R-EZHEMA-H At 1 April 2007 20,006 147,949 65,329 183,297 54,042 110,619 581,242
LR Currency realignment 109 380 624 298 1,074 1,446 6,575
BAFHBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - 439 6,007 803 321 7,510
b Additions 738 636 174 13,601 7424 13,420 35,993
HE /i Disposalsiwrite-off - (3,544) (8,588) (23,044) (92) (3,062) (38,330)
W-ZE\F=f=1-A At31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008
RR=ZZ)\EWA-A 20853 145,421 57978 182,803 63,251 122,744 593,050
EhaE Currency realignment (6,486) = (1,075) (5,934) (13,402) (7616) (34,513)
BA-FHHBAR Acquisition of a subsidiary - - - 1,456 = 352 1,808
L E—FHBAR Disposal of a subsidiary - (12,350) - - - (10) (13,060)
b Additions 144 - 14,329 8,515 4113 8,356 35,457
He /i Disposalsiwrite-off - (4,750) (19474) (8,585) (449) (24,801) (58,059)
RZBFNE=A=1-A At 31 March 2009 14,511 128321 51,758 178,255 53,513 98,325 524,683
2 Comprising:
A At cost 14,511 83238 51,758 178,255 53513 98,325 479,600
fE-—NNmE At valuation - 1994 - 45,083 - = - - 45,083
14511 128321 51,758 178,255 53513 98,325 524,683
E DEPRECIATION
R-ZE+EmA-A At 1 April 2007 3,750 25,630 45,043 127,709 44,004 62,314 308,450
EBaR Currency realignment 8 n 425 1915 511 1,066 4,017
REREER Provided for the year 295 5,987 3,765 17,986 7,567 9,143 44,743
HERHR /Hk Eliminated on disposalsfwrite-off - (2,035) (8,286) (21,267) @3) (2,745) (34,356)
RZZENF=A=1-HR At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008 4,073 29,654 40,947 126,343 52,059 69,778 322,854
RZZZ)\ERA-A
Ean Currency realignment (1,265) - (353) (5,077) (11,864) (6,984) (25,543)
REEER Provided for the year 264 5,184 4,28 15,931 8,138 7,965 41,764
HE-RNBLABMR Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary - (3,794) - - - (294) (4,088)
HEEHR /Hk Eliminated on disposalsfwrite-off - (2,528) (14,426) (7.257) (359) (22,265) (46,835)
RZEENFZA=1-H At 31 March 2009 3,072 28516 30,450 129,940 47974 48200 288,152
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZEENF=A=1-A At 31 March 2009 11439 99,805 21,308 48315 5539 50,125 236,531
RZEEN\F=A=1-H At 31 March 2008 16,780 115,767 17,031 56,460 11,192 52,966 210,19
Wer: EHEMaERASENEHE FEAES R A Note:  Others included furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles with carrying

44,915,000/ 7T ( —F 2 )\ : 46,596,000/ 7T)
#015,210,00075 7T (=% )\ 4 : 6,370,000/ 7T) °

values of HK$44,915,000 (2008: HK$46,596,000) and HK$5,210,000 (2008:
HK$6,370,000), respectively.
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16. Y% - BMERFZE =)

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

HERE BOEERE HHRRE
Leasehold Leasehold ~ Machinery and Hit B3t
buildings  improvements equipment Others Total
TAT Thx TAL TAT TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A THE COMPANY
A cosT
RZEZLFMA—-A At 1 April 2007 = 15,234 18,161 34,656 68,051
=0 Additions - - 492 11,922 12,414
e Disposals - (564) (13,307) (568) (14,439)
{E-TARELREA Transfers from a subsidiary 6,669 - - = 6,669
R=ZZ\F=RA=1+-Hk At 31 March 2008 and
RZZZ\EWA—-H 1 April 2008 6,669 14,670 5,346 46,010 72,695
1 Additions - 2,981 301 7329 10,611
b= Disposals - (7,331) (576) (3,937) (11,844)
RIEENE=A=1-H At 31 March 2009 6,669 10,320 5,071 49,402 71,462
it DEPRECIATION
R-ZEZ+FNA—A At 1 April 2007 - 10,629 14,697 16,394 41,720
2EEEE Provided for the year = 654 1,467 4,464 6,585
HERRR Eliminated on disposals - (336) (11,937) (567) (12,840)
RZZZ\E=A=+-Bk At 31 March 2008 and
RZZZ\ENA—A 1 April 2008 = 10,947 4,227 20,291 35,465
REEER Provided for the year 267 670 473 4,239 5,649
HERRR Eliminated on disposals - (7.331) (576) (2732) (10,639)
R=ZENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2009 267 4,286 4,124 21,798 30,475
REE CARRYING VALUES
R=ZENF=A=+—H At 31 March 2009 6,402 6,034 947 27,604 40,987
R-_EEN\E=A=1—H At 31 March 2008 6,669 3723 1,119 25,719 37,230
EE ¥ N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FTET FAT FExT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
WA B2 W eiE The property interests
shown above comprise:
AR LASMD R 2 K AR Y5 Freehold properties
held outside
Hong Kong 11,439 16,780 - -
HEY Leasehold buildings:
BB Held in Hong Kong,
FHIRE Medium-term leases 8,084 7,726 6,402 6,669
B AN = Held outside
Hong Kong,
KEEE Long-term leases 8,732 8,992 = =
hEEE Medium-term leases 82,989 99,049 - -
111,244 132,547 6,402 6,669
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FIBR 2 TAE WM ¥ E £ RN &= BEITER
& . HERE{E 510,478,000/ L (Z T )\ F :
14,014,000/ 7T) °

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

At 31 March 2009, had the Group'’s leasehold buildings which was stated
at revalued amount been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, their carrying amount would have been HK$10,478,000
(2008: HK$14,014,000).

rEH N
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FTET FHT FET FHT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HBHEE 2%  BEREEREE Carrying values of property,
plant and equipment held
under finance leases:
HAOBEEE Leasehold improvements 3,322 - 1,974 -
NS Machinery and equipment 14 26 = =
3,336 26 1,974 -

17. A HEERE
SEENEEFERRERSFANTHAE
ti o

17.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
The Group's prepaid lease payments represent leasehold land in Hong
Kong under medium-term leases.

DITLT - Analyse for reporting purpose as:
AEE AT

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FHIT FExT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
mED Current 666 951 712 712
e ED Non-current 24,641 36,156 25,632 26,344
25,307 37,107 26,344 27,056
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18. B A A= 18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

90

AT
THE COMPANY

2009 2008

THEx FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

TR IRE KA Listed shares, at cost 1,178,428 1,178,428

JE EMRRHIE KA Unlisted shares, at cost 88,886 337,219
RERERER Impairment losses recognised = (209,155)

1,267,314 1,306,492

MBARIRZK—ERE Amounts due from subsidiaries — non-current 80,032 146,754

HBARRA— R Amounts due from subsidiaries - current 288,090 413,720

R—REKBARFIE—RE Amount due to a subsidiary - current 5,522 130,660

KRB ARZIE-ERS Amounts due to subsidiaries — non-current 11,721 20,292

RN =A=+—HBzHE Market values of listed shares at 31 March 488,974 991,899

M A RIRRAEER R ERTERY - ResE
?%172 012 ooo,%ruL == )\ 4 : 336,071,000
BIL) Z RABNA%ET% 2 F 25N » R
BRBRF -

RSB HIBWEERRES - REER
IERE DB{%IK@E*X%‘— BARNEE - //u.ib
BN P SR EE o

TR TSR AN AL 2 GP T 2 1%
& HEOERINER S ARER SRR ([0
BZ G LT

M A RRE RRRZREBERENRBA
Al Z AR RGEFHEI RS R EFEE Z AW
EE T - WE AR Z REELSERRES
BrR(R-ZZEZ/\F=A=t+—RHZREEBEA
209,155,000/ 7T )5 2= £ AR & 2 AT B EI{E FII Bk -
RAFE 2 AR ANBREAREREESE
#4209,155,00075 7T ° ﬁAZ!SEﬁ?f“FWJ%“
R ERFER R B 518 4 185,000,000/8 L (= F
/\E o 7/%713)

TEMB AR ZFBENERE 547 -

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed
repayment terms. Other than an amount of HK$172,012,000 (2008:
HK$336,071,000) bears interest ranging from 4% to 7%, the remaining
balance is interest free.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. In the
opinion of the directors, the non-current portion will not be repayable
within the next twelve months. The current portion is repayable on
demand.

The listed shares represent the investment in GP Ind which is
incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and its shares are listed on
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “Singapore Stock
Exchange”).

Impairment losses for investments in and amounts due from subsidiaries
were recognised based on the recoverable amounts which were
determined by the estimated discounted net cash flows from these
subsidiaries. The carrying amounts of investments in subsidiaries were
reduced to the respective recoverable amounts after an impairment
loss recognised of HK$209,155,000 as at 31 March 2008. The investment
cost and relevant impairment loss amounting to HK$209, 155,000 were
written off in the current year. Impairment losses for the year and
cumulative of HK$185,000,000 (2008: nil) was recognised for amounts
due from certain subsidiaries.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47.
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

rEE
THE GROUP
2009 2008
TET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BN RIIRE AR Cost of investments in associates
=) Listed 776,516 778,486
JEET Unlisted 418,232 443,034
PTiE YEB & R - AR B AR S Share of post-acquisition profit, net of
dividends received 615,461 656,053
1,810,209 1,877,573
NI S Amounts due from associates 4,594 4,594
1,814,803 1,882,167
RN =A=+—HZHE Market values of listed shares at 31 March 218,951 499,455

B N B R RAR T % A SRR A B SOR B Bl 2
7 REEER SRS TEEEERERE
HHETEARRLERESR - At - &8
SIVEIERBEE

REBEZE=_TEENFEF=ZF=1+—HIEFERN "GP
I%LAD/\,iﬁzzoooooo/%ﬂ%)\%ﬁéI%Hx
MDEBRAT([EE]) (—HERAEKILZA

H ik p C;‘é.ﬁﬁx%ﬁﬁim)%59\\3787000
BRAR D - EREBHEHE  REREELR
ERHMYZTER - GPLTERNERE 2 #5iEE

20.15% o B £ 7 1A 18R 5 8 % A
Ak -
mag TTAFZASF—BLLFEEN %

EEIIHELEMEE THERR 2R

Z A& 1) & FT 45 Best Companion Investments
Limited ([ Best Companion |) & %5 (& )
ERAR(TEZBHRBRE]) ZHEREZR  RES
7l 7% 14,428,000 & 7T %2 6,417,000 /& 7T ° Best
Companionf = Z XK AYERE - ©R/F
NEEXBRHERDHSERE - SEFRHE
Best Companion & Z1&H B5 5l$£153,862,000
78 T ER & 2,404,000 7T as ©

P A a)iE s B 15 22118,930,00078 T (=
ZTZ )\ £F: : 98,903,000/ 7T) °

T EHE N R Z FH BRI A MI5E48 o

The amounts due from associates are interest bearing at prevailing
market rate and have no fixed repayment terms. In the opinion of
the directors, the Group would not demand for the repayment within
the next twelve months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the
amounts are shown as non-current assets.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, GP Ind acquired additional
3,787,000 shares in Meiloon Industrial Company Limited (“Meiloon”), a
company incorporated in Taiwan and its shares are listed on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation, at an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$22 million. Meiloon is engaged in development, manufacturing and
sales of loudspeakers and other audio-visual devices. GP Ind’s interests
in Meiloon has increased to 20.15%. The investment in Meiloon was
accounted for as interests in associates.

During the year ended 31 March 2009, the Group entered into
agreements to dispose of its interests in certain associates, which mainly
represents disposal of its entire interests in Best Companion Investments
Limited (“Best Companion”) and Onkyo China Limited (“Onkyo China"”)
at the considerations of HK$14,428,000 and HK$6,417,000, respectively.
Best Companion is principally engaged in property investment and
Onkyo China is principally engaged in the marketing and distribution
of audio equipment. The Group recognised a gain of HK$3,862,000
and HK$2,404,000 upon disposal of Best Companion and Onkyo China,
respectively.

Included in the interests in associates is goodwill of HK$118,930,000
(2008: HK$98,903,000).

Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 48.
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19. TG B E DA TR (2)
REEHE—_TThF=A=+—HILFEHE
REMBRE U BEERRE - URAEE
BENRER BMER AT

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
The summarised financial information in respect of associates based
on its financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the
relevant information in respect of the Group’s interest in associates are as

92

follows:

2009 2008
THEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRI RN Financial position

BEE Total assets 9,032,735 10,025,530
BE G Total liabilities 4,175,768 4,782,259
DB RS Minority interests 434,315 441,382
Pt EEFE Share of net assets 1,713,327 1,780,691

2FEE Results for the year
| Turnover 10,666,184 12,242,958
2EHH Profit for the year 221,964 447,030
JFI T AN Share of results of associates 56,530 104,106

P Bt & 1 ) #E 25 B FE BR E1 {B.49 215,332,000
THEE EHIRE  EUREEENEEARBR
B #AR P Uk [ S BB L B AR R E RS o Al E &
BUAEAEAEETEER  FREENEEEE
HENMBEEENINRESRE  BEEENT
BARERIEAEER - RE—BUSEGHES
KRG GTEAIRESERERZITREA
11.9 % - E=RALREAAKESE NEE
—ETNFE=RA=t+—RALFEEFTEERER
18 o

Fir b Bk & A A #E 2 a%%ﬁﬁﬁns%1mmﬁ
TR LENERERAR(SWLEM])

B FT I s A ST EH%&?WEM%’“ Z
SHEm e @IUBHHE_TTHhFE=A=1+—
BB 2 FIZER A M HRER R B E R
BIE—EZEE  BERZEENF=A=1—
H  @IIEM2FRB 8 EL %181,274,00075

JT ©

EEZRE I EBAIRMAE RSB AR LR
A& L RSB B R - RiiBmEILE
MHEZTZTAF=A=+—RBLEFEFBRER
B ZEL+—ER - ARREERREUEM
BESA RSB AC SR E A -

Interest in associates included listed investment in Meiloon with carrying
value of approximately HK$215,332,000 was assessed for impairment by
comparing with the recoverable amount at the balance sheet date. The
recoverable amount was determined based on the value in use calculated
by using the cashflow projections based on financial budget approved
by management, past performance and future market development. A
discount rate of 11.9%, based on an independent professional valuer’s
assessment, was applied. In the opinion of the directors, with reference
to the estimated recoverable amount, no impairment charge was
required for the financial year ended 31 March 2009.

Interest in associates included listed investment in GP Batteries
International Limited (“GPBI"”) with carrying value of approximately
HK$775,881,000. GPBI is incorporated in the Republic of Singapore and
its shares are listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. The auditor’s
opinion for the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2009 of GPBI included an emphasis of matter as GPBI
has net current liabilities of approximately HK$181,274,000 as at 31
March 2009.

After considering the measures taken by GPBI and the Group's
undertaking to provide continuing financial support to GPBI, if
necessary, at least for twelve months from the date of the financial
statements of GPBI for the year ended 31 March 2009, the directors of
the Company consider that GPBI is able to operate as going concerns.
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20.

FribBtE N TR 2)
NZZEZThE=A=+—0 ST HHHERK
REERNEBRL A B HRAR ARAERERE -
& LB E /9 AT UK [B] & B8 DA S IR & L BB St A
ERGEEES LB A EENELRE
Eit - EEASIIEMIEEERES S

EARFE  AEEWKE—FELTHEAR © %
RNAEBEBKBIAEMABELEDE T&E - 1%
B2 BATE &I A AR AT Al EE R RIS RIE
EHEEREEZE - (EHRERE22,048,000%

JC °

19.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

At 31 March 2009, the market value of GPBI was lower than its
corresponding carrying value in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The recoverable amount of the investment in GPBI was
determined with reference to the present value of the estimated cash
flows expected to arise from dividends to be received and ultimate
disposal of GPBI. Accordingly, no impairment charge was required.

In the current year, the Group acquired an unlisted associate engaged in
the research and development in LED electrical device. An impairment
loss of HK$22,048,000 is made for this associate with reference to the
Group's share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
expected to be generated by the associate as compared with its carrying
amount.

TEHERE 20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
AEE
THE GROUP
2009 2008
THEx FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
FLEmRE Unlisted securities:
—REZBHKAR - Equity securities at cost 344,716 351,937
—REBEER - Impairment loss recognised (168,761) (67,290)
175,955 284,647
RERER Shareholder’s loan 105,178 131,517
At Total 281,133 416,164

SEAHEHERE 2T :

An analysis of the Group’s available-for-sale investments was as follows:

AEE
THE GROUP

2009 2008

THET FAT

HK$000 HK$'000

Gerard Corporation(fffita) Gerard Corporation (note a) 132,695 264,861

H B 5 8H 7 (FifEEb) PRC distributors (note b) 97,000 97,000

Primo Opto Group Limited ([Primo) (F{f7Fc) Primo Opto Group Limited (“Primo”) (note c) 24,404 23,109
PT GP Industries Indonesia &z PT GP Industries Indonesia and

PT Australindo Graha Nusa PT Australindo Graha Nusa 14,761 -

Mistral (HK) Limited ([Mistral (HK)]) (Fff5Ed) Mistral (HK) Limited (“Mistral (HK)") (note d) 12,272 31,193

Hoh Others 1 1

281,133 416,164
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20. /]

'Eﬁaﬁﬁnzo%

Year ended 31 March 2009 HBE-ZZAF=ZA=+—-HLFE

ARHERE®)
F5E

(a) % %83 FT1f Gerard Corporation 2 19% f% 7N ## 25
K % ¥ Gerard CorporationZ —JEHR R E RSB B
105,178,000 7T (= F T\ 1 131,517,000 T) °
Gerard Corporation A8 Mk 37 » = ZH F s -
BNl - 2% B8 HAERMADEURKRERZEY
=,

BREERAREAEE REREETEERSE - AAA]
BB E B FE A EAM Gerard Corporation
ZHE—HRE - ABRFEEFIIRARHEEERE -

BRER
LR gL -

FA Gerard Corporation % 5 JA £ Fr#5A% (9 12

B B 4E — 78 97,000,000 % 7T (= BT )\ 4 ¢
97000000,%71)#%@45%49%% s 2 PR AR BIAK
MR EFBEBREERDE o AEEEMK
ARIFI U - REBEAEE T2 EEMR A AH
HEEBNRENELESRERREMNE - Bt -
EMRAREIIRARHLERE -

(b)

() RHEHBE—E2440400B T (= FTFNF :
23,109,000?571) A5 B APrimo 2 14.17% IR A 4
@ PrimoR—ERFASHBKEENFHR - BUE
RIHELEDE A Z R A] °

RBE-_TZN\F=A=+—HLLFR  £EE—FH
RE B ILE 2 Bl Mistral (HK)Z 7] — ) Wi 8
LA 74k H FE (BB FRIE 31,193,000/ 7T i A H 10% iR
Az o EANFE HMistral (HK) & H#RRERE
18,921,00087C ° AR EENEERERES °

(d)

EEZRR  EERAREHRERARTRERY
2 At ZERENBER/AHHERE -

FrA JE LAl SR E U A R E R ER &
HaEa ﬁﬁZﬁ@ EEAK - ARAIEERSD
TEERI SEMIET EH A F(E -

MEBERER R L ERERARERRERZA
Y EHE R HERR. » 1 Al W B TOARIR P EE A 2 b &t
WITRB S FREMAER - AIHEERE ZRE
EROREAAE Z AR EE -

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

(d)

The amount represents a 19% equity interest in and a shareholder’s loan of
HK$105,178,000 (2008: HK$131,517,000) to Gerard Corporation. Gerard Corporation
is incorporated in Australia and engaged in manufacturing, printing, packaging,
freight forwarding, commercial property ownership and rural interests in forestry
and agriculture.

The shareholder’s loans are capital in nature, non-interest bearing and have no
fixed terms of repayment. The directors of the Company intend to capitalise the
shareholder’s loans as further investments in Gerard Corporation and designated the
shareholder’s loans as available-for-sale investments.

The shareholder’s loans were provided by the shareholders of Gerard Corporation in
proportion to their shareholdings.

Included in the amount is HK$97,000,000 (2008: HK$97,000,000) in respect of the
Group's 49% equity investments in each of two companies established in the PRC,
which are engaged in selling and distribution business. The Group entered into
contractual agreements with these two companies for not to participate in the
daily operations and waive the rights to exercise its voting power in the board of
directors’ meetings of these companies. Accordingly, these companies are accounted
for as available-for-sale investments.

An amount of HK$24,404,000 (2008: HK$23,109,000) represents the Group’s 14.17%
equity investment in Primo, a company incorporated in Cayman Islands, which is
engaged in development, manufacture and sale of LED lighting products.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group entered into a subscription
agreement with Mistral (HK), a company incorporated in Hong Kong, to subscribe
for a 10% equity interest by capitalisation of HK$31,193,000 outstanding balance
due from Mistral (HK). An impairment loss of HK$18,921,000 was recognised for the
investment in Mistral (HK) in the current year. This company is principally engaged in
the trading of electrical appliances.

In the opinion of the directors, the Group could not exercise significant
influence over those companies and accordingly, such investments are
classified as available-for-sale investments.

All unlisted available-for-sale investments are measured at cost less
impairment because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so
wide that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair
values cannot be measured reliably.

Impairment losses were recognised based on the recoverable amount of
available-for-sale investments and the related shareholder’s loans, which
was determined by the estimated discounted net cash flows from the
available-for-sale investments. The carrying value of available-for-sale
investments was reduced to the respective recoverable amount.



21. REAEWERE

21. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

5
THE GROUP
2009 2008
FET AT
HK$000 HK$'000
SERHEWIRIE RS : The Group's long term receivables comprise:
BE=H 2B (HEa) Loans to third parties (note a) 46,843 62,379
# Gerard CorporationZ {& 5 (fiitb) Loan to Gerard Corporation (note b) - 37,339
& Gerard Corporationi% & Eth e 2 FEU K (E Consideration receivable for the disposal
(Pf5EC) of partial interest of investment
in Gerard Corporation (note c) - 271,940
46,843 371,658

(a) #EEABEE :

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(b) % Gerard Corporation )

fk BE-—EHETFT EABYE=%2E

R £ %8516,052,00058 7T ( —EE )\
1 21,336,000/ L) + W EN6.9% EE
FRE(ZETN\F 1 6.9% ) RERET
B - EFERBAEEBETED \,F
BEXRBEFT—FRNERETER -
It - ZEFE BIERBEE
—BfE T —EBIE=EER  &8EE
9,878,000/ C(=ZZ/\4 : 9,920,000
PETT) + BRI ERTT R SR B EF
BERR-_ZZTAEFE  —T—ZTFNM_F
——FEW - A—BU=ERELEND
HAfT (8 - E 4,939,000 LR =F
ThE=A=+—HB3EREREKE
FEMS =R R TETRRIA

—EET-EREEHER  EA
6,200,000557%(:: Z)\4 : 6,232,000
BIL) HEE R — 2 e AR

3 o B MF!‘JL_ AN TR - MK
BEAENEFE(RR_ETNF-AE
—ZENF-AHRE - ERRESER)
RER=_Z——F—AfEE &

#2 %6 19,652,000 8 T (=TT N\ F :
24,891,000 7T) Afg T — B E =%
B 2REFAESHRKERFE R
EEEE N -

& SR B B

6%%2ﬂ§&ﬁ_77ﬂiﬂﬂ +AH

BE -M_ZETNAF=A=+—H ' BFK
DERREEE °

(a) The balances comprise:

0]

(ii)

the loans included an amount of HK$16,052,000 (2008:
HK$21,336,000) advanced to an independent third party which
bears fixed interest at 6.9% (2008: 6.9%) per annum with no
fixed terms of repayment. In the opinion of the directors, the
Group will not request for repayment within a year after the
balance sheet date and hence, the amount is classified as non-

current assets;

an amount of HK$9,878,000 (2008: HK$9,920,000) represents
a loan to an independent third party carrying interest at an
interest rate with reference to SIBOR and is repayable in three
equal instalments on 1 February in years of 2009, 2010 and 2011,
of which an amount of HK$4,939,000 is included in debtors, bills
receivables and prepayment at 31 March 2009;

(iii) an amount of HK$6,200,000 (2008: HK$6,232,000) represents a

loan to a business partner to enable him to subscribe for new
shares in a corporation. The loan is secured by the shares in the
afore-mentioned corporation and bears interest at commercial
interest rate except for the period from January 2008 to January
2009 during which the loan is non-interest bearing and is
repayable by January 2011; and

(iv) the remaining HK$19,652,000 (2008: HK$24,891,000) is advanced

to an independent third party which bears interest at an interest
rate with reference to US Prime Rate with no fixed terms of
repayment.

(b) The loan to Gerard Corporation bears fixed interest at 6.75% per

annum and is repayable on 26 August 2009. The amount was

classified as current assets at 31 March 2009.
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21. REEWERE (2)

(c) ﬁt X 18 % i) & Gerard Corporation #% & 2f
D 2 RIR(E 2 REEFIE - REERK
18 2 52 Hi Ak in /3321,943, oooﬁém(*ff/\

F : 126,684,000/ 7T) © BENEKIRE -
EWRE RIFERRIER - ¢t$ak1%‘z§$mw
Gerard Corporation 2 34.33% ( ZZ & )\
F : 34.33%) R ERIRE o ILEKARIER
N FDRINERTT 2 R R B BRI R 2 B A
2ZEM.5%BEMF L - XPFBERAAR
AAE—ZTRAFAARARAST TREZBXK

21. LONG TERM RECEIVABLES (continued)

() The amount is the outstanding balance in relation to the sale
consideration for the disposal of partial interest of investment in
Gerard Corporation. The current portion of outstanding balance of
HK$321,943,000 (2008: HK$126,684,000) is included in debtors, bills
receivable and prepayments. These balances are secured by 34.33%
(2008: 34.33%) interest in Gerard Corporation. The amount bears
interest at 1.5% above the 6 months’ Australian bank bill swap
reference buying rate. Details of this transaction were disclosed in

the Company'’s circular to its shareholders dated 5 May 2005.

PR o
22. EERR 22. TECHNICAL KNOW-HOW
2009 2008
TET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
58 THE GROUP
B CoSsT
FHE At beginning of the year 53,871 53,776
AR Currency realignment (89) 95
FRE At end of the year 53,782 53,871
B RAE AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT
FHIE At beginning of the year 46,134 18,772
eFEHY Provided for the year 3,880 3,880
EEERR Impairment loss recognised 266 23,482
FRE At end of the year 50,280 46,134
IREFEE CARRYING VALUES
ERE At end of the year 3,502 7,737

HERFAUE MBS ABEREN =FERF
AR EFFH (AR ) s o

RAFE EESHEEELREEAE B

EERBRAREEATEREEL Y BER

%$§¥??ZE%FEWF%%MﬁHZTW
B4 BYEERTELIRE - AEERER

18 4266,0007% 7T ( — T T )\ ¢ 23,482,000/’5
) o A EEEREARBEZTRER6% (=

TT)\F  4%) -

Technical know-how is amortised, using straight line method, over a
period of three to five years from the date of acquisition or the licence

period, whichever is the shorter.

During the year, the directors reviewed the carrying amount of the
Group's technical know-how and identified that it was impaired with
reference to the estimated recoverable amount based on the higher
of cash flow forecast derived from future use and the disposal value.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$266,000 (2008: HK$23,482,000)
has been recognised. The discount rate in measuring the amount of
value in use was 6% (2008: 4%) in relation to technical know-how.



23.

24.

BE 23. TRADEMARKS
2009 2008
T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
£H THE GROUP
B COoST
FUHRERY At beginning and end of the year 83,655 83,655
By AMORTISATION
FHE At beginning of the year 43,919 39,736
e E Provided for the year 4,183 4,183
FRE At end of the year 48,102 43,919
BREE CARRYING VALUE
FRE At end of the year 35,553 39,736

SEBAZHGRREGHATBERN -+ 5

Trademarks acquired by the Group are amortised over their estimated
useful lives which are estimated to be twenty years.

SRS 24. GOODWILL
2009 2008
FTERT FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
£8 THE GROUP
IREE CARRYING VALUE
FOE At beginning of the year 58,166 53,669
EHRE Currency realignment (2,220) 1,820
HEEMB N R 2 FAIMER TSI 2 e Goodwill arising from acquisition of
additional interests in subsidiaries 3,197 3,480
EA—MHMBARMms & 2HE Goodwill arising from acquisition of
a subsidiary 1,250 1,132
RERNER 2 RIEEE Impairment loss recognised for the year (1,250) (1,935)
FERY At end of the year 59,143 58,166

BrREE 2 RUERAIA 2 FHEE AR B fIEE25 ©

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are disclosed in

note 25.
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25. B ZRERIR 25. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

98

ZZDMT.JERREH SEER D HERNEE S
REBDE - R4 & 2 EE S EEZE @R
ﬁﬁ@iﬁ f7BNGPLZ « Coudrey Investments
Limited R S B LAMERERF - @FH AR
33,775,000% 7T ( = =2 = J\ & : 33,775,000 /%
JC) * 20,858,000/ 7T ( —ZF = )\ : 23,079,000
#7T) 124,510,000/ 70 ( ZZFZ )\ : 1,312,000
PETT) °

RAFE  SEAFEBETRENR AR
BARR=FNEFTINGERER 2IESRETERIA
FIRES%UE12% 18 - Mg T 2 T8 R THiR I AE
Fﬁﬁ%&l%Z%&.‘Ei(éﬁm%%12%)a+
H o SERWERYIEEETERA R (R
B ) (FisE39(a)) B ZIRBRETE MBI E - R
YigEREEEBNNAERERERAETEE
TBE - FYIEE 2 FT K E S5 DR EREEL
1,250,000/ 7T * @A BREFIIIEEEE
2 EE R EE 81,250,000 T - EEFE
AEMERRE LXK HeELBNERRE
/581,935,000 7T °

FIRGEEBMA AT & FAAREAEREE
H - FREEAEZTERZRZFEZHR
X ERERRINASEEES HNTEHRES - 18
BEARMATER R EENIRE - FRERRE
%R G B RREEEMR S EE BN
ZEARR o EWRERZITHEERTER - WARE
B HREES IR AT AR RTEBETIS AR 2 21t
TR - HthEtEEABENEEREEFBERR
SEABNZBAXEREEEHMSE RN
ERZHERENEERER 2R ERARGE
BE - EEEREEAREZNEIEER A

2 EAIRENE S| BER S E A B2 AT EE
EREARE(E

As explained in note 7, the Group uses business segments as its primary
segment for reporting segment information. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill set out in note 24 has been allocated to
each individual cash generating units (“CGUs"), being GP Ind, Coudrey
Investments Limited and others of HK$33,775,000 (2008: HK$33,775,000),
HK$20,858,000 (2008: HK$23,079,000) and HK$4,510,000 (2008:
HK$1,312,000), respectively.

During the year, the Group has performed impairment review for
goodwill, based on cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent
financial budgets for the next three years using the discount rate of
8% — 12%, while the remaining forecast beyond that three year period
has been extrapolated with reference to annual growth rate ranging
from 1% to 2% in the relevant industries and countries. The Group has
recognised an impairment loss of HK$1,250,000 in relation to goodwill
arising on acquisition of Shenzhen Gloria Electronics Ltd. (“SZ Gloria")
(note 39(a)) due to impact of downturn in the global economy after the
completion of acquisition, the actual results of the CGU did not meet
the management’s expectations and the recoverable amount of this
CGU is determined to be approximately HK$1,250,000 lower than the
carrying amount of the CGU. As a result, the goodwill arising from the
acquisition was identified to be fully impaired and the corresponding
impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated income statement.
An impairment loss of HK$1,935,000 was recognised in the previous year
in relation to the CGU of audio business in the United Kingdom.

The recoverable amount of each of the CGU has been determined on
the basis of value in use calculation. The key factors for the value in
use calculation are discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to revenue and direct costs during the year. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The
growth rate is based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in revenue
and direct cost are based on past practices and expectations of future
changes in the market. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations included budgeted sales and gross margins and their
related cash inflow and outflow patterns, estimated based on the CGUs’
historical performance and management’s expectation of the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible change
in any of these assumptions would not cause the recoverable amounts of
CGUs to fall below their respective carrying amounts.



26.

27.

#H

26. INVENTORIES

rEH

THE GROUP
2009 2008
T FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
[ Raw materials 84,393 111,935
TEEm Work in progress 17,141 15,364
ZUPK i Finished goods 153,110 255,273
254,644 382,572

P ARIE - BRI R R FOR

AEBRTEESEPEEN  —RB=1TXE
—HZTRTE - BURRENEREEREER

BREERZREDTT

27. DEBTORS, BILLS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS
The Group allows its trade customers with credit periods normally
ranging from 30 days to 120 days. The following is an ageing of debtors
and bills receivable at the balance sheet date:

S 3
THE GROUP
2009 2008
FTERT THIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BHRERRRE Trade and bills receivables
0-60K 0 - 60 days 172,422 151,976
61-90K 61-90 days 18,351 15,568
HBi890R Over 90 days 49,254 61,049
240,027 228,593
HAEWERIE - k& RIBNFIAR Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 309,139 378,540

HE SERVRMNE RS 2 IR E (@)

&% & Gerard Corporationffp iz 2 EUAE
(FftzE(b))

Consideration receivable for the disposal

of the Group's electrical business

in Australia (note (a)) 33,304 463,782
Consideration receivable for the disposal of

partial interest of investment in

Gerard Corporation (note (b)) 321,943 126,684

904,413 1,197,599
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n\/-_l_\

E H Bﬁ I:E ()

27. FEUWRERTE - EINEEB R FEMNRIE =)
BT

(a)

(b)

RZZFZ=F SEHEERNRAMZEREY - H
%&W%IZ—%f&Eﬁ@ﬁWﬂgm TE=
Fr_A- T HEEMENF  UHESE L
%EE%m%%ﬁFEZ&H?%%TﬁFEZE
el SKEBREFEXGH  BOSMNEFERE
33,304,000/ 7L (=T Z )\ : 463,782,000/ L) EE
FERREWHRIE - SRFER=EARMBITELRE
EiR AR 2 EAZZEYERA S -

ﬁﬂﬁl%ﬁ’]ﬁgﬁ(FTarway%%D%HﬂEA:??:E&:
1 4F 1 Gerard Corporation &l {3425 ¥ Gerard
%«B&ng{ RZZZNF=A=+—H ' TarwayE
FKH K 88 AN € 4 242,041,000 7% 0 K& B IE 7 H Atb
JE Ui AR 18 A Y 4R A 71 2.79,902,0008 7T - LA
321,943,000 7T ° Tarway S AR EHEE R H AR
—ETAFRNA=TH -R=ZFTENAFA~A=1+8 -
TarwayEZARBER2EEER - A - RARER - B
RA EERSGRFGTEI(TBRGE ) - REBERED
MNRE—HBRZZZTNFASAA=THXZAIEE
B mEMDBARERZERER - RARER -
BRGET BB R MR TRKEE o AR TGPIER
Gerard R i FT# #934.33% Gerard Corporation %17
W EEREER - RERABMTEA6(d)FT LR R 2] 82
GPI%iE’\‘E?ﬁQ’ \%T’ﬁﬁzwH%ﬁGerard%’«ﬁiiﬁEﬁ%%r
IR A E AE B R AN K B 2 Tarway B 3K ° 7151
T
() BWRE—
ﬁ —HI 2 ©%8/326,800,000/8 T © 1%
Afg%j'bi/\ﬂ + B ATEERE -

i%%’l‘iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ*‘l’;d

R=ZTZTAFLANB ° GPTEHEGerardR &5

?%\Eﬂ AR ET IR ET — 15 AR 19 7k 88 173 ok (A B
FEA6(d)PHRER) - HAh - &k - TarwayER T4
84,200,000 7T FE Y Gerard 5 iz & 70 LA 1 $5GP
TERBERUR DR T B EMAFIBER R o
RIZMER A ARAD 5 B 2 SR T T 46(d) B0 5 TR
FBR I ©

(ii)

MEHRE

BIEAEEMGerard RGN T =FHEER
BNERBERLERFEBNEEHZE - BH
J& 32 it T Gerard R ik 2 B & X {8 4% Schneider 1
17 + Schneider R ER RETTMARIE T EEM
FHIE T Gerard Rk e R=TTNF=A=+—
H + ©%84726,800,0007%5 7 f& < Gerard R i 7K 18
34 Schneider 077 ([ Gerard fITF A ) - A&
B & Gerard RiE RAI EREE - BERERXHZE
WEBHETE% @ Gerard R &S £ 1A Gerard 177 5%
B2 ENEREASEE - & Gerard NTF RIBEER
B TS EF R (EMBR AR REMERE
&) - BRARERBM5 2 H 2 Gerard R ik FE -
Tarway &K

(iii)

27. DEBTORS, BILLS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
Notes:

(a)

(b)

In 2003, the Group disposed of its electrical business in Australia. Part of the
proceeds from disposal and the related interest receivable are to be retained for a
period of four years from 22 December 2003 to cover any liability that the Group
may incur in respect of any warranty claims under the terms of the sale and purchase
agreement. The Group reached an agreement with the buyer to retain the amount
of HK$33,304,000 (2008: HK$463,782,000) for a further period until the warranty
claim issue is resolved. The amount bears interest based on 3 months’ Australian
bank bills swap reference buying rate.

The amount receivable (the “Tarway Loan”) arose from the disposal of partial
interest in Gerard Corporation to the Gerard Family in 2003 and 2005. As at 31
March 2009, outstanding principal of HK$242,041,000 and related interest of
HK$79,902,000 of the Tarway Loan, which is included in other receivable, amounted
to HK$321,943,000 in aggregate. The Tarway Loan had a scheduled final repayment
date of 30 June 2009. Full repayment of the outstanding amount did not take place
on 30 June 2009. However, as at the date of this report, a repayment plan (the
“Repayment Plan”) has been agreed in principle with the first instalment payable
on or before 30 June 2009 and other instalments thereafter. As at the date of this
report, the agreement on the Repayment Plan has not been finalised or signed.
The 34.33% of shares in Gerard Corporation held by the Gerard Family previously
pledged to GP Ind will continue serving as a security. The Group considers the
Repayment Plan together with the Selective Capital Reduction of GP Ind as disclosed
in note 46(d) will enable the Gerard Family to orderly realise assets to repay the
Tarway Loan due to the Group. They are detailed below:

(i) The First Instalment
The first instalment of HK$26.8 million had been paid before 30 June 2009 as
agreed under the Repayment Plan.

The SCR

On 9 July 2009, GP Ind entered into a share cancellation agreement as disclosed
in note 46(d) for the SCR with, inter alia, the Gerard Family pursuant to which
approximately HK$84.2 million due by the Gerard Family under the Tarway Loan

(ii)

will be settled by setting-off against the amount payable by GP Ind pursuant to
the SCR. The SCR is subject to certain conditions set out in note 46(d).

(iii) Retention Money

In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement relating to the disposal
of the EWDIS business in Australia by the Group and the Gerard Family to
Schneider in 2003, part of the cash consideration payable to the Gerard
Family was retained by Schneider and will only be released by Schneider upon
satisfactory settlement of the warranty claim. As at 31 March 2009, an amount
of approximately HK$26.8 million due to the Gerard Family was still retained by
Schneider (the “Gerard Retention Money”). The Group and the Gerard Family
have agreed in principle and subject to the finalisation of a formal agreement,
that the Gerard Family will assign its rights to the Gerard Retention Money
to the Group such that upon release of the Gerard Retention Money, the net
proceeds, after deduction of any warranty claim and associated costs, will be used
to repay part of the Tarway Loan due by the Gerard Family.



27. EURERTE - BN ER R ENRIE @)

(b) (#
(iv) BREEMIRR
B M GRIBWEIER - TarwayBEFOREESREE S
#77%5184,100,000/% 7T °

BIR Gerard R ik M A& B 5T 2 BHRETE -
Gerard Corporation #) & + & & & E % # 4t —
ZENFLA-BREAKFMER - #IRAH
B RIB K AR EE R Gerard R 1K & 3% * Gerard
REBREZERBEETAEE - Gerard
Corporation &5 B E {45 + 2R EEF BB
FKIA S 49 £399,000,0007% 7T (A =TT /\F X
A=+ H Z 8RB 4477,900,0007& 7T) + HA
292,000,000 L(R=ZZ\FXA=+HZIE
T {8 /362,000,000 7T ) #1%) 3£ 6 B ° Gerard
Corporation % Gerard X & £ [F & LA Gerard
Corporation & E {E 8 — 1 - LMERKRIABB
34.33% £ Gerard Corporation & %17 % {5 {E &
Tarway B 72 #3H5) - FiTarway B EE R 2 (R
f& o

BRBE RIER A B0 5 B AR GBI 5| B Rt T REE R R

T B AR A B BRI FE AR 205 o

RE#IEFR  KESREEETP ZERER
AEFHERATHEE EER - BEERKER
EEERERREMERRZEEGRK - EEE
RRARB AR Z 8B TR E M YR
ZIERRY -

SEZERERRBHRAFRE B R IERER
182 B 4A%E 522,829,000/ T (B )\ & :
41,235,000/ 7T) ° SEIE L EHRIBRF T
ARG o

B RIR T IR E 2 B E R RER DT T

27. DEBTORS, BILLS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(b) (continued)
(iv) Balance payment
Upon settlement of the above payments, a balance of approximately HK$184.1
million of the Tarway Loan will remain outstanding.

In accordance with the Repayment Plan between the Gerard Family and the
Group, certain assets and business operations of Gerard Corporation will be
realised in an orderly manner from 1 July 2009 onwards and the proceeds
therefrom will be used to repay loans due to the Gerard Family which, in
turn, utilised to fund the repayment by the Gerard Family to the Group.
Management of Gerard Corporation estimates that the proceeds from its asset
realisation programme will amount to approximately HK$399 million (having a
carrying value as at 30 June 2008 of HK$477.9 million) in which HK$292 million
(at a carrying value as at 30 June 2008 of HK$362.0 million) relate to properties.
Gerard Corporation and the Gerard Family have agreed to provide a second
charge on the assets of Gerard Corporation to secure settlement of the Tarway
Loan in addition to the charge over 34.33% of the issued shares in Gerard
Corporation as security for the Tarway Loan.

The key sources of estimation uncertainty relating to the SCR and the Repayment Plan
are discussed in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will internally assess the
credit quality of the potential customer and define appropriate credit
limits. The management also closely monitors the credit policy of trade
and other receivables and considers the trade and other receivables that
are neither past due nor impaired to be of good credit quality.

Included in the Group’s trade receivables are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$22,829,000 (2008: HK$41,235,000) which are
past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

Ageing of trade debtors which are past due but not impaired

2009 2008

TET THET

HK$°000 HK$’000

31—60K 31-60 days 15,456 13,271
61—90K 61-90 days 2,235 2,079
HBiB0KR Over 90 days 5,138 25,885

22,829 41,235
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27. FEURBEIE - PN =48 T TE AT 2008 () 27. DEBTORS, BILLS RECEIVABLE AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
AREFREEE Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts
2009 2008
THEx FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REA—H At 1 April 35,918 53,192
EEBHREE Currency realignment 977 122
R 2 R AR RE Impairment losses recognised on receivables 8,733 701
WER 2 T e Y e £ 58 Amounts written off as uncollectible (18,059) (17,399)
FRUEE5E Amounts recovered during the year (7.388) (698)
R=A=+—H At 31 March 20,181 35,918
SE 2 TRERBHENE BB KRR 2 855 Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually impaired
B JE U & TR 4258 /520,181,00078 T ( —ZEZ )\ trade receivables with an aggregate balance of HK$20,181,000 (2008:
£ : 35,918,000/ 7T) - EE W R Rt HXIER HK$35,918,000) which have been in severe financial difficulties. The
EEAEASR - EEEEHE —LETERR R Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. The Group
RAETEWE R EWRER - 8558 /518,059,000 has also written off trade receivables which have been placed under
B (ZEZE)\F : 17,399,000/ 7T) © liquidation and were considered as non-receivable with an aggregate

balance of HK$18,059,000 (2008: HK$17,399,000).

SERFEEEREE  WERABRSETZEER The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure
% o spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

FEUBRTR - RN ZER RFENFIER - LARZI Included in debtors, bills receivable and prepayments are the following
BEE M LASN 2 Bt SN R B BB 2 FRIABAE ¢ amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional currency

of the entity to which they relate.

TS L LN
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008

FET TR FET TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

SN TT Australian dollars 429,024 642,763 = =
ETT United States dollars 207,971 207,469 - -
= Japanese yen 2,126 1,607 - -
ARHE Renminbi 39,472 92,540 - -
FgE Sterling pound 16,252 18,733 - =
Bt Euro 45,029 38,896 - -
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29.

RITHEE FRERS
AEBMEANBFHEZRITET  GREREE
IR S K =18 A s A TN 28 2 58 HRER 1 TF AR A
FERR0.01%E7.225%(ZFF)\F : 0.01% =
5.82% ) UELFI B ©

RITERT - FRERERN - URRZDREEEIA
Sz A INE IR BRI (B 2 FRIABAE

28. BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND CASH
Bank balances, deposits and cash comprise cash held by the Group and
the Company and short-term bank deposits with maturity of three
months or less, and carry interests ranging from 0.01% to 7.225% (2008:
0.01% to 5.82%) per annum.

Included in bank balances, deposits and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

REE AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET FAT FExT FAT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SEMTT Australian dollars 10,799 89 2 =
ETT United States dollars 54,140 72,562 1,588 41,257
S| Japanese yen 366 19 - -
AREE Renminbi 39,141 43,298 - -
HeE Sterling pound 17,243 29 = =
&t Euro 5,613 12,007 - =
EMARERER 29. CREDITORS AND ACCRUED CHARGES
ERNERENEERBEREE R 2RO The following is the ageing of creditors at the balance sheet date:
rEE
THE GROUP
2009 2008
THET FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EAER Trade creditors
0-60K 0 - 60 days 60,935 115,445
61-90K 61-90 days 8,995 17,384
BiBI0K Over 90 days 15,923 20,191
85,853 153,020
HinEMAERERER Other payables and accrued charges 146,493 227,754
232,346 380,774

EREERERAN - LARZREEBIAINZ &
NS BB FIE 2 FIRBEE

Included in creditors and accrued charges are the following amounts
denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.

TEH PN

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FAT FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
ETT United States dollars 23,597 33,239 - -
H Japanese yen 717 131 - -
AREE Renminbi 42,682 57,182 - -
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30. MEHAESE

30. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cninea
wT\ =) ,E E Bﬁ I:E #)

Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZZNF=A=+—-HLFE

BEHEEERZHE
BRIEZHEEER Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
2009 2008 2009 2008
FHET FHET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=5 THE GROUP
—F R EIH Within one year 1,565 27 1,479 11
“ERFH(BEEREMF) In the second to fifth
years inclusive 2,241 16 2,220 14
3,806 43 3,699 25
W RIS Less: Future finance
charges (107) (18) - =
HESTZRE Present value of lease
obligations 3,699 25 3,699 25
B —FARRENARBI A E Less: Amount due within
one year shown
under current
liabilities (1.479) (11)
—F 1% 5 H Amount due after
one year 2,220 14
AF] THE COMPANY
—FREE Within one year 728 - 707 -
—ERFH(BIEEREME) In the second to fifth
years inclusive 1,044 - 1,033 -
1,772 - 1,740 -
B RIS Less: Future finance
charges (32) = - _
HEETZRE Present value of lease
obligations 1,740 - 1,740 -
B —FEARRHIIARBAE Less: Amount due within
one year shown
under current
liabilities (707) -
— 18 EIHY Amount due after
one year 1,033 -

SEBRNVBHERASOWE - B
f%oﬁﬂkfﬁi%%ﬁiﬁfﬁ?%:imi FRERE
ElfH1.29% £10.79% ( —TZ )\ F : 529%i
10.79%) ° FREHEHTAETE B KA

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its property, plant and
equipment under finance leases. The finance leases are negotiated for
a lease term from 3 to 4 years. Interest rates are charged at the range
from 1.29% to 10.79% per annum (2008: 5.29% to 10.79% per annum).

All leases are on a fixed repayment basis.



31. RITER - BERFEREX

31. BANK LOANS AND IMPORT LOANS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

REE AAF
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FTEx FAT FTERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FREEZBITER(F32) Current portion of

bank loans (note 32) 675,195 923,045 475,018 409,667

RHRTERREERE Short term bank loans
and import loan 410,666 388,064 69,000 -
1,085,861 1,311,109 544,018 409,667
RITESX Bank overdrafts 11,474 6,894 = =
1,097,335 1,318,003 544,018 409,667
BHEMA Secured 783 = 184 =
fisigis Unsecured 1,096,552 1,318,003 543,834 409,667
1,097,335 1,318,003 544,018 409,667

SERARRZEBITER  BEEFEREX
LUOZFENFI R FIE - FAZELEFF X
EH093%ZE7.46% (—ZEZ\F : 1.43% &
8.99%) °

FERITER  BMEEERBEXA - LWARZIIE
B LAINZ SNE BB TIE Z BN B

The bank loans, import loans and bank overdrafts of the Group and
the Company are arranged at floating rates. The effective interest rate
during the year ranged from 0.93% to 7.46% (2008: 1.43% to 8.99%)
per annum.

Included in bank loans and import loans and bank overdrafts are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they relate.

rEE AAF

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FET AT FTRT FHEL
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
T United States dollars 40,330 88,393 15,500 -
AR Renminbi 34,051 = = =
HgE Sterling pound 4,005 30,447 - -
BT Euro 28,040 21,943 - =
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Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZZNAF=ZA=+—-HLFE

R 32. BORROWINGS
REE AKATF
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
T FAT FTET FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RITER Bank loans
—EIK I - Unsecured 1,510,051 2,140,985 804,000 993,667
—HHE AR () — Secured (Note) 1,769 - 417 =
1,511,820 2,140,985 804,417 993,667
B R—FREEENIE Less: Amount due within
one year
—RITE R (FEE31) - bank loans (note 31) (675,195)  (923,045) (475,018)  (409,667)
836,625 1,217,940 329,399 584,000
RITETER TIERNER The bank loans are repayable
within a period of:
—ER Within 1 year 675,195 923,045 475,018 409,667
BiB—FETERE Between 1 -2 years 743,969 464,476 258,520 367,333
BENEENAAF Between 2 - 5 years 92,656 753,464 70,879 216,667
1,511,820 2,140,985 804,417 993,667

FESRITIERA - LABZWEEEUINZINE R
BIEZERELRE

Included in borrowings are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate.

rEE AAF
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
FAET FHET TR FHET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
ET United States dollars 139,500 140,124 = -
e Sterling pound 1,349 9,432 - -

BREZEER SEZERNERFNER &
I(EﬁiEéuTz%Uﬂa £)740.83%%8.03% (—
TZN\E  213%E7.75%) °

Mzt : RZTTAF=A=+—H SERQFKEE
2,119,000/ T (=TT N\F : TETT)ZWE - K
B RREBHRAERMRITIERETRZER

Borrowings are arranged at floating rates. The ranges of effective
interest rates (which are also equal to contracted interest rates) on the
Group'’s borrowings from 0.83% to 8.03% (2008: 2.13% to 7.75%) per
annum.

Note: As at 31 March 2009, bank loans were secured by the Group’s and the
Company'’s property, plant and equipment of HK$2,119,000 (2008: nil).



33. IEIEHIE

33. DEFERRED TAXATION

rEE
THE GROUP

2009 2008

T FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER Balance at beginning of the year (16,808) (3,797)

B Currency realignment 453 (454)
REFELREBERTR(FF12) Charge to consolidated income statement

for the year (note 12) (1,929) (12,557)

HEZE (FiH12) Change in tax rate (note 12) 960 -

FIREETE Balance at end of the year (17,324) (16,808)

SEMHRZ TBREFAEBEREENT :

The following is the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised
by the Group:

£8 THE GROUP
EREBNE
ZHERBE
REME Accelerated HIEEE
Investment tax Tax ar
properties depreciation losses Total
THT THT THT THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R=ZTZLFNA—H At 1 April 2007 (9,923) (15,952) 22,078 (3,797)
R Currency realignment - (501) 47 (454)
REFEHABREGIR)FA (Charge) credit to consolidated
income statement for the year (817) 9,092 (20,832) (12,557)

FREARERTAGIR)

R—EENF=FA=+—H

R—_ZTEAE=A=+—80  &£EFH
468,088,000/ 7L ( === )\ F : 456,325,000/
T) ZARERTIEE R TR ARR ZEF] o 5t
%55 18 T HE R 2 IR AE B IE B EE /31,660,000 7%
JTL(=ZFZ/\F : 7,388,000/ 7C) ° KRR
N EETER - 8RN Z IR R I AR IR R
HEEWRER - TARIEERS I ERA%ET

At 31 March 2008 and

1 April 2008 (10,740) (7,361) 1,293 (16,808)
Change in tax rate 614 420 (74) 960
Currency realignment - 453 - 453
Credit (charge) to consolidated

income statement for the year 450 (1,434) (945) (1,929)
At 31 March 2009 (9,676) (7,922) 274 (17,324)

At 31 March 2009, the Group has unused tax losses of HK$468,088,000
(2008: HK$456,325,000) available for offset against future profits. A
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$1,660,000 (2008:
HK$7,388,000) of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profits streams. All tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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34.

35.

B IE ()

BIEFBZHHE  RREZHBRRFEH S
TN\F—A—HARREA S &S TENR o
BEREEEEEHEREO  FEREHER
ATRERA A] AR AR eEHE Rl - KBS =T
ZEN\F—A—BEEEWNBEARMSEMNEREZ
EEERELIRER ERE -

£ B A HUR E B £ 639,872,000/ L (=2 F
J\SE : 31,545,000 7T) - SETEHR B ERT
AR EAZE A RS R - B8 n&SE
EREREERIEEE

832

DEFERRED TAXATION (continued)

Under the New Law of the PRC, a withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from
1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary difference
attributable to profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries since 1
January 2008 as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The Group also has deductible temporary differences of HK$39,872,000
(2008: HK$31,545,000). No deferred tax assets has been recognised in
respect of such deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

IR 34. SHARE CAPITAL
BRAPHE
Number FAT
of shares HK$'000
TR EREME0.50/48 7T : Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each:
ETERRAR Authorised:
R-ZZLFEMA—F —2F/\F=A=1+—0 " Balance at 1 April 2007, 31 March 2008,
—EE)\GEMA-BR-ZEAFSA=+-BETE 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009 800,000,000 400,000
BEETRER Issued and fully paid:
R-BZLEMA—H  —EEN\E=A=1— Balance at 1 April 2007, 31 March 2008,
—EEN\FHA-HER=ZFEENF=A=1— ﬁ 1 April 2008 and 31 March 2009 549,285,000 274,643

BRE

(i) A2 FERETE
*E%J%BAf TE_FNAT-BEBRBZEE

BRFESR - ARAINE B HRA—RERET

([ EREETE ) - BT SINEX
EHEGFAFARERRER - R=FTF L
FRALR  —HEBREREBBRILE
B AR M AT B 30 B A T RO B AR e st ) (T 3T BB A
REETEl]) - BT 8 AR S
AR EREAAFRERETAENEENES
B - UEREH AR ZER -

REBREFEIFELEER=_ZETNF=A
=+ — B ERITE 2 BIRER R 2 R £
11,020,000% * BARFTR=_ZTZTNF=H
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35.

SHARE OPTIONS

(i) The Company’s share option schemes
Pursuant to an ordinary resolution of the Company passed on 12
September 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Old Option Scheme”) on that date. The Old Option Scheme
was initially valid and effective for a period of five years from the
date of adoption. On 7 September 2007, an ordinary resolution was
passed to terminate the Old Option Scheme and adopted a new
share option scheme (the “New Option Scheme”). The purposes of
the Old Option Scheme and the New Option Scheme are to enable
the Company to grant options to eligible employees and directors as
incentives and rewards for their contributions to the Company.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and outstanding as at 31 March 2008 under the Old Option Scheme
was 11,020,000 representing 2% of the shares of the Company on 31
March 2008. The options under the Old Options Scheme were lapsed
during the year ended 31 March 2009.



35. B RE )

35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(i) =ATERETE (2 (i) The Company’s share option schemes (continued)
I ERETE  BEARRIZES - B According to the New Option Scheme, the directors of the Company
B AERT B 0B 2 T E AT - Al are authorised, at any time within ten years after the adoption
T‘;‘{%$ AIREFMRBAR ZENEZESE R of the New Option Scheme, to grant options to any directors or
RBERBARATRMD 2 5HE - H{EEIL AT employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe
ﬁﬁék%,ﬁﬁﬂx%ﬁﬁﬂil*% Bz FHlkmE for the Company’s shares at a price not less than the average of
CRTFEHARRKRERTEHEZEE the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the five trading days
(Wﬁm%ff‘]ﬁ) % BITBUHSERT © #iE immediately preceding the offer date of the options, the closing
ReREET 2R EME B st +FEABEZRNLE price of the Company’s shares on the offer date or the nominal
B oo IR R T 2 IR E AT value of the Company’s shares, whichever is higher. Unless otherwise
B AR EITIRAZ10% - RIFFHABTZ cancelled or amended, the New Option Scheme will be valid and
A+ =18 A WA FERMEBIA 2 BB effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption. The
EMEENREEHE NMEBBEETRDZ maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
1% ° granted under the New Option Scheme cannot exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company. The number of shares in respect
of which options may be granted to any individual in any twelve-
month period up to the offer date is not permitted to exceed 1% of
the number of shares in issue.
TR R A R S 2 T3S T Y B IR U BN T Option granted under the New Option Scheme must be taken up
BREZIETRBERAES - 13217‘1,%712 within the period as specified in the offer of options and upon
KB - BT ZEREC AR T 2 BIRERTE payment of HK$1 as the consideration for the options granted.
HERATITE o B M ERETSIDR AR Options granted are exercisable within the period as specified in
H BB A o the offer of options. No option was granted under the New Option
Scheme since adoption.
REE—_ZEENE=A=+—HBE_ZEZS The share options outstanding under the Old Option Scheme during
FE=A=1t—HEERARA=-Z 7)\$ A the year ended 31 March 2008 and 2009 and as at 31 March 2008
=t+—HBRZZETNF=A=+—HEEE and 2009 are as follows:
ARAESTEI T M ART TR B AR S 20 T
RBE RIBENF
—ZENE =A=t-—H REZE
=A=t+-—H —BEN\F —EBENF
LFE mA—-B =A=t+-H
R=ZZtF i,/ w8 i RATE LFEE R-ZELAF
mA—H Lapsed/  Outstanding Hwm =A=t+—H
e RATE cancelled at Lapsed e RATE
RTHH T8  Outstanding during the 31.3.2008 duringthe  Outstanding
Date AT Exercise at year ended and year ended at
of grant Exercisable period price 1.4.2007 31.3.2008 1.4.2008 31.3.2009 31.3.2009
BT
HK$
£
Directors:
18.10.2002 18.4.2003 - 17.10.2007 1.17 2,350,000 (2,350,000) - - -
2.10.2003 2.10.2003 - 1.10.2008 1.84 8,500,000 - 8,500,000 (8,500,000) =
10,850,000 (2,350,000) 8,500,000 (8,500,000) -
&5 :
Employees:
18.10.2002 18.4.2003 - 17.10.2007 1.17 1,070,000 (1,070,000) - = =
2.10.2003 2.10.2003 - 1.10.2008 1.84 2,620,000 (100,000) 2,520,000 (2,520,000) -
3,690,000 (1,170,000) 2,520,000 (2,520,000) -
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35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(ii) GP Ind’s share option scheme

GP Ind has a share option scheme (the "GP Ind Option Scheme”),
which was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 19 November
1999. The purpose of the GP Ind Option Scheme is to enable GP Ind
to grant options to eligible employees and directors as incentives
and rewards for their contributions to GP Ind.

According to the GP Ind Option Scheme, the directors of GP Ind are
authorised, at any time within ten years after the adoption of GP Ind
Option Scheme, to grant options to any directors or employees of GP
Ind or any of its subsidiaries to subscribe for GP Ind’s shares at a price
not more than 20% discount of the average of the closing prices of
GP Ind’s shares on the three trading days immediately preceding
the offer date of the options or the nominal value of the GP Ind’s
shares, whichever is higher. Unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
GP Ind Option Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten
years from the date of adoption. The maximum number of shares in
respect of which options may be granted under the GP Ind Option
Scheme cannot exceed 15% of the nominal amount of the issued
share capital of GP Ind on the day preceding the offer date. The
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to
any individual at any time is not permitted to exceed 20% of the
aggregate number of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the GP Ind Option Scheme.

The number of shares in respect of which options had been granted
and outstanding on 31 March 2009 under the GP Ind Option Scheme
was 10,332,000, representing 2% of the shares of GP Ind on 31
March 2009. Options granted must be taken up within the period
as specified in the offer of options, and upon payment of S$1 as
the consideration for the options granted. Options granted are
exercisable after the first anniversary or the second anniversary of
the date of grant of such options and will expire at the close of
business on the fifth anniversary or the tenth anniversary thereof,
respectively.
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(i) GPIEMEIRAETT ()
REE-_TTN\F=ZA=+—HE_ZTZTAh
FZA=+—HAFEARR-_ZTTNF=A
=t BAR_ZETAF=ZA=+—HBEGPL
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35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)

(ii) GP Ind’s share option scheme (continued)

The share options outstanding under the GP Ind Option Scheme
during the year ended 31 March 2008 and 2009 and as at 31 March
2008 and 2009 are as follows:

RZZBENE REZ
ZA=t-H ZBEAF
RBEZE REZ R-BENE =A=1-H
2B\ BB\ mA—A LHER
R-ZEtE Z=A=t-H =A=t+-H HRTE  BR/HEE R-EEAE
MA—B  LERTE  LFRFHE  Outstanding lapsed/ =A=1-H
i RATHE Exercised Cancelled at cancelled e RATE
BT HH T Outstanding  duringthe  during the 3132008  duringthe Outstanding
Date A{TERE Exercise at  yearended  yearended and  yearended at
of grant Exercisable period price 1.4.2007 31.3.2008 31.3.2008 1.4.2008 31.3.2009 31.3.2009
iyl (Mzt)
S$ (note)
RRAES
Directors of the Company:
14.4.2000 14.4.2002 - 13.4.2010 0.456 410,000 - - 410,000 - 410,000
4.4.2001 4.42003-3.4.2011 0.620 800,000 - - 800,000 - 800,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2012 0.550 514,000 - - 514,000 - 514,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2013 0.880 1,004,000 - - 1,004,000 - 1,004,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 1,290,000 - - 1,290,000 - 1,290,000
4,018,000 - - 4,018,000 - 4,018,000
GPIXEES:
Directors of GP Ind:
4.4.2001 4.4.2003-3.4.2011 0.620 64,000 - - 64,000 - 64,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2012 0.550 41,000 - - 41,000 - 41,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2013 0.880 335,000 - - 335,000 - 335,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 385,000 - - 385,000 - 385,000
825,000 - - 825,000 - 825,000
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35. R RE )

35. SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(ii) GP Ind’s share option scheme (continued)

(i) GPTEEREE (&)

RZBENF REZE
ZA=t-H ZBEAF
RBZ REZ R-BENE Z=A=1-H
“EE\E  CZBEN\E mA—A LHER
R=Z2tE Z=A=t-H =A=t+-H HRTE  HR/HEE R-BEAE
MA—B  LERTE  LFERFHE  Outstanding lapsed/ =A=1-H
iH RATE Exercised Cancelled at cancelled I8 RATHE
BTHH I Outstanding  duringthe  during the 3132008  duringthe Outstanding
Date AT ERE Exercise at  yearended  yearended and  yearended at
of grant Exercisable period price 1.4.2007 31.3.2008 31.3.2008 1.4.2008 31.3.2009 31.3.2009
g (MaE)
s$ (note)
GPIZIFHITES:
Non-executive directors of GP Ind:
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2007 0.550 154,000 (154,000) - - - -
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2008 0.880 240,000 - - 240,000 (240,000) -
5.7.2004 5.7.2005 - 4.7.2009 1.030 270,000 - - 270,000 - 270,000
664,000 (154,000) - 510,000 (240,000) 270,000
B8 :
Employees:
14.4.2000 14.4.2002 - 13.4.2010 0.456 317,000 - (10,000) 307,000 (55,000) 252,000
4.4.2001 4.4.2003-3.4.2011 0.620 1,162,000 - (174,000) 988,000 (160,000) 828,000
14.8.2002 14.8.2003 - 13.8.2012 0.550 491,000 - (18,000) 473,000 (64,000) 409,000
15.9.2003 15.9.2004 - 14.9.2013 0.880 2,267,000 - (253,000) 2,014,000 (351,000) 1,663,000
5.7.2004 5.7.2005-4.7.2014 1.030 2,750,000 - (342,000) 2,408,000 (341,000) 2,067,000
6,987,000 - (797,000) 6,190,000 (971,000) 5,219,000
ERAITRE
Exercisable at the end of the year

MiEE : GPIERM 2 MERNBRETRZE =TT+
FNANE - BEROS5H KT - GPLERMR
MEAETTE AT — B 2 i B /R B AR0.55F INST

11,543,000

10,332,000

Note:  The market price of GP Ind’s shares on the date of which options were exercised

on 8 August 2007 was S$0.55 per share. The closing price of GP Ind’s shares
immediately before the date on which the options were exercised was $$0.55
per share.
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36. RESERVES

THE GROUP

Capital reserve represents the capitalisation of profits of subsidiaries
established in the PRC that were available for appropriation after the
approval from the relevant PRC authorities.

Legal surplus comprises the Group’s share of statutory reserves of the

BERER © subsidiaries in the PRC.
NG| THE COMPANY
VXS REAED
ik ik
RAEE  Property Capital RERE RKREEF
Share revaluation redemption  Dividend  Retained &t
premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
FAEL FET FET FHET FHET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—TTHFMA—H At 1 April 2007 463,935 11,242 35,358 16,479 317,475 844,489
2E A Profit for the year = - - - 46,647 46,647
HEREMEES Transfer on disposal
of investment
properties - (11,242) - - 11,242 -
BEIRERE Dividend paid
—CETHERERE ~ 2007 final dividend - - - (16,479) - (16479)
— T N\FHHRE - 2008 interim dividend - - - - (16,479)  (16,479)
je 1) Dividend proposed
——TT\FREKRE - 2008 final dividend - - - 1098  (10,986) -
RZZTNF=A=1+—H  At31March 2008
RZZENFMNA—H and 1 April 2008 463,935 - 35,358 10,986 347,899 858,178
2FEE Loss for the year - - - - (127,009)  (127,009)
EIRER S Dividend paid
et IS — 2008 final dividend - - ~ (10,986) - (10,986)
—ZZETNFHHRE - 2009 interim dividend - - = = (5,493) (5,493)
BaERE Dividend proposed
—EENERERE - 2009 final dividend - - - 8239  (8,239) -
RZZEZNF=A=1—H At 31 March 2009 463,935 - 35,358 8,239 207,158 714,690
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37. RARERIETE
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries participate in the Gold
Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme, a defined contribution retirement
benefit scheme, for all qualified employees in Hong Kong. The scheme
is funded by contributions from employers according to the employees’
remuneration and length of service as defined under the trust deed. The
monthly contribution rates of this scheme ranged from 5% to 10%. At
the same time, the Group also participated in a mandatory provident
fund (“MPF”) scheme registered under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Ordinance. All new employees have the option to join
the Gold Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme or the MPF scheme with
terms as stipulated by the MPF Authority.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company outside Hong Kong
participate in central provident fund schemes established by the relevant
authority in their respective countries.

For the Gold Peak Group Provident Fund Scheme, the unvested benefits
of employees who terminate employment are utilised by the employers
to reduce their future level of contributions. The amounts of unvested
benefits so utilised by the employers during the year ended 31 March
2009 were approximately HK$770,000 (2008: HK$684,000). As at 31
March 2009, the forfeited contributions of HK$62,000 (2008: nil) were
available to reduce the level of employers’ future contributions.

The Group also participates in the employees’ pension schemes of the
respective municipal government in various places in the PRC where the
Group operates. The Group makes monthly contributions calculated as
a percentage of the monthly payroll costs and the respective municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations
of all existing and future retirees of the Group. The Group has no other
obligations for the payment of pension and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the above contributions payments.

The Group contributed an aggregate amount of HK$8,213,000 (2008:
HK$9,192,000) to the above retirement benefit schemes during the year
ended 31 March 2009.



38. HE—HEMBLAT 38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

RZTETNF=A+H GPLEE-—BUE On 10 March 2009, GP Ind entered into an agreement with an
= %5t &GP I % ~ [ff B 2 7 Fortune Way independent third party to dispose of its interest in Fortune Way
Developments Limited ([ Fortune Way |) 2 ##& Developments Limited (“Fortune Way"), a subsidiary of GP Ind, at
sl Bk 1B /420,570,00055 7T ° Fortune a consideration of HK$20,570,000. Fortune Way was engaged in
WayE ZEBAIFEME - REE_TTNF= the property holding and a gain on disposal of HK$10,632,000 was
R=+—RHIFE @ SESEERNGFEERRME recognised in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
#210,632,00058 7T 4z March 2009.
2009
FHET
HK$'000

HEEEFE Net assets disposed of

Y - BB R RE Property, plant and equipment 8,972

FEURARIE « FEUNEEIR RIE /I8 Debtors, bills receivable and prepayments 77

RITAERR RIS Bank balances and cash 5

2Rl fE A FRIE Intercompany debts (13,358)

(4,304)

RN A E R FIE Assignment of intercompany debts 13,358
RPER Transaction costs 884
B e Gain on disposal 10,632
RRE Total consideration 20,570
HEMBARMELZREREBRESRA Analysis of net inflow of cash and cash equivalents

R arising on disposal:

BUWER &R E Cash consideration received 6,328

HEZRITEFRRE Bank balances and cash disposed of (5)

6,323

HEMBARHEERFER ML E BRI The disposal of the subsidiary did not result in significant impact on the
BmEATE - Group's cashflow or operating results for the year.
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39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS cninea
n‘/T\ = ,E E Bﬁ I:E (%)

Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZZNAF=ZA=+—-HLFE

(@) On 11 July 2008, the Group acquired the entire registered capital of

SZ Gloria at a cash consideration of HK$7,345,000.

2009
T
HK$'000
BAFEE RABERATAE : The carrying amounts and fair value of net asset acquired:
M~ BB K& Property, plant and equipment 1,808
FE Inventories 5,687
FEUIRIE « FEUEEIR R IE FRIE Debtors, bills receivable and prepayments 8,851
RITEFRE S Bank balances and cash 3,765
ERRERER Creditors and accrued charges (14,013)
FERIE Taxation payable (3)
6,095
BAWBARIFTEEZEE Goodwill arising from acquisition 1,250
7,345
NEFR : Satisfied by:
eI Cash paid 7,345
B A — RSBt E& RFfEAC RS REME Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
[E N FRE arising on acquisition of a subsidiary:
ReREERSEA Cash and cash equivalents acquired
RITEFRES Bank balances and cash 3,765
WEZHA Cash paid (7,345)
(3,580)

FIEER P MK - FEREEES
BEMTHMG - WHESIHZHBREBEER
TaFI AR S ERaRER 2 BATE
EE - HRTIENBETRERZEEZE - &
NRAIEFERRFTBIBE LB ARELESBHRR
Eafl e At BEEEENR_TTENFE=A
=+ —BH2ERE (BB ZRER RN
fg7E25) ©

WiERIIBEHRBENRSMAZEREL
BEEANER -

SZ Gloria is incorporated in the PRC and is principally engaged in
manufacturing of parts and components for audio products. The
goodwill arising on the acquisition is attributable to its anticipated
potential profitability and historical industry growth in relation to
the business at the time of which the transaction was negotiated.
However, after the acquisition, the market sentiment had
significantly deteriorated and the directors of the Company are of
the opinion that their previous expectation on the performance and
profitability of the acquired business cannot be met. As a result,
the goodwill was fully impaired at 31 March 2009 (see note 25 for
impairment assessment of goodwill).

The acquisition of SZ Gloria did not contribute significantly to the
Group's cash flow or operating results.



39. BA—REE AR %) 39. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b) E’\fj T+FNA - EEBAEEG49%E (b) In September 2007, the Group acquired the remaining 51% equity
HZEENTHERTEEE AT ([ HE])EH interests in its 49% owned associate, Maxson Industries Limited
#451% ANz - LR E A7,976,00078 ("Maxson”) at a cash consideration of HK$7,976,000.
=c
2008
FAET
HK$'000
BAFEERABERATAE : The carrying amounts and fair value of net asset acquired:
Y% - B k& Property, plant and equipment 7,570
A HERE Available-for-sale investments 264
FE Inventories 3,164
FEUGIRIE « FEUWEEIE M TEAS A Debtors, bills receivable and prepayments 9,888
RITHEFENIRE Bank balances and cash 447
EREREERER Creditors and accrued charges (5,428)
SRITEX Bank overdrafts (2,212)
13,693
BAKMBARFTEA ZEmE Goodwill arising from acquisition 1,132
14,825
NEFR : Satisfied by:
ReIH Cash paid 7,976
P B & A R i Interest in associates 6,849
14,825
BA—ENBARMEA RS REE Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
W INFHE arising on acquisition of a subsidiary:
ReREER2EA Cash and cash equivalents acquired
RITREFRRE Bank balances and cash 447
RITEX Bank overdrafts (2,212)
(1,765)
BEX T Cash paid (7,976)
(9,741)
NEREBZMAL - FERZERIEE R Maxson is incorporated in Hong Kong and is principally engaged in
BREDHES - BANBZHERAES investment holding and trading of plastic components. The goodwill
HNEEBREL 2 FEEREBRRTS on acquisition of Maxson is arising from the directors’ positive views
ZETEALE - on the future business prospects of Maxson’s business development

and its current business networks in the market.

REE_TZENF=A=+—HILEEZ=ZET The subsidiaries acquired during the years ended 31 March 2009 and
NE=ZA=T—HIFEBAZIEBA AL 31 March 2008 did not contribute significantly to the Group’s cash
EEZRE N E A L & F R EKRE R flow or operating results for the year even the acquisition had been

(BMEWFERER TR ° completed on the first day of the respective years.
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4. EBFHRERS

RAFE  SERYE  BEREESHHEHA
B8 - BYIEARE(E A4,996,0008 T (—ZFF

40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION
During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements in
respect of property, plant and equipment with a total capital value at

NE  BHEI) o the inception of HK$4,996,000 (2008: nil).
1. FRBEREEHRE 41. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR
2009 2008
THET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SRITET TR Bank balances, deposits and cash 268,445 312,191
HRITEX Bank overdrafts (11,474) (6,894)
256,971 305,297
42. ZREE 42. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
AEH AT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008
TERT FET FExT FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
IRITERBERBEER : Guarantees given to banks

118

in respect of banking
facilities utilised by:

Associate

181,373 189,085 109,671 120,324

43. COMMITMENTS
F5E
THE GROUP
2009 2008
THET FHET
HK$'000 HK$'000
EERNEBRESEVERRBEHEFANEEME ME  Capital expenditure in respect of
o5& 2 B AN ENE acquisition of property, plant and
equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 1,649 1,350




44,

45.

ERBERE

HAE

REERBEREER SRR TAHEHERXEE

BARTAEGH  BXMZHELAT :

—FR Within one year

ZERER (BREME In the second to fifth years
BEER) inclusive

HBBhF Over five years

EEEEMERERERCAARAERIH
Mg - MEFH-BERA—FE= 14

HAEE

R-ZZNF=ZA=1+—H SEERZQFH
THREEETEEMNERE  c HEWRAA
SHEEBESARREMEL SFHSWASR
8,874,000/8 7T °

44.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
As lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group has outstanding commitments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

2009 2008

B B

ti#KEE Machinery tik&EE Machinery
Land and and Hft Land and and Hity
buildings equipment Others buildings equipment Others
TET TET TET AL TET TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
19,976 1,603 1,997 23,029 625 3,578
28,139 1,896 2,159 31,302 977 4,303
2,555 - - 6,704 - -
50,670 3,499 4,156 61,035 1,602 7,881

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for its
office properties and factories. Leases are negotiated for terms from one

to twenty years.

As lessor

At 31 March 2009, the Group had contracted with associates under
operating leases in respect of land and building. The operating leases
are subject to termination as agreed by the Group and associates and
the rental income is HK$8,874,000 per annum.

BEAERS 45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

AREFEBENFHETUTEARS ¢ The Group entered into the following significant transactions with its
associates:
2009 2008
FTERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERBEAR) Purchases from associates 14,427 34,828
HE THEDNA] Sales to associates 49,735 27,131
BHERRZEEBRA Management fee income received

from associates 22,343 11,826
BB AR ZFEHA Interest income received from associates 3,062 872
ELUNCIpAiiON Rental income from associates 9,242 3,505
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45.

46.

BEAMRZ @)

REEBEXRR - AEERAQR EEENRE
AT ERERIIN R ARIE - IR & - TR
B RENRERERA

45.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

As at the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company have the
following balances with its associates under debtors, bills receivable and
prepayments and creditors and accrued charges:

ARE ADT
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2009 2008 2009 2008

FET THT FET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FEUHE = N BB

Hofth FE MG 2 B R

LA UNCIN e

Ho At FEATEE &R ) 2 FRIA

T

TEEEEEAEARRES  NTEFMFS
RFIEETT ©

EEEBREEAASEE
(a) b’/\_jvjliﬁﬁ AARBEEHRENE
AR IR EBRARRGPIENZERE
% [} /B 2 7] Burgess Investments Limited
HEFAIABERERAE(TIKK1)49.1%
R - EGPTXMBE ARELTE
BRAB([EE]D REEEBEAFKES
BiEm TR ARG RE  BARER
180,000,000/8 7T - =TT NLF LA +H
BIIZAR Tﬂxi%%leAt HBER S
M RRBERERR - K2 HEAEGPT
H¥RERRE -

(b) R=ZZZTNFENA  AREIHE—F=% - f]
85 RN ERLESEETHERE
&&;ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%@%ﬁwsoooooo,%rc)
Z W& - KR {8 A155,000,000/8 7T °
HE - AREIEEEH R &R ﬂi@%ﬁ
ERERIRST - §AMHE1,230,0007 7T ©
R-ZZETAFLA-ZFNBBITZARARK
RBERIAE - gL ERMARZERE
E@ELJ& R EEIA o RARA IS HRE

CRERMRRZHMALER  EEERE
E%‘WE*ZS%FZEH =7

46.

Trade receivables due from

associates 40,784 4,285 - -
Other receivables due from

associates 5,892 91,479 5,683 25,709
Trade payables due to

associates 2,113 3,505 - -
Other payables due to

associates 44,564 10,852 15,000 -

The key management personnel includes solely the directors of the
Company and the compensation paid to them is disclosed in note 11.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

(a) In May 2009, GP Technologies Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Burgess Investments Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of GP Ind, together hold 49.1% in Lighthouse
Technologies Limited (“Lighthouse”), entered into conditional
agreements with Linkz Industries Limited (“Linkz"), an associate of
GP Ind, for the disposal of the Group’s entire interest in Lighthouse
for a consideration of HK$180 million to Linkz. An ordinary
resolution was passed at an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 10 July 2009. The disposal is also subject to the
approval of the shareholders of GP Ind.

(b

~

In June 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with a
third party (the “Purchaser”) to dispose of certain of the Group's
leasehold properties and investment properties with an aggregate
carrying value of HK$133 million in Hong Kong for a consideration
of HK$155 million. Upon completion of the disposal, the Company
will enter into a lease agreement with the Purchaser to leaseback
these properties for a period of 5 years at a monthly rental of
HK$1,230,000 per month. An ordinary resolution of this disposal
and leaseback of these properties was passed at an extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 28 July 2009. The sale and
leaseback arrangement is not yet effective as at the report date
of the consolidated financial statements and the management of
the Group is in the process to assess the accounting impact of this
arrangement.



46. EEEBEREERAEH )

(9]

(d)

RZZTZENGFEAA  @IWARIEERAR]
(T& 158D (GPIENZEBRANBAR)
BEASILNER(EB)BRARA(EAE
W) (GPT¥E20% 8% A R)) 71 #pak o
BERE @ WARREKE §e=R
BRERAR([ LES=]) 2 IRAETRH
50% ' K{E#)/490,000,0007 7T - EEE&=
2R ANA R AR B o WRBESERK1Z -
EEe=RKAS LR RGPTEME A
Ej °

R=_ZZTNFtA ' GPTEENRKGerard
K& 7 - Belvedire Pty Ltd([Belvedire )
(" Gerard B8 B 22 £F 5 ) & Tarway Two
Pty Ltd([Taryway|) (GPL 2~ M2 & %
BB AR EFTRG FH = - BERMD
T - GPITEMGIEH I A R4 78G
BT IR AR R D AR AR T8I ([ 32 2 MR D AR
5T &l 1) LA 5F $H Belvedire T #5 55,681,443
RGP T 2[%1H + K[ABelvedire ) KIR & 42
818,300,000 i3 7T ( #784,200,000/% 7T )
([FESHFRIA L) © FEHFRIBRAGPITESFA
F& 3 Belvedire 89 5% 85 7% 18 ¥ 85 B Gerard X
P& FE (S Tarway H) R EEFRIBH A M o B
FTERGE BRI EIE - GPTERD
#8215 576,601,9250% /5 1> =520,920,482
AR o RARFTRHIGPTERD + HRERGP
TEZ2HBEBITRANT6.7% ° BZMR D
R 7N 51 81 55 2 ()GP T £ AR F AL - (i) #7 0
WEEERBS IR EER DR
K (iii)Gerard X & # 5% T Schneider Electric
Australia Holdings Pty Ltd#y55,681,443/%
GPTEBRMHEBIHE o

46. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)
() In June 2009, GP Auto Parts Limited (“GPAP"), a wholly-owned

(d

-

subsidiary of GP Ind, entered into an agreement with Furukawa GP
Auto Parts (HK) Limited (“Furukawa GP”), a 20% associate of GP
Ind. Pursuant to the agreement, GPAP agreed to purchase 50% of
the entire equity interest in Shanghai Jinting Automobile Harness
Limited (“Shanghai JAH"”) from Furukawa GP at a consideration
of approximately HK$90 million. The acquisition of Shanghai JAH
is subject to the approval of shareholders of the Company. After
completion, Shanghai JAH will become an associate of GPAP and GP
Ind.

In July 2009, GP Ind entered into a share cancellation agreement
with various parties representing the Gerard Family, Belvedire Pty Ltd
(“Belvedire”), which is beneficially owned by the Gerard Family, and
Tarway Two Pty Ltd (“Tarway"”), which is an indirectly wholly owned
subsidiary of GP Ind. Pursuant to the share cancellation agreement,
GP Ind shall carry out the selective capital reduction pursuant to
Section 78G of the Companies Act of Singapore (“Selective Capital
Reduction”) to cancel the 55,681,443 GP Ind shares held by Belvedire
and the amount of cash distribution to be returned to Belvedire
is an aggregate sum of $$18.3 million (approximately HK$84.2
million) (“Cancellation Monies”). The Cancellation Monies shall be
satisfied by GP Ind setting off all the Cancellation Monies due to
Belvedire against the amounts owed to Tarway by the Gerard Family.
Following the completion of the Selective Capital Reduction, the
total number of shares of GP Ind will be reduced from 576,601,925 to
520,920,482. GP Ind shares held by the Company will then represent
76.7% of the entire issued share capital of GP Ind. The Selective
Capital Reduction is subject to (i) the approval by the shareholders
of GP Ind, (ii) sanction of the Selective Capital Reduction by the High
Court of the Republic of Singapore; and (iii) the release of 55,681,443
GP Ind shares which have been assigned by the Gerard Family to
Schneider Electric Australia Holdings Pty Ltd.

121



Year ended 31 March 2009 BE-ZZNAF=ZA=+—-HLFE

122

47. T EMB AT
ARFR-ZEENER -_FTZNEF=A=1+—H

ZEZMBRRFBENAT

MEARER

Name of subsidiary

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS coninies
MWLEEMME@

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2009 and

2008 are as follows:

R/ it T BT EMBRAE
Place of Nominal value of
incorporation/ issued share/
registration registered capital

ETEEK

Principal activities

BFE

Electronics division

BEBEZXARAF**

Bowden Industries Limited**

CIH Limited**#

Famingo Pte Ltd. **

GP Acoustics Limited **

GP Acoustics (UK) Limited **#

GP Acoustics (HK) Limited **

SHEF (FE) ERAF*>

GP Electronics (China) Limited **

BMNTRILBEFERAF** (92.50%)@
GP Electronics (Huizhou) Co Ltd. **

(92.50%) @

GPTEBRAF] (69.32%)
GP Industries Limited (69.32%)

SILTHZEFHER AT **

GP Industries Marketing Ltd**
(formerly known as GP Auto
Parts Limited)

B HK$476,000,000
Hong Kong
TN $$201,553,536

Republic of Singapore

AN S$2
Republic of Singapore

REEARES US$14,865,980
British Virgin Islands

HE £22,500,000
United Kingdom

BB HK$20,000,000
Hong Kong

B HK$2
Hong Kong

F HK$100,000,000
People’s Republic of China

Fhnsg $$115,320,385
Republic of Singapore

BB HK$8,010,000

Hong Kong

BERIEE ERRIHEESR
BRI - BFEGIRR
BHER

Investment holding,
manufacturing and trading of
electrical wiring accessories,
electronics control devices
and related products

ERERE

Investment holding

ERERE

Investment holding

ERERE

Investment holding

ZIRIRE MIHE S B S
Investment holding and
trading of loudspeakers

HEKMHESEER
Marketing and trading
of audio equipment

ERERE

Investment holding

EHE T REEFRESR

Manufacturing of
electronics and acoustics
products

ERERE

Investment holding

RN HE S BT A R EE
IR ER

Marketing and trading of
quality parts and
components, and hygienic
and health care products



47. TEMBR B (@) 47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

FR 3L, kit 7

Place of

4T, MR AE

Nominal value of

MEAR BB

Name of subsidiary

incorporation/
registration

issued share/

registered capital

EREWK

Principal activities

EFZE)
Electronics division (continued)

SEBRARE (BM) BRAF**A
GP Lighting Technology (Huizhou)
Limited **A

BN S ILEE B R AT ** (100%)@***
GP Precision Parts (Huizhou) Ltd. **
(100%) @***

SHETFEHFEERRR**

GPE International Limited **

GP Electronics (HK) Limited **

BB ILARRBB AR AT **(100%)@* ***
Huizhou GP Wiring Technology Ltd. **
(100%) @****

NETEER AR **

Maxson Industries Limited**

NEFMBRBAR DA **A

Maxson Industries (Huizhou) Limited **2

Tarway Two Pty Ltd.**

il
People’s Republic of China

il
People’s Republic of China

&HB
Hong Kong

&8

Hong Kong

il
People’s Republic of China

B
Hong Kong

il
People’s Republic of China

SEM
Australia

HK$50,000,000

HK$14,248,037

HK$1,000,000

HK$34,000,000

US$2,283,000

HK$2,750,000

HK$15,580,000

A$96,840,002

ER N HERBER&RIT

Manufacturing and
trading of lighting
products and accessories

ER T BT REARE
IR M

Manufacturing of metal parts
and personal health care
products

R E

Investment holding

HEKRHESEER
Marketing and trading
of audio products

EBUTERAR - #EEK
BIRFR

Manufacturing of
automotive wire harness,
transformers and switching
mode power supply

ERRENRE S
Investment holding and
trading

EXBBEA - EEE Rt
N BRI BEb

Plastic mould fabrication,
manufacturing of injection
moulded plastic components
and medical plastic products

ERIRE

Investment holding
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47. TEMBR B (@) 47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

MEAR BB

Name of subsidiary

L 7
Place of
incorporation/
registration

81T EMBAE
Nominal value of

issued share/
registered capital

EREK

Principal activities

PRI RIS
Technology and strategic division
GP eBiz Limited MEHS us$2 EEBERIEE
Cayman Islands Investment holding
in Hong Kong
SHEF (EH) BRAA FEHE HK$1,000,000 EEBERIEE
GP Electronics (Holdings) Limited Cayman Islands Investment holding
in Hong Kong
TR ER AR B HK$4 IR E
GP Technologies Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
RARBBR A E)* BB HK$2 IR E
Grand Prix Limited * Hong Kong Investment holding
KH Technology Corporation HESHS US$10,000 BHEEE
Cayman Islands Holding of trademarks
Makinen Properties Limited HEABRES us$1 IR E
British Virgin Islands Investment holding
BAREEFRATR B HK$2 MERE
Peak Power Investment Limited Hong Kong Property holding
Triwish Limited * REERRES Us$1 EBBYELE
British Virgin Islands Property holding
in Hong Kong
BILREFRAR B HK$1,000,000 IR E
Whitehill Investment Limited Hong Kong Investment holding
¥ RRIZEEMBRREELEERE - *  Directly or indirectly held by wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.
** RGP EEENMERE - ** Directly or indirectly held by GP Ind.

*x PSR B DL HET70%IEZE100% « B BT RFMER
ZTE(EF8,572,99178 18 514,248,037/ T °

*ekx BTSSR B D EEHE80%IEZE100% + B 1T Rt fER
SRE{EH 1,500,000 7T % 2,283,0005 7T °

*** Percentage holding increased from 70% to 100% and nominal value of issued
registered capital increased from HK$8,572,991 to HK$14,248,037.

****Percentage holding increased from 80% to 100% and nominal value of issued
registered capital increased from US$1,500,000 to US$2,283,000.

@ WERRARBBVEGITEMEKZZPINGERT] @ These companies are established as sino-foreign joint ventures registered under PRC
law.
A WA RIBRFRBUERI T MRS 2 ZINEHA RS - A This company is established as wholly foreign owned enterprise registered under the
PRC law.
t BERTIRA A AEEEH38,776,898F 1 T #  Nominal value of issued shares/registered capital increased from $$38,776,898 to
#2201,553,5363T I3 T ° $$201,553,536.
#  BEITIRAR GEE A ZE{E R 18,000,000 5 45 1 = #  Nominal value of issued share/registered capital increased from £18,000,000 to
22,500,000 85 © £22,500,000.

BB AEISN  AARIFEFE A EAF
P17 2 BN 19 8 & Ay o

Except for the companies established in the PRC, the classes of shares
held by the Company in the above companies are ordinary shares issued
by these companies.
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48.

FEMBE AR ()
BRAFESREERON © L EFFB AR AARARIZE
BB ARIKFTBEF 2 ER AR - FERFATZ
BHETIR RIS FTE S FIEAR A R h 2 s o
BRIEMI EZZER IR - FrEHE QRIS
FBES BRI FEff T o

EXRBINARR ZMBRR)  EFRRZZIRA
TEVEAFEZRENBRAEEREE—EE
25D - EERAHINEMHME QR 2158
BB

BEREIN - ERFE AR R FER - B
RANEAAAERE S

TEBENT

BEARER

Name of associate

47. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Except where indicated in brackets, the above companies are wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company or the holding company of that
division. The percentage in the brackets indicated the attributable
interest of the Company or the holding company of that division.
All subsidiaries operate principally in their respective places of
incorporation/registration unless specified otherwise under the heading

"Principal activities"”.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the year or
constituted a substantial portion of the assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

Save as disclosed, none of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

48. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

£EE
IEEATRA
ZERBEMN=E
Effective
equity interest
attributable
to the Group

L i T
Place of
incorporation/
registration

EEEK

Principal activities

S EBEREBRATF

GP Batteries International Limited

ZEFE
Electronics division

A ILEE(BEB)BRAR
Furukawa GP Auto Parts (HK) Limited

BETEBRAA

Linkz Industries Limited

XETEROBRAT]

Meiloon Industrial Company Limited

2009 2008
N 34.07% 34.07%
Republic of
Singapore
B 13.87% 13.87%
Hong Kong
B 32.74% 32.74%
Hong Kong
=) 13.97% 13.97%
Taiwan

BE  ERNMEESO R ARER

Development, manufacturing
and marketing of batteries
and related products

IR E

Investment holding

ERIRE  ERTERER

Investment holding and
manufacturing of electronic
cables and wires

FE - SLEREEL RSN
HEEm

Development, manufacturing
and marketing of acoustics
and audio-visual equipment
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48. TEHE N T (#)

BEARER

Name of associate

48. PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES (continued)

KErE
IEBATRA
ZEXBEMN=E
Effective
equity interest
attributable
to the Group

XL, St
Place of

ETEEK

Principal activities

incorporation/
registration

BLUTEARAF

Shinwa Industries (H.K.) Limited

SPG (&%) ERAA
SPG Industry (H.K.) Limited

BERERD
Wisefull Technology Limited

PR FHEA

Technology and strategic division

JERIRAR AT

Lighthouse Technologies Limited

7fs (hE) BRAR
Onkyo China Limiteds

A ORE

E-FTNAEZAS T BLEAER

UAEPTE A 2 B E AR AR BIRERA -
FIAEME R B2 EBEBER B 2K M
77 K ERA AR EMAEREEAR

J:%%%WWEIZ /N
RABBERTEIMZEARE

EEERAREFEE— &

REFIEARE R B 2 15§

REAEHZE
HERFEZ
o BEER
EEHRIEILE ©

5=
B
BB

51

2009 2008
BB 10.40% 10.40% ERIRE ERRHEEFEM
Hong Kong Investment holding,
manufacturing and trading
of electronic products
5 32.18% 32.18% ERRERSERELE K
Hong Kong BREMES
Investment holding and
trading of high precision
metal and plastic parts
B 20.80% 20.80% ERREREBHRE
Hong Kong Investment holding and
trading of metallic products
BB 43.17% 43.17% ERMIHELEDE TR
Hong Kong Development and sale of
LED display screens
B8 - 33.33% EEMDHEEEM
Hong Kong Marketing and distribution

of audio equipment
A Disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2009.

All associates indicated above are indirectly held by the Company. All
associates operate principally in their respective places of incorporation/
registration. All of the above companies are limited liability companies.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the opinion
of the directors, the Group exercised significant influence and principally
affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other associates would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.



FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP INDUSTRIES LIMITED
GPLEAMR A AIBME

meBERk CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
HE=A=1+—HItFE Year ended 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2008
T 37 0 7T FET*  FTHEHIET FAT*
$$'000 HK$’000* $$'000 HK$'000*
e Turnover 242,363 1,313,641 278,839 1,477,465
FRAH A& A Profit before taxation 1,383 7,496 36,176 191,683
I8 Taxation (7,727) (41,882) (11,178) (59,228)
bRtz (E518) s A (Loss) profit after taxation (6,344) (34,386) 24,998 132,455
DB A Minority interests 275 1,491 598 3,169
2 (ER )% (Loss) profit for the year (6,069) (32,895) 25,596 135,624
FEEEAER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2008
T3 03 7T FEx*  FEIMET FHIT*
$$'000 HK$'000* $$'000 HK$'000*
E - R &E Property, plant and equipment 38,662 197,064 40,786 230,025
/N ey Interest in associates 309,981 1,580,004 292,604 1,650,228
E ETRAZE Investment in unquoted
equity shares 26,033 132,693 43,730 246,628
RERFEURER Non-current receivables 5,334 27,188 65,899 371,657
HiRE Other investments 21,104 107,569 20,641 116,411
M EE Intangible assets 5,664 28,870 5,697 32,130
MENEE Current assets 257,452 1,312,259 296,860 1,674,231
BEE Total assets 664,230 3,385,647 766,217 4,321,310
FERBEE Non-current liabilities 100,971 514,659 113,361 639,333
MEAE Current liabilities 157,947 805,072 238,931 1,347,523
HEBEE Total liabilities 258,918 1,319,731 352,292 1,986,856
FEE Net assets 405,312 2,065,916 413,925 2,334,454
R E & Shareholders’ funds 403,879 2,058,612 411,405 2,320,242
DER R Minority interests 1,433 7,304 2,520 14,212
405,312 2,065,916 413,925 2,334,454
TH{E MARKET CAPITALISATION 138,384 705,359 247,939 1,398,326

* AR AR 2B TR IRA RS B 2 R o

*  The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are converted
at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY OF GP BATTERIES INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
T I BMEERA R A RS E

mEBER CONSOLIDATED PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
HE=A=1+—HItFE Year ended 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2008
F 37 b0 7o FET* FTHEHIET FHIT*
$$'000 HK$’000* $$'000 HK$'000*
] Turnover 864,136 4,683,747 976,382 5,173,487
FRAR A& A Profit before taxation 14,483 78,500 1,243 6,586
I8 Taxation (6,926) (37,540) (4,663) (24,707)
PR Al (E518) Profit (loss) after taxation 7,557 40,960 (3,420) (18,121)
DERRF Minority interests (6,848) (37,117) (1,192) (6,316)
2FH M (EE) Profit (loss) for the year 709 3,843 (4,612) (24,437)
FEEEAER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
R=ZA=+—H At 31 March
2009 2009 2008 2008
T3 03 7T FEx*  FEINET FHIT*
$$'000 HK$'000* $$'000 HK$'000*
GRS Goodwill on consolidation 24,397 124,354 14,170 79,916
REME Investment properties 1,309 6,672 1,239 6,988
ME - RN GEE Property, plant and equipment 275,342 1,403,446 263,128 1,483,989
el N Interest in associates 81,381 414,807 56,057 316,150
Al HERE Available-for-sale investment 5,496 28,014 7,788 43,923
IRCFIE S E Deferred tax assets 2,691 13,717 2,967 16,733
S E Intangible assets 8,818 44,946 13,753 77,564
IERENTEN A Non-current deposits - - 14,401 81,219
MENEE Current assets 410,108 2,090,361 419,203 2,364,221
BEE Total assets 809,542 4,126,317 792,706 4,470,703
FERBBE Non-current liabilities 3,522 17,952 158,886 896,085
REEE Current liabilities 445,672 2,271,635 308,050 1,737,340
HmEE Total liabilities 449,194 2,289,587 466,936 2,633,425
FEE Net assets 360,348 1,836,730 325,770 1,837,278
RRE & Shareholders’ funds 307,486 1,567,287 277,823 1,566,866
DER R Minority interests 52,862 269,443 47,947 270,412
360,348 1,836,730 325,770 1,837,278
HE MARKET CAPITALISATION 47,165 240,405 85,556 482,519

* BIELBRAG B TEE R EMEER 2 BRRE o *

at the exchange rates ruling as at the respective year end dates.

The Hong Kong dollar equivalents as shown above for illustrative purposes are converted
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